
           

REGULAR MEETING & WORK SESSION
OF THE CITY COUNCIL

September 8, 2020

ADDISON TREEHOUSE

14681 MIDWAY RD., ADDISON, TX 75001
6:30 PM WORK SESSION

7:30 PM REGULAR MEETING
 

Notice is hereby given that the Addison City Council will conduct its REGULARLY
SCHEDULED MEETING on Tuesday, September 8, 2020 at the Addison
TreeHouse with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating
for members of the public will be available using CDC recommended social
distancing measures. The Town will utilize telephone or videoconference public
meetings to facilitate public participation to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 by
avoiding meetings that bring people into a group setting. Telephonic or
videoconferencing capabilities will be utilized to allow individuals to address the
Council. Email comments may also be submitted to:  iparker@addisontx.gov by
3:00 pm the day of the meeting. Members of the public are entitled to participate
remotely via Toll-Free Dial-in Number: 877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683
Participant ID: #. For more detailed instructions on how to participate in this
meeting visit our Agenda Page. The meeting will be live streamed on Addison's
website at: www.addisontexas.net.
           

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 



WORK SESSION
 
 

1. Present and Discuss Naming of the Future Parks located at the
Addison Grove Development. 

 

2. Present and Discuss an Update on the Restructuring of the
Management, Operation, and Real Estate Services at Addison
Airport.

 

3. Present and Discuss the Format for the Town Meeting on October 26,
2020.

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Announcements and Acknowledgments Regarding Town and Council
Events and Activities

Discussion of Meetings / Events
 

Public Comment
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter,
including items on the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the
agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be heard when the specific
hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless
otherwise required by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City
Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior to the Public
Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action
or discuss any item not listed on the agenda.  The Council may choose to
place the item on a future agenda.
 

Consent Agenda
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City
Council and will be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If
individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be pulled from the
Consent Agenda and discussed separately.
 

4. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the August 25, 2020



4. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the August 25, 2020
Regular Meeting.

 

5. Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve the North Dallas County
Water Supply Corporation Operating Fund Budget for the Fiscal
Year Beginning October 1, 2020 and Ending September 30, 2021.

 

6. Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve an Interlocal Agreement
with Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) for Enhancements of Areas
Along the Cotton Belt/Silver Line Alignment and Authorize the City
Manager to Execute the Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed
$43,660.16.

 

7. Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve the Third Amendment to
the Concourse Plaza II  LTD., Ground Lease for the Property
Located at 16051 Addison Road at Addison Airport, and Authorize
the City Manager to Execute the Agreement.

 

8. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the Sale of 0.4332 Acres
of Surplus Right-of-Way at the Southeast Corner of the Intersection
of Vitruvian Way and Spring Valley Road, and Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute the Special Warranty Deed.

 

9. Consider Action on a Resolution Authorizing the Sale of 0.1470 Acres
of Surplus Right-of-Way at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection
of Vitruvian Way and Spring Valley Road, and Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute the Deed.

 

10. Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve an Interlocal Agreement
with the Trinity River Authority for the Monitoring of Wastewater
for Certain Industrial Uses and Authorize the City Manager to
Execute the Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $9,500.

 

Regular Items
 

11. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an
Ordinance to Levy Taxes for the Town of Addison, Texas, and to Fix
and Adopt the Tax Rate of $0.608676 for the Town on All Taxable
Property for the Fiscal Year Beginning October 1, 2020 and Ending
September 30, 2021.

 



12. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an
Ordinance of the Town of Addison, Texas Approving and Adopting
the Annual Budget for the Fiscal year Beginning October 1, 2020
and Ending September 30, 2021, and Making Appropriations for
Each Office, Department, Agency and Project of the Town, Providing
That Expenditures for Said Fiscal Year Shall Be made in Accordance
with the Adopted Budget, Unless Otherwise Authorized by an
Ordinance Adopted By the City Council; Providing for Emergency
Expenditures and Expenditures as Otherwise Allowed By Law.

 

13. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an 
Ordinance Changing the Zoning on a 4.40-acre Property Located at
3990 Vitruvian Way, Which Property is Currently Zoned PD, Planned
Development, Through Ordinance O07-034, as Previously Amended
by Ordinances O13-026, O16-017, and O19-06, by Changing the
Density of the Residential Development. Case 1817-Z/UDR Fiori.

 

14. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting a
Meritorious Exception for Prestonwood Place, Located at 5290 Belt
Line Road, from the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62 Section 62-184.
– Setback, effective area and height, and Section
62-185- Specifications, in Order to Permit Two Pylon
Signs Exceeding the Allowed Area and Setback Requirements.

 

15. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve a
Professional Services Agreement with Cobb, Fendley and
Associates for a Utility Capacity Assessment Related to Future
Development Adjacent to the Addison Transit Center and Silver Line
Rail Station in an Amount Not to Exceed $123,565.

 

16. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 82 (Utilities), Section 82-76 and Section 82-77 of the Code of
Ordinances of the Town by Amending Sewer Rates and Water Rates
for All Customer Classifications; Providing that the Changes to the
Sewer Rates and Water Rates Made Herein Shall be Applied to
Monthly Customer Bills Beginning with the November 2020 Billing
Cycle.

 

17. Present and Discuss the Finance Department Quarterly Financial
Report of the Town of Addison for the Fiscal Year 2020 Third
Quarter Ended June 30, 2020.

 



Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session
closed to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss
matters listed on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act,
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private
consultation with the attorney for the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange,
lease or value of real property); §551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints
against personnel); §551.076 (deployment, or specific occasions for
implementation of security personnel or devices); and §551.087 (economic
development negotiations). Any decision held on such matters will be taken or
conducted in Open Session following the conclusion of the Executive
Session.  

 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.  PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7090 AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN
ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.

POSTED BY:     ________________________________
                           Irma G. Parker, City Secretary
DATE POSTED: Thursday, September 3, 2020
TIME POSTED:  6:30 pm
DATE REMOVED FROM BULLETIN BOARD:  ______________________
REMOVED BY:  ________________________________
 



   
Council Meeting 1.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss Naming of the Future Parks located at the Addison
Grove Development. 

BACKGROUND:
On January 26, 2016 Council approved a letter of intent with Beltline Beltway
Investments, Ltd. and Urban Intownhomes, LLC for the redevelopment of the
former Sam's Club property for an amount not to exceed $6.5 Million for the
construction of public infrastructure as part of the development. Included in that
funding was the construction of public parkland which includes three parks and
two parklets. The Developer has assigned temporary names to the three parks
to help reference them through design and construction. The two parklets have
not been assigned a temporary name. The names assigned to the three parks
are; The Grove Park, The Commons Park and The Plaza Park and these names
could comply with the Naming and Recognition Policy which states town facilities
could be named after man-made or natural features. Construction of the parks is
beginning to mobilize and staff would like direction from Council regarding the
permanent names of the parks / parklets. 

To help facilitate this discussion a presentation of the park locations has been
attached along with the Naming and Recognition Policy. The Naming &
Recognition Policy states named facilities should utilize predominant
characteristics related to the Town's natural environment, physical features or
history from the following identifiers: 
 

Hydrological Features1.
Natural Features2.
Man-Made Features3.
Significant Historical Events4.
Community Sponsored Name5.
Name of an Individual that has Made a Significant Contribution6.

Staff is requesting direction from Council on the following:

- Would Council prefer to make these names permanent or would Council like to
consider different names?



RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.

Attachments
Presentation - Addison Grove Park Naming 
Policy - Naming & Recognition 



Naming of the Future 
Parks Located at the 

Addison Grove 
Development

1



Addison Grove Development

2

The Addison Grove Development 

will include 3 parks and 2 parklets.  

Staff is seeking Council direction 

regarding the names of the parks.  

- The Developer has assigned a 

temporary name to each of the 

parks so they could reference 

them more clearly. 

- Would Council prefer to make 

these names permanent or would 

Council like to consider different 

names?



Naming & Recognition Policy

3

II. Naming Criteria

Structures, Parks, Trails and other Town-Owned Facilities (also referred to herein as a “facility”), for 
naming objects, should utilize predominant characteristics related to the Town’s natural environment, 
physical features or history:

1. Hydrological Features

2. Natural Features

3. Man-Made Features

4. Significant Historical Events

5. Community Sponsored Name

6. Name of an Individual That Has Made a Significant Contribution to the Town.



The Commons Park

4



The Grove Park

5



The Plaza Park

6



The Parklets 1 & 2

7



Questions

8



 

NAMING AND RECOGNITION POLICY – PAGE 1 

PROPOSED ADDISON NAMING AND RECOGNITION POLICY 

 

I.  PURPOSE 

To establish uniform guidelines and procedures for the naming or renaming of Structures, 
Parks, Trails and other Town-Owned Facilities.  The policy will also set guidelines for the 
acceptance of and recognition of contributions, including those not associated with 
naming.  This policy excludes the naming of public art from the naming criteria section 
but allows for the recognition of donations for artworks.  This policy does not replace the 
Theatre Centre Naming Policy and Spruill Dog Park Naming Policy. 
 
II.  NAMING CRITERIA 
 

A. NAMING GUIDELINES 

 

Structures, Parks, Trails and other Town-Owned Facilities (also referred to herein as 

a “facility”), for naming objects, should utilize predominant characteristics related to 

the Town’s natural environment, physical features or history listed below.  

1.  Hydrological features - streams, rivers, lakes, creeks or ponds. 

2.  Natural features - trees, vegetation, wildlife etc.  

3.  Man-Made features - landmarks, street names, subdivision names,      

     architectural features etc. 

4.  Significant historical events 

5. Community Sponsored Name – Any citizen, group of citizens, entity or 

organization may submit a proposal to name a park, trail or facility after and 

individual, group or community organization to honor and recognize significant 

contributions to the Town through public service, volunteering or outstanding 

achievement (based on the process set forth in Section B. Naming Process, 

below).   

 

6. Name of an individual that has made a significant contribution to the Town by 

meeting one of the following criteria:   

a. The person has or will make a minimum financial contribution of 

$1,000,000.  This contribution may include: 

i. The donation of land, significant financial contributions to acquire land, 

or land sold to the Town at a price significantly below market value that 

meets or exceeds the minimum financial contribution. 

ii. The construction of the park, trail or facility, or construction services at 

a price significantly below market value that meets or exceed the 

minimum financial contribution. 



 

NAMING AND RECOGNITION POLICY – PAGE 2 

b. The person has made significant and consistent long-term contributions to 

the Town through service. 

c. The person was an employee of the Town and served for at least 20 years 

but has not been employed by the Town within the past 5 years. 

d. The person has served as Mayor or City Council but shall not have been a 

City Council Member/Mayor of the Town of Addison within the last five 

years. 

 

7. Public art is excluded from the naming guidelines. 

 
8. If a new road is built, the Town may request naming rights from the developer.  
 

Different sections of parks and facilities may carry names that differ from that of the overall 
park, trail or town-owned structure. This may include the naming of individual items in a 
park or facility (such as a pavilion, plaza, meeting room, etc.). The above guidelines shall 
still apply in choosing a name at the discretion of City Council a lower monetary 
contribution may be accepted for the naming of individual items within a facility.  
   

B. NAMING PROCESS  
 

1.  Consideration of a Proposed Name – The proposed facility name may be 

presented to Council for consideration by the Department Director responsible 

for oversight of the facility to be named.  The Director will be responsible for 

presenting the proposal to Council and showing how the proposed facility name 

complies with the Naming Guidelines. 

2.  Approval of a Proposed Name - The naming or renaming of a Facility is at the 
sole discretion of the City Council and must comply with the naming guidelines.  
Approval of the proposed name must be approved by a 3/4 vote of the entire 
City Council (i.e., if all members of the City Council are eligible to vote, approval 
would require 6 out of 7 votes).  

 
C.  NAMING RECOGNITION 
 

1.   Named Structures, Parks, Trails or Town-Owned Facility - In addition to 

standard facility signage recognition of naming after, or dedicated for an 

individual will include one of the following designations:   

a.  Named or Dedicated Facility – May be recognized with a plaque, not to 

exceed 24” x 36” Plaque may include individual’s name, graphic of the 

individual and a description of their contribution to the town.  The plaque 

may be mounted to a free-standing support or an architectural feature. 

b.  Named or Dedicated Area or Item within a Facility - May be recognized 

with one of or a combination of the following elements: 



 

NAMING AND RECOGNITION POLICY – PAGE 3 

i. Plaque, not to exceed 24” x 36” 
ii. Paving Medallion, not to exceed 24” x 36” 
iii. Inscription on an existing feature within a facility. 

 
Recognition shall include the person’s name, years of service and a small 
inscription describing the person’s service to the town.  
 
 

III.  RECOGNITION OF DONATIONS NOT ASSOCIATED WITH NAMING 
 
      A.   RECOGNITION OF DONATIONS 

1.  Recognition of donations may be acknowledged in one of the following      
     manners:   
     a. Single Mounted Plaque no larger than 10” x 12” (not including plaque      
          base) - To be displayed in the facility receiving the donation or an area   
          adjacent to the donated item. 
     b. Engraved Paver or Stone – To be grouped near the entrance or in a  
         prominent location near the facility receiving the donation or an area       
         adjacent to the donated item. 
     c. Inscription on a donated item, including engravings on metal. 
 
2.  Approved Wording – Wording to recognize donations must be limited to the  
     following nomenclature: 
     a.  Individual Name (May include a nickname) 
     b.  Business Name 
     c.  Pet Name (Where appropriate) 
     d.  Organization or Group Name 
     e.  May include a simple acknowledgement such as “Donated by” or “Support  
          provided by”.  
     f.  May include a group descriptor such as “By the Friends and Family of” 
 
3.  Anonymous donations do not require recognition. 
 
   

IV. REMOVAL OF A NAME 
 
In the event the name of a structure, trail, park or Town-owned facility has previously been 
granted and the name later casts a negative image on Addison, the name may be 
removed at the determination and discretion of the City Council and approved by a 3/4 
vote of the entire City Council. 
 
V.  EXCEPTIONS 
City Council may make exceptions to this policy when it deems appropriate and approved 

by a 3/4 vote of the entire City Council. 

Adopted – August 25, 2020 



   
Council Meeting 2.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Consultant

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss an Update on the Restructuring of the Management,
Operation, and Real Estate Services at Addison Airport.

BACKGROUND:
In January 2020, the Council was briefed on the recommendation to change the
structure of the management of Addison Airport from one provided by
third-party contractors to one that is in-sourced to the Town of Addison. 
 
On January 14th, the Council approved a contract with Landrum and Brown,
Inc., (L&B) to negotiate contracts for the airport operations, management, and
real estate services.  The council also discussed the long-range goal of bringing
the operations, management, and real estate management services of the
airport in as Town functions. 
 
At the January 28th meeting, the Council agreed with Staff’s recommendation to:
  

Negotiate a new agreement for real estate services at the airport with new
terms and conditions
In-source the airport operations, management, and financial management
to the Town
Early terminate the airport management and operations contract with
AECOM and pay the early termination fee of $42,500 and other reasonable
demobilization costs, as provided for in the contract with AECOM.

 
On March 6, 2020, an early termination letter was sent to AECOM to formally
terminate the contract on September 30, 2020. 

In February/March 2020, a red-lined version of the current contract with SAMI
Management, Inc., was drafted that considered and included new terms and
conditions, an evaluation of the compensation, and assessment of liabilities,
and the development of internal controls. 
 
During this time, L&B and Staff also analyzed various management structure
scenarios in order to facilitate negotiations and determine what steps may be in



the Town’s best interest.  In doing so, L&B and Staff came to the opinion that
bringing the asset management and leasing management functions into the
Town’s structure would have a positive impact on reducing the airport’s costs by
eliminating the need for a management fee and incentive bonus, while not
negatively affecting the efficiency of the real estate function. This would also
provide stronger institutional knowledge within the Town and less risk of
disruption to the real estate services. 
 
After discussions with the City Manager, L&B and Staff spoke with the airport
asset manager and leasing manager who expressed a desire to become Town
employees.  At this point, however, discussions with the real estate manager
still centered on negotiating a third-party contract. 
 
Subsequently, through discussions between the real estate manager and the
airport director, and analysis by L&B and Staff, a recommendation emerged to
in-source the real estate manager position at this time as well. This
recommendation is based on the critical nature of the real estate manager’s
daily interaction with the airport director and the rest of the airport staff. Having
the position be a Town employee would greatly simplify this interaction. 
 
The in-sourcing of all the operations, management, and real estate functions at
the airport reduces the annual cost of the management and operation of the
airport by $564,662.72. While this was not a viable option for SAMI in January,
it is the one that has resulted after negotiations.
 
The briefing to Council will focus on the progress since January, an update on
the contract discussion with SAMI Management, a review of the costs to
on-board the airport staff, and a comparison of those costs to the Fiscal Year
2020 adopted budget cost for the third-party contracts. 

The presentation that will be provided is included in this agenda item.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only. No action required.

Attachments
Presentation - Airport Management Restructuring Briefing 



Addison Airport
Management Restructuring 

Briefing 
September 8, 2020

1



History 
 January 14, 2020 Council action
Authorized a contract with Landrum & Brown to negotiate a 

contracts for airport management services
 Long-range goal to in-source the operations, management,  

and entire real estate functions of the airport

 January 28, 2020 Council action
 Terminate AECOM contract that was set to expire on 

9/30/2022
 In-source airport operations, maintenance, and financial 

management functions
Renegotiate SAMI contract

2



Progress Since January 28, 2020
AECOM: March 6, 2020 – Contract termination letter sent
SAMI: January/February 2020 – L&B drafted issues matrix and 

redlined SAMI contract for internal strategy and discussions
Gain greater understanding of necessary duties, continued 

risks and potential savings under a new agreement
 Initial discussion with SAMI on objectives

March/April 2020 – L&B and Town staff evaluated deal package 
for new SAMI contract, including
Determination of contract terms
Evaluation of compensation
Assessment liabilities
Development of internal controls

3



Progress Since January 28, 2020
March/April 2020 ‒ L&B and Town staff further considered the 

personnel and costs associated with the real estate function, 
understanding that:
SAMI brings institutional knowledge to the Town with nearly 

two decades of real estate services 
Over 80% of the airport revenue is derived from real estate 
Multiple airport development deals in progress and a 

substantial number of leases expire in the next five years
SAMI employees are paid a salary, management fee, 

incentive, and modest benefits

4



Progress Since January 28, 2020
April 2020 ‒ L&B and staff analyzed Town potential for leverage 

in the negotiations
 If negotiations with SAMI do not produce an agreement, the 

opportunity for recompeting or in-sourcing were also 
alternatives
 L&B and Staff evaluated in-sourcing SAMI’s asset manager 

and leasing manager
Options were considered for stability (in transition), cost 

comparison (Town vs. SAMI), and opportunity timing
 The real estate manager position was evaluated for 

contracting, issuing a Request for Proposal, and in-sourcing
Understood from SAMI’s real estate manager that in-

sourcing his position at that time was not an option

5



Progress Since January 28, 2020
May 2020 – Framework presented to SAMI (without 

compensation)
 L&B and Staff determined this framework was best for the 

Town in an acceptable contractual arrangement with SAMI
Real Estate Manager (REM) and Airport Director discussed 

scope of work for REM as a third-party contractor

6



Progress Since January 28, 2020
May/June/July 2020 – Evolution of potential in-sourcing 
Asset Manager and Leasing Manager show interest in 

potential in-sourcing
Discussion of salary and benefit packages ensue

Real Estate Manager negotiations ongoing
With all other positions potentially in-sourced, the Town 

sees benefit in in-sourcing the REM position as a Town 
employee

 July 23, 2020 – Employment offer as Assistant Director of Real 
Estate is extended to the REM 
August 10, 2020 – Employment offer is accepted. 

7



Progress Since January 28, 2020
Employment offer letters have been sent to all airport staff 

members – AECOM and SAMI
All offers have been accepted 

On-boarding process scheduled to be completed by September 
30, 2020
Contracts with AECOM and SAMI will expire on September 30, 

2020
 14 Full Time Equivalent positions (FTEs) are proposed to be 

added to the Town’s structure on October 1, 2020
 Town will maintain the real estate institutional knowledge and 

realize substantial cost savings on an annual basis

8



On-Boarding Airport Staff -
Estimated Cost Presented in 

January 2020 Compared to 
Current Updated Cost and FY2020 

Adopted Budget

9



Cost Comparison – January 2020 to August 2020

10

AECOM & SAMI Financial 
Manager Pass-Through 

Costs (Presented January 
2020)

Town of Addison Estimated 
Costs (Presented January 

2020)

Town of Addison Updated Cost to 
On-board AECOM and Financial 

Manager as of August 2020

Total Salaries - AECOM and 
SAMI Financial Manager $785,730.43 $785,730.43 $796,049.57 

Total Taxes and Benefits $604,686.64 $491,678.90 $504,713.36 

Total Salary and Benefits $1,390,417.07 $1,277,409.33 $1,300,762.93 

Total Charges and 
Equipment $565,891.40 $17,505.00 $17,505.00 

Termination for 
Convenience Fee (one-time 
cost) N/A $42,500.00 $42,500.00 

FY2020 Cost of SAMI 
Management Fee and 
Incentive Bonus N/A $288,337.00 $288,337.00 
Total All Costs $1,956,308.47 $1,625,751.33 $1,649,104.93 



Cost to On-Board Remaining Real Estate Staff

11

Town Costs to On-Board the Remaining Real Estate 
Management Staff

Salaries  (Real Estate Manager, Asset Manager, 
Leasing Manager)

$300,139.00 

Benefits (Real Estate Manager, Asset Manager, 
Leasing Manager)

$172,477.17 
Total Charges and Equipment $4,500.00 
Cost of SAMI Management Fee and 
Incentive Bonus $0.00 
Total Costs $477,116.17 



Cost to On-Board All Airport Staff

12

Costs to On-Board All Airport Operations, Management, and Real Estate Staff

Salaries
$1,096,188.77 

Benefits
$663,390.51 

Total Salaries and Benefits 
$1,759,579.28 

Total Charges and Equipment $22,005.00 
Termination for Convenience Fee 
(one-time cost) $42,500.00 
Cost of SAMI Management Fee 
and Incentive Bonus $0.00 
Total Costs $1,824,084.28 



FY2020 Contract Costs Compared to Town Costs

13

FY 2020 Budgeted Cost of Third-Party Contract Services Compared to Town of Addison On-Boarding Costs  

AECOM and SAMI Finance 
Manager Cost - FY2020 
Budget

SAMI Real Estate Manager, 
Asset Manager, and Leasing 
Manager Costs - FY2020 
Budget

3rd Party Contract Cost 
- FY2020 Budget 

ToA Cost to In-sourced 
Airport Operations, 
Management, and Real 
Estate Functions

Salaries $723,408.00 $370,902.00 $1,094,310.00 $1,096,188.77 

Taxes and Benefits $604,686.64 $79,260.36 $683,947.00 $663,390.51 

Total $1,328,094.64 $450,162.36 $1,778,257.00 $1,759,579.28 

Total Direct Charges and 
Insurance $116,371.00 $36,760.00 $153,131.00 $22,005.00 

Termination for Convenience 
Fee (one-time cost) N/A N/A $42,500.00 

FY2020  Management Fee and 
Incentive Bonus $218,333.00 $196,526.00 $414,859.00 $0.00 

Total Costs $1,662,798.64 $683,448.36 $2,346,247.00 $1,824,084.28 
Minus One-time Early 
Termination Cost ($42,500.00)
Annual Cost of Airport 
Operations, Management, and 
Real Estate Functions $1,781,584.28 
Total Savings to Town $564,662.72 



Next Steps

14



Next Steps

15

Complete the on-boarding process by September 30, 2020
Pay AECOM early termination fee of $42,500 and any 

reasonable demobilization costs



Questions / Discussion

16



   
Council Meeting 3.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Communications & Marketing

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss the Format for the Town Meeting on October 26, 2020.

BACKGROUND:
Town Meetings are held twice a year in the spring and fall. This year, the fall
meeting is scheduled for October 26, 2020. The purpose of this item is to
discuss the format and topics for the presentation.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.



   
Council Meeting 4.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the August 25, 2020 Regular
Meeting.

BACKGROUND:
The minutes for the August 25, 2020 Regular Meeting have been prepared for
consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - August 25, 2020 Council Meeting 



Town of Addison, Texas 
August 25, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 8 

 

D R A F T 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE 

ADDISON CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING & WORK SESSION 

August 25, 2020 
 

Addison TreeHouse, 14681 Midway Rd., Addison, TX 75001 
5:30 p.m. Executive Session & Work Session 

7:30 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
The Addison City Council conducted its Regular Council Meeting on Tuesday, August 25, 2020 
at the Addison TreeHouse with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating 
for members of the public was available using CDC recommended social distancing measures. The 
Town utilized telephone and videoconferencing to facilitate participation in the meeting.  
Interested parties were able to make public comments and address the Council via emailed 
comments submitted to the City Secretary at iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm on the meeting 
day.  Members of the public were also entitled to participate remotely via Toll-Free Dial-in 
Number: 877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant ID: #.  Detailed instructions on 
how to participate in this meeting were available on the Town’s website on the Agenda Page. The 
meeting was live streamed on Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net. 
 
Present:   Mayor Joe Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Lori Ward; Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore 
Guillermo Quintanilla ; Council Member Tom Braun; Council Member Ivan Hughes;  Council 
Member Paul Walden; Council Member Marlin Willesen. 

 

Call Meeting to Order: Mayor Chow called the meeting to order. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance:  Mayor Chow led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Closed (Executive) Session of the Addison City Council pursuant to: Section 551.071, Tex. 
Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with its attorney on a matter in which the duty of the 
attorney to the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of 
the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to: 

• Small Cell Deployment 

Mayor Chow closed the Open Session to convene the City Council into Closed Executive Session 
at 5:34 p.m. 

http://www.addisontexas.net/


Town of Addison, Texas 
August 25, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 8 

 

Reconvene into Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the 
City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matters discussed 
in Executive Session. 

 
Mayor Chow reconvened the City Council into Open Session at 6:23 p.m. No action was taken as 
a result of Executive Session. 

 

WORK SESSION 
 
1. Present and Discuss Any Action Necessary or New Information Regarding the 

COVID-19 Pandemic. 
 
City Manager Wes Pierson advised that Governor Greg Abbott’s July 2nd order regarding the 
wearing of face coverings is still in effect, and that the authority previously given to county judges 
is also still in effect. He noted that the Town facilities are still operating under the minimum health 
and safety protocols. Mr. Pierson added that Dallas County’s positive case counts are improving. 
In response to Mayor Chow’s question, Mr. Pierson said that information will be provided to the 
Council regarding the Business Assistance Program grant applications after the August 28th 
deadline. 

 
 
2. Present and Discuss a Progress Update on the Trails Master Plan. 

 

Jana Tidwell, Director of Parks and Recreation presented this item. She advised that Moore 
Iacofano Goltsman, Inc (MIG) is contracted to create a City-Wide Trails Master Plan. The project 
was determined to have four phases. Phase 2 is being completed, and this presentation by MIG 
representatives provided details of the Vision, Goals, and Strategies used to begin preparing the 
plan. 

 
Included in the presentation was a review of existing trail networks in Addison that were divided 
into eight sections of Town. Each section’s population and ethnicities were provided. It was noted 
that in Addison there are currently 12.8 miles of trails and the proposed plan will have a total of 
27.2 miles of trails. A map of the proposed trails was provided. MIG representatives advised that 
the Town’s Master Transportation Plan and Parks and Recreation Open Space Master Plan were 
used during preparation of the proposal. The types of bike and pedestrian paths were presented, 
including off-street paths. 

 
The representatives advised that input for the presentation was collected from community outreach 
efforts, including surveys. Results of the survey were presented, and the evaluation criteria used 
to analyze the results was provided. 

 
It was noted that Phase 3 should be completed by the end of November and Phase 4 is planned for 
December 2020 through February 2021. An updated presentation will be made to Council in 
October. 



Town of Addison, Texas 
August 25, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 8 

 

Ms. Tidwell advised that the City of Farmers Branch is connecting a trail to the corner of Landmark 
and that Addison should consider making that connection as well. It was noted that the COVID- 
19 pandemic has impacted the ability to have group community meetings, however MIG is 
preparing a cell phone app that residents can use to submit information and suggestions. It will be 
tested by the Advisory Committee. Zoom meetings may also be used. Mayor Chow asked that for 
the next presentation, the proposed number of miles of right-of-way on Midway and Beltline be 
included. 

 
 
3. Present and Discuss Staff’s preliminary Findings Regarding Expansion of the License 

Plate Recognition and Optical Camera Systems. 
 

Police Chief Paul Spencer presented this item. He reviewed that a pilot program for license plate 
recognition (LPR) and optical cameras started in April 2019 and concluded in April 2020. The 
findings of the pilot program were presented to Council in May 2020. Based on Council’s 
direction, expansion of the LPR and optical camera systems is being proposed. He advised that 
two of Addison’s largest single-family residential areas, Addison North located near 17000 
Westgrove Drive and Lake Forest Drive, are proposed for the LPR expansion. The Addison Circle 
and Vitruvian multi-family developments and three commercial areas along Beltline Road are also 
proposed for the LPR expansion. Graphics of these areas were presented. 

 
Preliminary locations for optical camera expansion included: 

▪ Addison Circle Park ▪ Town Park Dog Run 
▪ Spruill Park ▪ Vitruvian Park 
▪ Celestial Park ▪ Redding Trail Dog Park 
▪ Community Garden ▪ Addison Grove 
▪ Les Lacs Linear Park ▪ Winnwood Park 
▪ White Rock Creek Trail ▪ Bosque Park 
▪ Beltway Trail (future location) ▪ Oaks North Neighborhood 
▪ Town Park 

 
Chief Spencer reviewed operational concerns of adding this equipment. He advised adding this 
equipment in the single-family neighborhoods will not add to the volume of calls. However, in the 
multi-family areas the alerts will need to be filtered to keep the volume of alerts manageable. More 
stringent filters will be incorporated for the commercial areas to reduce the impact on patrol. 

 
Chief Spencer advised that Requests for Proposals are being prepared. It was noted that the optical 
cameras proposal may come back to Council in January and the LPR cameras proposal will 
possibly be in March. City Manager Pierson advised that available funds will be used, but the 
Town may have to prioritize the list of locations based on costs. 

 
 
4. Present and Discuss the Delivery of Funds to the Texas Department of Transportation 

(TxDOT) Aviation Division to Award a Bid and Provide for Construction of a 
Concrete Ramp to Serve the U.S. Customs Facility at Addison Airport in an Amount 
Not to Exceed $1,167,457.58. 



Town of Addison, Texas 
August 25, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 8 

 

 

Airport Director Joel Jenkinson presented this item. He advised this item is to provide an update 
on the bidding process, bid award, and delivery of funding for construction of the concrete ramp 
and associated taxiway and taxi-lane connectors to serve the new U.S. Customs and Airport 
Administration facility. 

 
Mr. Jenkinson reviewed that this project is partly funded by an Airport Improvement Program 
(AIP) Non-Primary Entitlement (NPE) grant through TxDOT Aviation. The grant award was 
accepted by Council Resolution adopted at the February 13, 2020 regular meeting. That Resolution 
also designated TxDOT Aviation to serve as Addison's agent to manage this project. Following 
approval of the Resolution, Addison was obligated to send $66,667 in matching funds (10% of the 
combined total of Addison's matching funds plus the NPE grant amount of $600,000) prior to the 
project going to bid. The grant amount is capped at $600,000 with all additional costs for the 
project to be paid by Addison Airport. The remaining funding (including an amount for project 
contingencies) is to be provided to TxDOT Aviation following bid opening and award 
recommendation. The TxDOT estimate for total project cost, included in the Resolution, was 
$1,666,666 (the $600,000 NPE grant plus $1,066,666 in funding from Addison Airport). 

 
Mr. Jenkinson advised that the project was advertised by TxDOT Aviation with a bid opening date 
of August 4, 2020. Six (6) bids were received.  All bids came in over the engineer’s estimate of 
$1,530,070. The low bidder was Fluor Heavy Civil LLC with a bid of $1,707,457.58. It was noted 
that the engineer has identified potential cost savings in the project totaling $96,389.40 based on 
pricing  contained  in  Fluor  Heavy  Civil's  bid  (including  $21,400  for  drainage  revisions and 
$74,989.40 for pavement section revisions and replacing lime treatment with geogrid).). However, 
these changes (per TxDOT requirements) may only be implemented after the bid has been 
awarded. 

 
Mr. Jenkinson said that to move the project forward, Addison will need to provide additional 
funding to TxDOT (in addition to the $66,667.00 already provided) of $1,100,790.58 which 
includes project contingency of $60,000.00. This exceeds the amount previously authorized by 
Council by $100,791.58. At the end of the project, 100% of any unexpended funds will be returned 
to Addison by TxDOT. City Manager Pierson reminded the Council that they had previously 
authorized him to execute all aspects of this project and this agenda item is only for informational 
purposes. 

 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council Events and Activities 

Discussion of Events/Meetings 

Public Comment: The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter, including items on 
the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be 
heard when the specific hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required 



Town of Addison, Texas 
August 25, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 8 

 

by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior 
to the Public Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss any item not 
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a future agenda. 

 
City Secretary Parker advised that no citizens had requested to address the City Council via 
telephonic means and no emails or other written correspondence was submitted. 

 

Consent Agenda: All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will 
be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately. 

 
5. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the August 5 and 6, 2020 Special 

Meetings and the August 11, 2020 Regular Meeting. 
 

6. Consider Action on a Resolution to Accept a Grant Through the Fiscal Year 2019 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) in the Amount of $180,952.38, and to Approve 
a Local Match in the Amount of Five Percent or $9,047.62 of the Final Total Grant to 
Purchase Self Contained Breathing Apparatus, and Authorize the City Manager to 
Execute All Necessary Documents to Receive the Grant Funds. 

 

Mayor Chow asked if there were any requests to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for 
separate discussion. There were none. 

 
MOTION: Council Member Hughes moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 5 and 6 as 
submitted. Mayor Pro Tempore Ward seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Resolution No. R20-061: Accept Assistance to Firefighters Grant and Authorize Local Match 

 

 
Regular Items 

 
7. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Amend to the Town’s 

Naming and Recognition Policy. 
 

Jana Tidwell, Director of Parks and Recreation presented this item. She reviewed that at the July 
14, 2020 Council meeting staff reviewed the current Naming and Recognition Policy. She advised 
that more direction from Council was requested regarding the following concerning the current 
policy: 

• A lack of clarity regarding acceptance and recognition of small donations made that are 
not associated with the naming of a facility. 

• Does not align or support current fundraising methods implemented by non-profits to 
solicit funds on behalf of the Town. 

• Does not address how the naming of a park after an individual is recognized or 
significant service is recognized, although there are standards being implemented. 

• Needs more detail in defining the process for naming and renaming facilities. 



Town of Addison, Texas 
August 25, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 8 

 

Ms. Tidwell said that at that meeting Council requested that staff ensure that other Town policies 
do not conflict with this policy; to consider how other recognition items currently implemented 
would fit in this policy; and, to consider the plaque measurements to determine if they are not too 
prescriptive. 

 
Ms. Tidwell reviewed the proposed changes to the amended policy that include minor edits and 
noted that a section regarding street signs is included. She advised Council that staff-led 
recognitions in honor of co-workers, such as those at the Fire stations, are not included in this 
policy. Discussion followed regarding allowable plaque sizes. Council Member Willesen 
expressed that he would like the policy to remain as is to allow some flexibility. Ms. Tidwell 
explained that a section on Exceptions is included and reviewed the reasons staff presented the 
proposed revisions. 

 
MOTION: Council Member Hughes moved to approve as presented except for changing the 
allowable plaque signage to read “not to exceed 24” x 36”. Council Member Ward seconded the 
motion. Motion carried with a vote of 6-1. Council Member Willesen voted against the motion. 

 
Resolution No. R20-057: Naming and Recognition Policy Amendment 

 
 

8. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Amend to the Public Art 
Policy. 

 

Jana Tidwell, Director of Parks and Recreation presented this item. She reviewed that at the July 
14 Council meeting updates were proposed for the Public Art Policy to better align with the 
modifications being made to the Naming and Recognition Policy, and to align with the current 
practices of the Town and of the Addison Arbor Foundation. Ms. Tidwell reviewed the proposed 
policy revisions. It was noted that the Addison Arbor Foundation has reviewed the proposed 
revisions. 

 
MOTION: Council Member Willesen moved to approve as presented. Council Member Walden 
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Resolution No. R20-058: Public Art Policy Amendment 

 
 
 

9. Present, Discuss and Consider Action on a Change Order to the Contract with 
McMahon Construction, LP for Reconstruction of George Haddaway Drive and 
Associated Pavements at Addison Airport to Include Reconstruction of the Landside 
Entry to the Fuel Farm From Addison Road and to Authorize the City Manager to 
Execute the Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $99,074.26. 

 

Airport Director Joel Jenkinson presented this item. He advised that the purpose of this item is to 
approve a change order to the contract with McMahon Construction, LP for reconstruction of 
George Haddaway Drive and associated pavements west and south of the fuel farm at Addison 



Town of Addison, Texas 
August 25, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 8 

 

Airport. The main portion of the change order is the reconstruction of the entry area of the fuel 
farm from Addison Road.  Photos of the current failed concrete and degraded asphalt locations 
were provided. Mr. Jenkinson reviewed the original project bid and two alternate bids. The base 
bid and Alternate No. 1 were awarded to McMahon Construction in the amount of $652,824.90, 
which is less than the budgeted amount of $753,000. Alternate No. 2 was not selected at the time 
since a future redesign of the entire fuel farm area is needed to address drainage issues. 

 
Mr. Jenkinson advised this change order includes the landside fuel farm entrance area between the 
Addison Road right-of way, the drive to the relocated Gate 3, and the landside entry gate to the 
fuel farm that is used by fuel delivery tankers. In addition, the Change Order includes some 
unanticipated fencing modifications and standard reconciliation of quantities of completed items 
within the current contract. 

 
MOTION: Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Quintanilla moved to approve this item as presented. 
Council Member Braun seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
10. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve the Professional 

Services Agreement Between the Town of Addison and Texas Coalition for 
Affordable Power, Inc. for Power to be Provided on and After January 1, 2023 and 
Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Agreement. 

 

Chief Financial Officer Steven Glickman presented this item. Margaret Somereve, Executive 
Director of the Texas Coalition for Affordable Power, was available for questions. Mr. Glickman 
advised that the Texas Coalition for Affordable Power (TCAP) aggregates the electric needs of 
165 members and includes the Town of Addison. He advised that previously TCAP looked for an 
electric purchase that would last for up to five years. The purchase always included risk premiums 
since it was difficult to know when to lock-in the prices, which are largely based on natural gas 
prices. 

 
Mr. Glickman advised that with the hope of reducing future electric costs, TCAP studied past 
natural gas cost trends to seek an opportunity to take advantage of trends in the natural gas futures 
market. This led to a new contracting proposal that is termed the TCAP "Strategic Hedging 
Program" (SHP). The program aims to look forward for advantageous future natural gas costs and 
over time award shorter-term electric supply contracts. TCAP’s plan is to purchase electricity for 
needs that are a year and a half to two years in the future. Mr. Glickman reviewed that had this 
program been in place under the current contract, it would have saved the Town approximately 
$70,000 to date. 

 
In response to a question from Councilmember Willesen, City Manager Pierson clarified that the 
Town could wait until the current contract expires at the end of 2022 and obtain a fixed rate 
contract then. He reviewed that this proposal is a one-year contract that the Town would be 
purchasing for two years in advance in hopes of obtaining better rates. 

 
Mr. Glickman advised that Agenda Item 11 is related to this Item 10. Mayor Chow read Item 11 
and the discussion of both continued. Mr. Glickman advised that Item 11 is for a Commercial 



Town of Addison, Texas 
August 25, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 8 

 

Electric Service Agreement (CESA) between the Town and GEXA Energy, the current Retail 
Electric Provider (REP) of the Texas Coalition for Affordable Power (TCAP). GEXA schedules 
the purchased electricity on the ERCOT grid to meet member demands, bills member cities, settles 
the market at ERCOT, assists with new individual account establishment and account termination, 
and interfaces with Addison's Transmission and Distribution Company, ONCOR Electric. 

 
Council Member Willesen expressed that he is in favor of locking in prices since natural gas prices 
are at historic lows. Mr. Pierson advised that cannot be done now since the current contract does 
not end until 2022. Ms. Somereve provided an illustrative slide showing the possible long-term 
effect of natural gas pricing and explained the averaging process. She advised that if this agreement 
is entered into now the Town could still lock-in rates later when gas prices start to increase. She 
provided information to the Council regarding the number of organizations/cities that have already 
approved the agreement and stated that several are currently considering it. 

 
MOTION: Council Member Walden moved to approve as presented. Council Member Hughes 
seconded the motion. Motion carried with a vote of 6-1. Council Member Willesen voted against 
the motion. 

 
Resolution No. R20-060: Texas Coalition for Affordable Power, Inc. Professional Services 
Agreement 

 
 
11. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve the Commercial 

Electricity Service Agreement Between the Town of Addison and GEXA Energy, LP 
for Power to be Provided on and After January 1, 2023, and Authorize the City 
Manager to Execute the Agreement. 

 

MOTION: Council Member Walden moved to approve as presented. Council Member Hughes 
seconded the motion. Motion carried with a vote of 6-1. Council Member Willesen voted against 
the motion. 

 
Resolution No. R20-059: GEXA Energy, LP Commercial Electric Service Agreement 

 

Adjourn Meeting 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Chow adjourned the meeting. 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 
 

Joe Chow, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

 
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



   
Council Meeting 5.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve the North Dallas County Water
Supply Corporation Operating Fund Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning
October 1, 2020 and Ending September 30, 2021.

BACKGROUND:
The North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation (NDCWSC) is a Texas
non-profit corporation established in 1991 with the approval of the City Councils
of the Town of Addison and City of Farmers Branch. The purpose of the
corporation, as set forth in Article Four of the Articles of Incorporation, is to
furnish and provide sewer services to the cities of Addison and Farmers Branch,
as well as to other towns and cities. This resolution would approve the North
Dallas County Water Supply Corporation Operating Fund Budget for Fiscal Year
2021.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - NDCWSC Budget Approval 



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO.  _ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS APPROVING THE NORTH DALLAS COUNTY WATER SUPPLY 
CORPORATION OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 
AND APPROVING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation was created by the City 
of Farmers Branch and the Town of Addison (collectively, the “Cities”) for the purpose of joint 
construction, financing, and administration of certain sewer system improvements; and, 

WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the Corporation require the Board of Directors to adopt a 
budget of expected revenues and proposed expenditures for the ensuing fiscal year; and, 

WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the Corporation state that the budget is not effective until the 
same has been approved by the Cities.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The Operating Fund Budget for the North Dallas County Water Supply 
Corporation for the year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021, attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. 

Section 2. This resolution shall be effective from and after its date of passage. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the 8th day of 
September 2020. 

Joe Chow, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

By:  
Irma Parker, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:   
Brenda McDonald, City Attorney 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



   
Council Meeting 6.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Development Services
Pillars: Excellence in Transportation Systems
Milestones: Promote Silver Line Development

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve an Interlocal Agreement with
Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) for Enhancements of Areas Along the
Cotton Belt/Silver Line Alignment and Authorize the City Manager to
Execute the Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $43,660.16.

BACKGROUND:
This agenda item is to approve an Interlocal Agreement that will provide funding
from the Town to supplement DART’s betterment program for aesthetic
enhancements along the Cotton Belt/Silver Line corridor adjacent to the Addison
Circle and future transit-oriented development area.

The DART Board’s Betterments Policy for Residential Areas provides a basic
level of funding for aesthetic enhancements based on the length of residential
adjacency to the rail corridor. The policy typically requires that any funds be
spent only where residential adjacencies exist. In Addison, there is currently 530
linear feet of multi-family residential property on the north side of the Cotton
Belt/Silver Line corridor from Quorum Drive to Spectrum Drive. Based on this
distance, the Betterment Policy provides $79,000 for enhancements to the
Cotton Belt/Silver Line project.

Additionally, in August of 2018, the DART Board approved additional betterments
funding to an amount equal to the cost of providing noise walls in locations with
residential adjacencies that did not meet DART’s criteria for sound mitigation.
The 530 linear feet of residential adjacency did not meet the criteria for sound
mitigation and qualified for $433,000 in additional funding.

These two programs together provide $512,000 to fund betterments in Addison.
Town staff has worked with DART staff to develop a plan for spending these
funds. First, the Town has requested, and DART has agreed to allow the Town to
apply these funds beyond just the 530 linear feet between Quorum Drive and
Spectrum Drive. Instead, the funds can be spent from Addison Road to Dallas
Parkway along the entirety of Addison Circle and the future transit-oriented
development area. Second, the Town has requested that the funds be utilized to
replace the standard chain link fencing proposed as part of the project with the



same 6 foot decorative fence that is used throughout the rest of the Addison
Circle district to improve aesthetics and create continuity within the district.
Additionally, the Town requested the installation of a concrete mow strip at the
base of the fencing to allow for easier landscape maintenance in the future.

The total cost to install these improvements from Addison Road to Dallas
Parkway exceeds DART’s betterment budget and creates a funding gap of
$43,660.16. The Town can either reduce the length of fencing and switch to a
chain link fence in the area between the rail station and Addison Road or
contribute the funds necessary to complete the enhanced fencing and mow strip
in this area. Staff believes that it would be beneficial to utilize DART’s contractor
to complete the fencing at one time along the entire span from Addison Road to
Dallas Parkway. This will create a cohesive look that will help blend the rail
station and future transit-oriented development area in with the existing character
of the Addison Circle district.

The attached Interlocal Agreement would commit the Town to providing the
$43,660.16 so that DART’s contractor could complete this work. This is an
unbudgeted item, but the cost can be covered by funds remaining from other
capital projects.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - DART ILA 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.  Page 1 of 9 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH DALLAS AREA RAPID 

TRANSIT FOR ENHANCEMENTS OF AREAS ALONG THE SILVER LINE 

ALIGNMENT; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 

AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 SECTION 1. The Interlocal Agreement with Dallas Area Rapid Transit for enhancements 

of areas along the Silver Line alignment, attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein, is hereby 

approved and the City Manager is authorized to execute the agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 

 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 8th day of SEPTEMBER 2020. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             

Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.  Page 2 of 9 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.  Page 3 of 9 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.  Page 4 of 9 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.  Page 5 of 9 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.  Page 6 of 9 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.  Page 7 of 9 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.  Page 8 of 9 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.  Page 9 of 9 

 



   
Council Meeting 7.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Airport
Pillars: Excellence in Transportation Systems

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve the Third Amendment to the
Concourse Plaza II  LTD., Ground Lease for the Property Located at 16051
Addison Road at Addison Airport, and Authorize the City Manager to
Execute the Agreement.

BACKGROUND:
Concourse Plaza II, LTD., the owner of the leasehold improvements located at
16051 Addison Road at Addison Airport, is requesting the Town of Addison's
consent to a proposed Third Amendment to the Ground Lease to extend the
lease term by an additional six years.

On August 14, 2018, the council approved the Second Amendment to Ground
Lease which, among other things, required the tenant to complete no less than
$1,500,000 in capital repairs and improvements necessary to renovate the
existing office building improvements within the first 36- months of the
amendment's effective date. Concourse Plaza satisfactorily completed the
required capital repairs and improvements with their actual construction costs
exceeding the stipulated amount by $492,270 (33%), which is the basis and
justification for the Tenant's request for the additional six years of lease term.

This Third Amendment extends the current lease term by 72 months to
September 30, 2060 and all other terms and conditions remain the same. The
City Attorney has approved this Third Amendment to Ground Lease as to form.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Concourse Plaza II LTD., Ground Lease 
Recommendation Memo 
Map 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.          Page 1 of 142 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO GROUND LEASE BETWEEN THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON AND CONCOURSE PLAZA II, LTD. FOR PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 16051 ADDISON ROAD, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 

 SECTION 1. The Third Amendment to Ground Lease between the Town of Addison and 

Concourse Plaza II, Ltd. for property located at 16051 Addison Road, a copy of which is attached 

to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to 

execute the agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 

 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 8th day of SEPTEMBER 2020. 
 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             

Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No.          Page 2 of 142 

 

























































































































































































































































































 



 

 
 
 
 

~ M E M O R A N D U M ~  
 

To:  Ashley D. Mitchell, Deputy City Manager 
 
From:  Bill Dyer, Real Estate Manager 
 
Cc:  Joel Jenkinson, Airport Director 
 
Date:  August 4, 2020 

 
Re: A Request for the Consideration and Consent of the Town of Addison for a 

Proposed Third Amendment to Ground Lease #0950-5101 (Concourse Plaza II, 
LTD., as “Tenant” ) commonly known as Addison Airport Office Center located at 
16051 Addison Road at Addison Airport, Texas (the “Demised Premises”) 

  
Requested Action  
  
Concourse Plaza II, LTD., Tenant to the above-referenced Ground Lease, is requesting the Town 
of Addison's consent to a proposed Third Amendment to Ground Lease (the “Amendment”) that 
will extend the current lease term by 6 years to September 30, 2060. 
 

On August 14, 2018, the council 
approved a Second Amendment 
extending the current Ground Lease 
term by 360 months to September 30, 
2054. That Second Amendment 
required Concourse Plaza complete no 
less than $1,500,000 in certain capital 
repairs and improvements within the 
first 36-months of the Second 
Amendment effective date. That Second 
Amendment also, amongst other things, 
increased Concourse Plaza’s rental rate 
by 22.6% to be in alignment with the 
prevailing market rental rates. 

 

William M. Dyer 
Real Estate Manager 
16051 Addison Road 
Suite #220 
Addison, Texas 75001 
 
Main:   972-392-4850 
Direct:  972-392-4856 
Fax:       972-788-9334 
bill.dyer@addisonairport.net 



 

Concourse Plaza has satisfactorily completed all required capital repairs and improvements 
pursuant to the Second Amendment with the Second Amendment Construction Cost Evidence1 
totaling $1,992,270, exceeding the minimum required sum of  $1,500,000 by $492,270. It is the 
overage, which serves as the basis and justification for the Tenant's request for the added 6-year 
term. The proposed Third Amendment provides for extending the current lease term the additional 
6- years to September 30, 2060 (see Exhibit “A”).  
 
Airport Management recommends the City Council give its consent to the proposed Third 
Amendment by authorizing the City Manager to sign the Amendment on behalf of the Landlord. 
The city attorney has reviewed the proposed Amendment and finds it to be acceptable to form for 
the City's purposes.  
 
Background Information   
  
The Demised Premises is located at the southwest corner of Addison Road and Keller Springs 
Road, at 16051 Addison Road, and consists of 1.80 acres of land. It is improved with a 42,916 
square-foot, two-story, multi-tenant office building with five attached box hangars consisting of 
8,359 square feet. Commercially it is known as Addison Airport Office Center. 
 
The Ground Lease was originally entered into on October 11, 1983 with Bunnell Properties, Inc. 
as tenant. Attached to the Ground Lease and made a part thereof is the “Addendum to Ground 
Lease” whereby among other things, the term “general office use” is included among the permitted 
uses of the Demised Premises and the Tenant shall give priority to qualifying aviation-oriented 
sub-leases when practical.  On April 22, 1997, landlord and tenant entered into a Settlement and 
First Amendment Agreement that, among other things, modified the Demised Premises by 
reducing the square footage of land to the current 78,506 square feet (1.80 acres) to accommodate 
the Addison Airport Tunnel alignment. By way of various assignments over the term Concourse 
Plaza II, LTD., a Texas limited partnership, is now the Tenant with Harkinson Investment 
Corporation as the General Partner. 
 
Summary of Ground Lease Terms  
  

Name of Tenant  Description  
Name of Tenant  Concourse Plaza II, LTD  
Lease #  0950-5101  
Lease Type   Ground Lease  
Ramp #  S12 
Property Name  Addison Airport Office Center  
Legal Address (1)  16051 Addison Rd., Addison, TX 75001  
   Addison Airport Office Center 
Primary Contact  Jeff Harkinson, Harkinson Investment Corp. GP  
Lease Commencement Date  10/01/1983  
Lease Expiration Date  09/30/2054  
Years Remaining  34.27  
Current Monthly Ground Rent  $4,252.41  
Current Annual Ground Rent  $51,028.92    ($0.65/SFL)  

 
1 As defined in the Second Amendment, being that Application for Payment #9, signed and notarized 
dated March 2, 2020 held on file in the Airport archives.  



 

Next Rental Adjustment  09/1/2020  
DCAD Est. Value of Improvements  $2,130,000 
Brief Description of Improvements  SWC of Addison Road and Keller Springs. 2-story 

structure consisting of @ 42,600 sf of multi-tenant office 
 space, 5 box hangars and covered parking. 

Year Built  1984  
       Land Area   78,506  
       Building Area   51,275 SF (excluding covered parking)  
            Rentable Office Area   42,916 RSF  
            Hangar/Air Serv.    8,359 SF  
       Ramp Area   7,700 SF  

  
Current Status  
  
The primary use of the leased premises is multi-tenant, general administrative offices with five (5) 
box aircraft hangars attached averaging about 1,680 rentable square feet each. The airport 
administrative offices have been in Addison Airport Office Center since October 2004 pursuant to 
a separate sub-lease agreement. 
 
The tenant is in good standing with the City. There are no extraordinary legal, environmental, or 
strategic considerations to report currently.  
 
Summary of Proposed Lease Amendment Terms  
 
The proposed Third Amendment to Ground Lease provides for a term extension of 72-
months or, to September 30, 2060 in recognition of the actual cost of capital repairs and 
improvements made more than the Second Amendment stipulated minimum.. 
 
Conclusion and Recommendation   
  
Concourse Plaza II, LTD.’s Ground Lease is scheduled to expire September 30, 2054. The Tenant 
is requesting the Town of Addison's consent to the proposed Third Amendment to Ground Lease 
(see Exhibit “A”).  The proposed Third Amendment to Ground Lease will extend the current lease 
term by 6 years, or 72 months, making the new proposed expiration date September 30, 2060. 
The Second Amendment provided for additional lease term based on $50,000 in approved capital 
repairs and improvements for each year of added term ($1,500,000/30 years = $50,000/year). On 
this same basis, the Tenant would be eligible for an additional 9.8 years of term based upon the 
$492,270 in qualified expenditures more than the Second Amendment minimum requirement. 
Because, the 9.8 years would cause the total remaining lease term to exceed the statutory limit of 
40-years, the proposed term modification for this Third Amendment is limited to 6-years. 
The requested action has little or no direct economic impact to the Airport.   
The requested action is consistent with the 2013 Addison Airport Strategic Plan.  The 2016 Airport 
Master Plan does not contemplate any material changes in the vicinity of the Demised Premises at 
the east end of Taxiway Sierra during its twenty (20) year planning horizon.   
 



 

Airport management recommends the Town of Addison give its consent to the requested action 
and authorize the city manager to execute the Third Amendment to Ground on behalf of the City. 
The City Attorney has reviewed the Third Amendment and finds it to be acceptable to form for 
the City's purposes. 
 
A copy of the Ground Lease is available upon request.  
  
  
  

















Concourse Plaza - 16051 Addison Road



   
Council Meeting 8.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the Sale of 0.4332 Acres of
Surplus Right-of-Way at the Southeast Corner of the Intersection of
Vitruvian Way and Spring Valley Road, and Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute the Special Warranty Deed.

BACKGROUND:
This item seeks the City Council's approval for the sale of 0.4332 acres of
surplus Right-of-Way (ROW) at the southeast corner of the intersection of
Vitruvian Way and Spring Valley Road to UDR, the adjacent property owner.

Vitruvian Way is a public street that runs through the Vitruvian Park development
and terminates at an intersection with Spring Valley Road. In 2011, George H.
W. Bush Elementary School was under construction. Planning for the increase in
traffic anticipated from the Vitruvian Park Development and to align the street
with the driveway of the new school, the Town purchased a small
commercial property at the southwest corner of the Vitruvian Way and Spring
Valley Road intersection and realigned the road in order to shift the intersection
to the west by about 150 feet. While the ROW for the street was extended to the
west to encompass the acquired property, the ROW associated with the prior
alignment was never abandoned. This resulted in surplus ROW at this
intersection beyond what is needed for the street and associated pedestrian
improvements. This can be seen in the attached exhibit. It should be noted that
the existing public art installation and plaza area will remain within the Town's
ROW and will not be impacted by the abandonment.

The approved concept plan for Vitruvian Park assumes that the Town will
abandon the surplus ROW to be included in the private development on either
side of Vitruvian Way. UDR is currently in the early stages of exploring
developing the property at the southeast corner of the intersection. Therefore,
the timing is appropriate to formally abandon the surplus ROW and transfer
ownership to UDR.

State law stipulates that surplus ROW can be abandoned to the adjacent
property owner(s) in exchange for a market rate compensation. In the Fall of
2019, the Town contracted with Pyles Whatley Corporation to appraise the
surplus ROW area at both the southeast and southwest corners of the



intersection to determine their market value. Pyles Whatley determined that the
value of the 0.4332 acres as the southeast corner is valued at $283,080.00.
UDR has agreed to pay the Town this amount.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Special Warranty Deed - Southeast Corner 
Property Exhibit 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 1 of 8 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R20-____ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING A SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED BETWEEN THE TOWN OF 

ADDISON AND DCO REALTY, INC., FOR THE SURPLUS PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF VITRUVIAN WAY AND SPRING 

VALLEY ROAD, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 

AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1.  The Special Warranty Deed between the Town of Addison and DCO Realty, 

Inc., for the surplus property located at the southeast corner of Vitruvian Way and Spring Valley 

Road, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City 

Manager is hereby authorized to execute the Deed. 

 

SECTION 2.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 

 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 8th day of SEPTEMBER 2020. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             

Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 2 of 8 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 3 of 8 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 4 of 8 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 5 of 8 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 6 of 8 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 7 of 8 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 8 of 8 

 

 



.433 

acres

.147 

acres

DCO 

Realty, Inc. 

Property

DCO 

Talisker, LP 

Property



   
Council Meeting 9.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Authorizing the Sale of 0.1470 Acres of
Surplus Right-of-Way at the Southwest Corner of the Intersection of
Vitruvian Way and Spring Valley Road, and Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute the Deed.

BACKGROUND:
This item seeks the City Council's approval for the sale of 0.1470 acres of
surplus Right-of-Way (ROW) at the southwest corner of the intersection of
Vitruvian Way and Spring Valley Road to UDR, the adjacent property owner.

Vitruvian Way is a public street that runs through the Vitruvian Park development
and terminates at an intersection with Spring Valley Road. In 2011, George H.
W. Bush Elementary School was under construction. Planning for the increase in
traffic anticipated from the Vitruvian Park Development and to align the street
with the driveway of the new school, the Town purchased a small
commercial property at the southwest corner of the Vitruvian Way and Spring
Valley Road intersection and realigned the road in order to shift the intersection
to the west by about 150 feet. While the ROW for the street was extended to the
west to encompass the acquired property, the ROW associated with the prior
alignment was never abandoned. This resulted in surplus ROW at this
intersection beyond what is needed for the street and associated pedestrian
improvements. This can be seen in the attached exhibit. It should be noted that
the existing plaza area will remain within the ROW and will not be impacted by
the abandonment.

The approved concept plan for Vitruvian Park assumes that the Town will
abandon the surplus ROW to be included in the private development on either
side of Vitruvian Way. UDR is currently in the early stages of exploring
developing the property at the southeast corner of the intersection. Therefore,
the timing is appropriate to formally abandon the surplus ROW and transfer
ownership to UDR. Since the parties are going through the process for the
southeast corner, it makes sense to go ahead and address the southwest corner
as well.

State law stipulates that surplus ROW can be abandoned to the adjacent
property owner(s) in exchange for a market rate compensation. In the Fall of



2019, the Town contracted with Pyles Whatley Corporation to appraise the
surplus ROW area at both the southeast and southwest corners of the
intersection to determine their market value. Pyles Whatley determined that the
value of the 0.1470 acres as the southwest corner is valued at $76,752.00. UDR
has agreed to pay the Town this amount.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Special Warranty Deed - Southwest Corner 
Property Exhibit 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 1 of 9 

 

RESOLUTION NO. R20-____ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING A SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED BETWEEN THE TOWN OF 

ADDISON AND DCO TALISKER, LP, FOR THE SURPLUS PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF VITRUVIAN WAY AND SPRING 

VALLEY ROAD, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 

AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1.  The Special Warranty Deed between the Town of Addison and DCO 

Talisker, LP, for the surplus property located at the southwest corner of Vitruvian Way and Spring 

Valley Road, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The 

City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the Deed. 

 

SECTION 2.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 

 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 8th day of SEPTEMBER 2020. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             

Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 2 of 9 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 3 of 9 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 4 of 9 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 5 of 9 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 6 of 9 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 7 of 9 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 8 of 9 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R20-___         Page 9 of 9 

 

 



.433 

acres

.147 

acres

DCO 

Realty, Inc. 

Property

DCO 

Talisker, LP 

Property



   
Council Meeting 10.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve an Interlocal Agreement with
the Trinity River Authority for the Monitoring of Wastewater for Certain
Industrial Uses and Authorize the City Manager to Execute the
Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $9,500.

BACKGROUND:
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) requires that uses categorized as
Significant Industrial Users (SIU) be monitored at the local level to ensure
that they are disposing of wastewater in compliance with Federal regulations. An
example of a SIU in Addison is Plastech Corporation at 15606 Wright Brothers
Drive. They form plastics into a variety of products, some of which co-mingle
pesticides with plastics for products like flea collars. The wastewater generated
in the industrial areas of Addison flows to and is treated by the Trinity River
Authority (TRA). For this reason, the Town has historically contracted with the
TRA to conduct the necessary inspections, sampling and testing of these SIUs.

This annual agreement, provided as an exhibit in the attached resolution, is for a
not to exceed amount of $9,500. This is equal to the amount of the Fiscal Year
2020 Interlocal Agreement. There is no budget impact to the Town as the cost of
the inspections are charged to the SIUs.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Interlocal Agreement Trinity River Authority 



 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY  RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

SOLO PAGE + EXHIBIT A 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON AND TRINITY RIVER AUTHORITY OF TEXAS 

FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER ANALYSIS AND SURVEYS OF 

INDUSTRIAL USERS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $9,500.00 FOR 

FY2020-21, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 

CONTRACT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS: 

 

 Section 1. The Interlocal Agreement for Technical Services between the Town of 

Addison and Trinity River Authority of Texas for water and wastewater analysis and surveys of 

industrial users in an amount not to exceed $9,500.00, a copy of which is attached to this 

Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute 

the agreement. 

 

 Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the 

8th day of September, 2020. 

 

 

       ___________________________  

       Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _______________________________      

 Irma Parker, City Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By: _______________________________      

 Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

  EXHIBIT A – PAGE 1 



EXHIBIT A 

  EXHIBIT A – PAGE 2 



EXHIBIT A 

  EXHIBIT A – PAGE 3 



EXHIBIT A 

  EXHIBIT A – PAGE 4 



EXHIBIT A 

  EXHIBIT A – PAGE 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 

  EXHIBIT A – PAGE 6 



EXHIBIT A 

  EXHIBIT A – PAGE 7 



EXHIBIT A 

  EXHIBIT A – PAGE 8 



EXHIBIT A 

  EXHIBIT A – PAGE 9 



EXHIBIT A 

  EXHIBIT A – PAGE 10 

 



   
Council Meeting 11.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health
Milestones: Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial

Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance
to Levy Taxes for the Town of Addison, Texas, and to Fix and Adopt the
Tax Rate of $0.608676 for the Town on All Taxable Property for the Fiscal
Year Beginning October 1, 2020 and Ending September 30, 2021.

BACKGROUND:
This is the second of two public hearings regarding the proposed tax rate for the
Town of Addison.

The proposed property tax rate for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 is $0.608676 per
$100 of valuation. The proposed rate is made of the following components:
  
Tax Rate Component Amount (per $100 of

valuation)
Maintenance & Operations:  General Fund $0.411192
Maintenance & Operations:  Economic
Development

$0.023716

Maintenance & Operations:  Infrastructure
Investment

$0.006201

Interest & Sinking (Debt) $0.167567
Total Proposed Rate for the FY 2021 $0.608676
  
The State's Truth-in-Taxation law also requires calculation and publication of
each taxing entity's no-new revenue tax rate, voter-approval tax rate, and de
minimus rate:
  
Tax Rate Definition Amount (per

$100 of
valuation)



No-New
Revenue Tax
Rate

The no-new-revenue tax rate is the tax rate for the 2020 tax
year that will raise the same amount of property tax revenue
for Town of Addison from the same properties in both the
2019 tax year and the 2020 tax year.

$0.637851

Voter-Approval
Tax Rate

The voter-approval tax rate is the highest tax rate that Town
of Addison may adopt without holding an election to seek
voter approval of the rate, unless the de minimis rate for
Town of Addison exceeds the voter-approval tax rate for
Town of Addison.

$0.701933

De Minimis Rate The de minimis rate is the rate equal to the sum of the
no-new-revenue maintenance and operations rate for Town
of Addison, the rate that will raise $500,000, and the current
debt rate for Town of Addison.

$0.675536

 
These rates were published in the August 29, 2020 edition of the Dallas Morning
News. Included with this agenda item is a copy of the publication notice.
 
The proposed budget recommends a property tax rate of $0.608676 per $100
valuation, which does not exceed the no-new revenue tax rate.  This proposed
rate is higher than last year’s adopted rate of $0.583500 per $100 of valuation.
 
The average home value for the Town of Addison is $335,597, which generates
a tax bill of $2,043.   Last year, the average home value was $329,891 which
generated a tax bill of $1,925.  The average tax payer would pay about $118
more in property taxes than last year.  Individual taxes may increase or decrease
depending on the change in the taxable value of your property.
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recomments approval.

Attachments
Notice of Vote on the Tax Rate 
Presentation - Fiscal Year 2021 Tax Rate Adoption 
Ordinance - Fiscal Year 2021 Tax Rate Adoption 



NOTICE OF MEETING TO VOTE
ON TAX RATE

A tax rate of .616878 per $100 valuation has been proposed by the governing body of Town of
Addison.

PROPOSED TAX RATE $0.616878 per $100
NO-NEW REVENUE TAX RATE $0.637851 per $100
VOTER-APPROVAL TAX RATE $0.701933 per $100
DE MINIMIS RATE $0.675536 per $100

The no-new-revenue tax rate is the tax rate for the 2020 tax year that will raise the same amount
of property tax revenue for Town of Addison from the same properties in both the 2019 tax year
and the 2020 tax year.

The voter-approval tax rate is the highest tax rate that Town of Addison may adopt without
holding an election to seek voter approval of the rate, unless the de minimis rate for Town of
Addison exceeds the voter-approval tax rate for Town of Addison.

The de minimis rate is the rate equal to the sum of the no-new-revenue maintenance and
operations rate for Town of Addison, the rate that will raise $500,000, and the current debt rate
for Town of Addison.

The proposed tax rate is not greater than the no-new-revenue tax rate. This means that Town of
Addison is not proposing to increase property taxes for the 2020 tax year.

A public meeting to vote on the proposed tax rate will be held on September 8th, 2020 at 7:30
pm at 14681 Midway Road Addison TX 75201.

The proposed tax rate is not greater than the voter-approval tax rate. As a result, Town of
Addison is not required to hold an election at which voters may accept or reject the proposed
tax rate. However, you may express your support for or opposition to the proposed tax rate
by contacting the members of the Town of Addison of Town of Addison at their offices or by
attending the public meeting
mentioned above.

YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE ABOVE RATES CAN BE CALCULATED AS
FOLLOWS:

property tax amount=(tax rate) X (taxable value of your property)/100

The members of the governing body voted on the proposed tax rate as follows:
FOR:
AGAINST:
PRESENT and not voting:
ABSENT:

The 86th Texas Legislature modified the manner in which the voter-approval tax rate is
calculated to limit the rate of growth of property taxes in the state.

The following table compares the taxes imposed on the average residence homestead by
Town of Addison last year to the taxes proposed to be imposed on the average residence
homestead by Town of Addison this year:

2019 2020 Change

Total Tax Rate (per $100 of
value)

$0.583500 $0.616878 increase of $0.033378 OR
5.72%

Average homestead taxable
value

$329,891 $336,985 increase of 2.15%

Tax on average homestead $1,925 $2,079 increase of $154 OR 7.99%

Total tax levy on all
properties

$26,778,332 $26,597,391 increase of $180,941 OR
-0.68%

For assistance with tax calculations, please contact the tax assessor for Town of Addison
at 214.653.7811 or TNTHELP@dallascounty.org, or visit www.dallascounty.org/tax/ for
more information.



Tax Rate Adoption
FY2021

1



Property Tax Rate Approval Process
Key Dates Council Action

Monday, July 27th Receipt of Certified Estimate from DCAD.

Thursday, Aug. 20th Receipt of Certified Values from DCAD.

Saturday, Aug. 29th Publication of Notice of Proposed Tax Rate.

Tuesday, Sept. 1st First public hearing on budget and tax rate.

Tuesday, Sept. 8th Second public hearing on budget and tax rate.

Tuesday, Sept. 8th Adoption of FY2021 Budget and Tax Rate.

Thursday, Oct. 1st Begin Fiscal Year.

2



Property Tax Values and Tax Rate

Certified Assessed Value FY2021 ~$4.93B

Current Certified Assessed Value FY2020 ~$4.82B

Current Property Tax Rate FY2020 $.583500/100

Proposed Property Tax Rate FY2021 $.608676/100

3



Property Tax Rates

FY2019 FY2020 FY2021

No-New-Revenue
(Effective) $0.527064/100 $0.552371/100 $0.593260/100

Voter-approval
(Rollback) $0.553323/100 $0.591133/100 $0.627315/100

Proposed $0.550000/100  $0.583500/100  $0.608676/100  

4



Property Tax Revenues
FY2019
Actual

FY2020
Budget

FY2021 
Proposed

% Change
FY20 to 

FY21

General Fund (O&M) $17,296,733 $18,781,674 $19,546,156 4.1%

Economic Development 
Fund (O&M) 1,090,118 1,103,081 1,127,348 2.2%

Infrastructure Investment 
Fund (O&M) 285,032 288,421 294,767 2.2%

Debt Service Fund (I&S) 6,606,889 6,966,638 7,965,369 14.3%

Total Tax Revenue $25,278,773 $27,139,814 $28,933,627  6.6%

5



Property Tax Rates

0.34 0.35 0.38 0.36 0.36 0.34 0.38 0.38 0.40 0.41 0.43 0.44

0.16
0.18

0.20 0.22 0.21 0.22
0.20 0.18 0.15 0.14

0.15 0.17

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

O&M Debt

* Rates are rounded to the nearest penny.

6



FY2021 Tax Rates - Comparison 
Cities

0.63 0.61 0.61 0.59 0.59 0.58

0.52 0.49
0.45 0.45 0.44 0.44

0.28 0.26

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

Median: 0.502300  
Mean: 0.495004

*FY2021 Tax rates unavailable; 
FY2020 Tax rate presented.

7



FY2021 Tax Rates – Dallas County
0.95

0.84
0.80 0.80

0.78 0.77 0.76 0.74 0.73 0.72 0.70 0.70 0.69 0.68 0.68 0.67 0.66
0.63 0.61 0.61 0.60 0.59 0.59 0.58 0.56

0.46 0.44

0.35

0.28
0.26

0.23

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

Median: 0.669998  
Mean: 0.628142

*FY2021 Tax rates unavailable; 
FY2020 Tax rate presented.

8



Impact on Average Homeowner
FY2020 FY2021

Average Home Value $430,632 $432,871

Tax Rate 0.583500 0.608676

Average Taxable Value $329,891 $335,597

Annual Tax Bill $1,925 $2,043

Based on the average taxable home value of 
$335,597, the average residential taxpayer would 
pay $118 (≈$9.83 per month) more than last year.

9



FY2021 Property Tax Rates 
Combined

Addison
0.608676

24%

Dallas County
0.243100

9%

Parkland Hospital
0.269500

11%DCCC
0.124000

5%

Dallas ISD
1.287035

51%

Combined Tax Rate
$2.532311

10

*Note: All other entities tax rates are 
the current year tax rate or proposed 
tax rates



Questions?

11



Tax Code 26.05

• “I move that the property tax rate be increased 

by the adoption of a tax rate of $0.608676 per 

$100 valuation, which does not exceed the no-

new revenue tax rate”.

12



ORDINANCE NO.  _________________   PAGE 1 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS  

ORDINANCE NO.  ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING TAXES FOR THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS AND FIXING AND ADOPTING THE TAX RATE ON ALL 
TAXABLE PROPERTY FOR THE YEAR 2020 AT A RATE OF $0.608676 
PER ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) VALUATION ON ALL 
TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON AS OF JANUARY 1, 2020, THE SAID TAX RATE 
HAVING A MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS COMPONENT AND A 
DEBT SERVICE COMPONENT; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY AND 
INTEREST FOR DELINQUENT TAXES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Tax Code Chapter 26, the Tax Assessor-Collector for the 
Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) has calculated the tax rate for the fiscal year 2020-2021 
which cannot be exceeded without requisite publications and public hearings; and 

 

WHEREAS, the tax rate for the fiscal year 2020-2021 as initially contemplated (proposed) 
by the City Council did not, and as adopted herein does, exceed the said rate calculated by the 
Tax Assessor-Collector; and 

 

WHEREAS  ̧the Town of Addison complied with the State of Texas Truth-in-Taxation 
laws and advertised the proposed tax rate and conducted two public hearings on the tax rate, and 
all notices and hearings and other applicable steps required by law as a prerequisite to the passage, 
approval, and adoption of this Ordinance have been timely and properly given and held; and 

 

WHEREAS  ̧Section 26.05(a), Tex. Tax Code, provides that the tax rate consists of two 
components (one of which will impose the amount of taxes needed to pay debt service, and the 
other of which will impose the amount of taxes needed to fund maintenance and operation 
expenses for the next year), and each of such components must be approved separately, the tax 
rate set forth herein consists of those two components and they are approved separately; and 

 

WHEREAS  ̧upon full review and consideration of the matter, the City Council is of the 
opinion that the tax rate for the year 2020 set, fixed and adopted herein below is proper. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 



ORDINANCE NO.  _________________   PAGE 2 
 

 

Section 1. That there is hereby levied and ordered to be assessed and collected an ad 
valorem tax rate of $0.608676 on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed valuation for 
all taxable property located in the Town of Addison on the 1st day of January 2020, and not 
exempted from taxation by the constitution and laws of the State of Texas to provide for the 
expenses of the Town of Addison for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending 
September 30, 2021. The said tax is made up of five components, as set forth in Section 2 and 
Section 3 of this Ordinance. 

 

 

 

Section 2. That $0.441109 of said taxes shall be for the maintenance and operations of 
the Town of Addison, of which $0.411192 of said taxes shall be for the purposes of the General 
Fund, $0.023716 shall be for the purposes of economic development, and $0.006201 shall be for 
the purposes of the Infrastructure Investment Fund. 

 

Section 3.  That $0.167567 of said taxes shall be for the purpose of paying interest and 
principal on the General Obligation and Certificates of Obligation debt for the Town of Addison. 

 

Section 4.  That the Tax Assessor-Collector or his /her designee is hereby authorized to 
assess and collect the tax rates and amounts herein levied. 

 

Section 5. That the taxes levied by this Ordinance shall be due and payable on October 
1, 2020 and shall become delinquent on February 1, 2021. Penalty and interest will attach and 
accrue on delinquent taxes as provided by Section 33.01 of the Texas Tax Code. 

 

Section 6.  Taxes that are and remain delinquent on July 1, 2021 incur an additional 
penalty not to exceed twenty percent (20%) of the amount of delinquent taxes, penalty and interest 
collected; such additional penalty is to defray the costs of collection due to pursuant to the contract 
with the Town’s attorney authorized by Section 6.30 of the Texas Tax Code, as amended. 

 

Section 7.  The above and foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
into this Ordinance and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 

Section 8.  That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 
adoption and publication as may be required by applicable law, including the Town Charter. 



ORDINANCE NO.  _________________   PAGE 3 
 

 

 On the following motion by : “I move that the property tax rate 
be increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $0.608676 per $100 valuation, which does not 
exceed the no-new revenue tax rate”; seconded by , the above and foregoing 
ordinance was passed and approved by roll call vote as follows: 

 

Mayor Joe Chow ________ 

Mayor Pro Tempore Lori Ward ________       

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Guillermo Quintanilla________ 

Councilmember Tom Braun________      

Councilmember Ivan Hughes ________       

Councilmember Paul Walden ________    

Councilmember Marlin Willesen ________   

 

   voted in favor of the motion ________ voted against the motion 

 

Motion carried    

 

 

   



ORDINANCE NO.  _________________   PAGE 4 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the 
8th  day of September, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

Joe Chow, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By:    
Irma Parker, City Secretary 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By:    
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 



   
Council Meeting 12.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health
Milestones: Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial

Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance
of the Town of Addison, Texas Approving and Adopting the Annual Budget
for the Fiscal year Beginning October 1, 2020 and Ending September 30,
2021, and Making Appropriations for Each Office, Department, Agency and
Project of the Town, Providing That Expenditures for Said Fiscal Year Shall
Be made in Accordance with the Adopted Budget, Unless Otherwise
Authorized by an Ordinance Adopted By the City Council; Providing for
Emergency Expenditures and Expenditures as Otherwise Allowed By Law.

BACKGROUND:
This is the first public hearing regarding the Town of Addison’s Annual Budget for
Fiscal Year (FY) 2021.  The proposed FY 2021 operating budget requests an
appropriation of $84,747,215. Listed below is a breakdown of funds:
 
Fund Expenditure Amount
General $39,440,786
Hotel 5,838,564
Debt Service Combined 7,648,653
Economic Development 2,019,815
Airport 7,154,116
Utility 14,406,405
Stormwater 3,596,943
Combined Replacement 3,049,275
Combined Grants 13,700
Combined Special Revenues 1,578,959
Total $84,747,215



Significant items included in the proposed operating budget include: 
Significant items included in the proposed operating budget include:
Revenues for all funds total approximately $78.9 million, a reduction of
$4.6M compared to FY 2020.  Primary revenues sources are property tax
($28.8 million), sales tax ($12.3 million), hotel occupancy tax ($4.2 million)
and utility service fees ($13.9 million).
Staffing level of 299.8 Full-time Equivalent (FTE) positions. This is an
increase of 9.0 FTE’s over FY 2020. Employee compensation allocation of
approximately $512 thousand in all funds for merit increases plus benefits.
This provides a pool equivalent to a 2 percent merit increase.
Significant decision packages include: 

Celestial Park Improvements ($103 thousand),
Irrigation Management System Upgrade ($75 thousand),
Risk and Resilience Assessment and Emergency Response
Plan ($100 thousand),
Facilities Maintenance Funds ($180 thousand),
Public Safety Facility Maintenance Funds ($85 thousand), 
Water Quality Supervisor ($85 thousand),
Design and Construction Details Standards Upgrade ($200 thousand),
Addison Circle Transit Oriented Development Funds ($318 thousand),
Special Area Study Funds ($140 thousand), 
Funds for Enhanced Street Maintenance ($292 thousand).

The FY 2021 proposed five-year capital improvements
budget totals $37.2 million.  Significant projects include: 

Midway Road Reconstruction ($10.4 million),
Vitruvian Development Next Phase ($3.9 million),
HVAC Replacements ($1.1 million), 
Roof Replacements ($2.9 million),
Keller Springs Reconstruction ($4.0 million),
License Plate Recognition System Expansion ($1.4 million),
Completion of Airport Customs Facility Construction ($2.6 million),
Celestial Ground Storage Tank Rehabilitation ($1.7 million),
Chlorine Booster Station ($1.0 million),
Water System Improvements ($1.4 million),
Stormwater Assessment Basin Improvements ($2.8 million).

Texas Local Government Code (LGC) Sec. 102.006 requires the governing body
of a municipality to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and provide for
public notice of the date, time, and location of the hearing.  This notice was
published in the Dallas Morning News on Friday, August 16, 2019. 

The proposed budget can be found at the following
link: https://addisontexas.net/finance/budget 

https://addisontexas.net/finance/budget


RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Advertisement - Public Hearing 
Presentation - Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Adoption 
Ordinance - Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Adoption 

https://addisontexas.net/finance/budget




Budget Public Hearing
FY2021

1



Staffing Summary
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

General Fund 223.2 224.2 231.2 235.2 232.8

Hotel Fund 16.7 16.7 17.0 17.0 9.0

Eco. Devo. Fund 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

Airport Fund 3.4 3.4 4.4 4.4 19.6

Utility Fund 19.2 19.2 22.2 25.2 27.4

Stormwater Fund 2.0 2.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

Cap. Proj. Fund - - - 1.0 3.0

TOTAL 268.5 269.5 281.8 290.8 299.8

2



All Funds Staffing History

261.2 260.2

270.7

276.3

282.7

268.5 269.5

281.8

290.8

299.8

240.0

250.0

260.0

270.0

280.0

290.0

300.0

310.0

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021

3



Departmental Staffing Summary
PERSONNEL SUMMARY 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
GENERAL FUND

City Secretary 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
City Manager 7.5 6.0 7.0 8.0 7.5 5.5 5.5 6.5 6.5 5.9
Finance 8.0 8.0 7.5 9.7 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 11.8
General Services 8.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 4.8 4.8 5.5 5.5 5.5
Municipal Court 5.4 5.4 5.7 5.7 5.8 5.8 5.8 5.0 5.0 5.0
Human Resources 5.2 4.2 4.2 3.5 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.4
Information Technology 6.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Police 73.8 73.8 75.3 79.8 79.8 71.0 71.0 72.0 74.0 74.0
Emergency Communications 13.5 13.5 13.5 13.5 14.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Fire 52.0 52.0 55.3 55.3 55.3 56.0 57.0 57.0 58.0 58.0
Development Services 7.2 7.2 7.2 7.2 7.2 11.0 11.0 12.1 13.1 13.1
Streets 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.4 5.4 6.4 6.4 7.4 7.4 7.4
Parks 20.0 21.0 21.0 21.0 22.0 22.0 22.0 25.0 25.0 25.0
Recreation 14.6 14.6 14.6 15.1 15.1 15.7 15.7 15.7 15.7 15.7

GENERAL FUND TOTAL 226.2 222.7 228.3 236.2 241.6 223.2 224.2 231.2 235.2 232.8

HOTEL FUND 15.0 14.5 16.7 14.8 14.8 16.7 16.7 17.0 17.0 9.0
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
FUND 1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

AIRPORT FUND 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.4 3.4 3.4 4.4 19.6
UTILITY FUND 16.0 18.0 18.3 16.6 17.6 19.2 19.2 22.2 25.2 27.4
STORMWATER FUND 0.0 0.0 1.4 1.7 1.7 2.0 2.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 3.0

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 261.2 260.2 270.7 276.3 282.7 268.5 269.5 281.8 290.8 299.8

CHANGE (0.3) (1.0) 10.5 5.6 6.4 (14.2) 1.0 12.3 9.0 9.0

*Positions are shown as full-time 
equivalents (FTEs). 4



Fines &
 Penalties

5

General Fund Overview



General Fund Overview
(excluding transfers)

FY2020 
Budget

FY2021 
Prop. Difference

Total 
Revenue $39.1M 38.8M ($0.3)M

Total 
Expense $39.1M 38.7M ($0.4)M

Revenue 
to 
Expense

- $0.1M $0.1M

• Ad valorem taxes = 
$19.4M

• Increase of $0.7M

• Sales tax = $12.3M
• Decrease of $1.4M

6



General Fund Revenues
$38.8M

 $-

 $5.0

 $10.0

 $15.0

 $20.0

 $25.0

M
illi

on
s

FY19 Actual FY2020 Budget FY21 Proposed

7



General Fund Proposed Expenses 
$38.7M

Personnel Services
64.3%

Supplies
4.0%

Maintenance
9.3%

Contractual 
Services

18.7%

Capital 
Replacement/Lease

3.7%

8



Self-Funded Project Fund Overview

FY2020 
Budget

FY2021 
Prop. Difference

Total 
Revenue $4.0M $0.7M ($3.3)M

Total 
Expense $4.5M $1.2M ($3.3)M

Revenue 
to 
Expense

($0.5)M ($0.5)M -

• Funding Source
• General Fund Transfer = 

$0.7M
• Expenses

• Special Area Study = $0.1M
• Addison Circle TOD = 

$0.3M
• Celestial Park 

Improvements = $0.1M
• Enhanced Street 

Maintenance - $0.3M

9



Project Funding

Neighborhood Security – East Addison $27,500

Smoke Detector Battery Replacement Program $3,000

Ballistic Gear $30,000

Addison Circle TOD $318,000

Celestial Park Improvements $102,500

TOTAL $481,000

FY2021 Self-Funded Projects

10



Project Funding
Special Area Study $140,000

Enhanced Street Maintenance $292,000

TOTAL $432,000

FY2020 Self-Funded Projects 
(Rolling Forward)

11



Hotel Fund Overview
(excluding transfers)

FY2020 
Budget

FY2021
Prop. Difference

Total 
Revenue $7.6M $5.3M ($2.3)M

Total 
Expense $7.2M $5.5M ($1.7)M

Revenue 
to 
Expense

$0.4M ($0.2)M ($0.6)M

• Hotel Taxes = $4.2M

• Special Events 
Revenues = $1.1M

12



Hotel Fund Proposed Expenses
$5.5M 
(By function)

Addison Theatre Centre
5.8%

Conference Centre
3.7%

General Hotel 
Operations

2.8%

Marketing
20.4%

Performing Arts
6.0%

Special Events
44.1%

Special Events 
Operations

17.1%

13



Economic Development Fund

FY2020 
Budget

FY2021 
Prop. Difference

Total 
Revenue $1.9M $1.6M ($0.3)M

Total 
Expense $1.9M $2.0M $0.1M

Revenue 
to 
Expense

- ($0.4)M ($0.4)M

• Funding Sources 
• Ad Valorem = $1.1M
• Hotel Fund Transfer = 

$0.4M
• Expenses

• Incentives = $0.1M
• Operations = $1.0M
• Tourism = $0.8M

14



Utility Operating Fund
(excluding transfers)

FY2020 
Budget

FY2021 
Prop. Difference

Total 
Revenue $13.1M $14.0M $0.9M

Total 
Expense $13.1M $13.9M $0.8M

Revenue 
to 
Expense

- $0.1M $0.1M

• Water 
• Sales = $7.5M
• Purchases = $3.7M

• Wastewater
• Charges = $6.3M
• Treatment = $3.7M

• Operations = $5.0M
• Debt Service = $1.5M

15



Water and Sewer Rate Changes

Sample Residential Water and Sewer Bill

Consumption Existing New Rate Change

5,000 gallons $56.33 $59.71 $3.38

8,000 gallons $82.82 $87.79 $4.97

10,000 gallons $100.48 $106.51 $6.03

16



Stormwater Operating Fund
(excluding transfers)

FY2020 
Adopt.

FY2021 
Prop. Difference

Total 
Revenue $2.4M $2.5M $0.1M

Total 
Expense $1.5M $1.3M ($0.2)M

Revenue 
to 
Expense

$0.9M $1.2M $0.3M

• Drainage Fees = $2.4M
• Rates increasing per 

adopted ordinance

• Expenses = $1.2M
• For operations only
• Debt payment of $0.5M

17



Airport Fund Overview

FY2020 
Bud.

FY2021 
Prop. Difference

Total 
Revenue $6.4M $5.2M ($1.2)M

Total 
Expense $5.6M $5.1M ($0.5)M

Revenue 
to 
Expense

$0.8M $0.1M ($0.7)M

• Funding Sources 
• Service Fees = $0.8M
• Leases = $4.3M

• Expenses
• Operations = $4.3M
• Debt = $0.8M

18



Capital Improvement Projects
All Funds

19

Est. 
FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 Total

General Obligation & Cert. of Obligation $12.0M $26.1M $28.7M $20.0M $31.6M $118.4M

General Fund Self-Funded Projects 2.7M 0.1M - - - 2.8M

Streets Self-Funded Fund 0.1M - - - 0.5M 0.6M

Infrastructure Investment Fund - - - - - -

Utility Certificates of Obligation 2.2M 4.8M 1.6M 1.3M 1.9M 11.8M

Utility Fund Cash Reserves 1.5M 0.2M 0.4M 0.3M 0.5M 2.9M

Stormwater Certificates of Obligation 1.5M 0.5M - - - 2.0M

Stormwater Fund Cash Reserves 0.5M 2.2M 1.7M 1.2M - 5.6M

Airport Fund Certificates of Obligation 6.5M 0.5M - - - 7.0M

Airport Fund Grant Funds 1.5M 0.8M 0.6M 6.9M 1.0M 10.8M

Airport Fund Cash Reserves 3.1M 2.0M 0.3M 0.9M 0.5M 6.8M

TOTAL PROJECTS 31.6M 37.2M $33.3M $30.6M $36.0M $168.7M



QUESTIONS?

20



OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 1 of 38 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING AND 
ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 
OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021, AND MAKING 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR EACH  OFFICE, DEPARTMENT, AGENCY, AND 
PROJECT OF THE TOWN,  PROVIDING THAT EXPENDITURES FOR SAID 
FISCAL YEAR SHALL BE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ADOPTED 
BUDGET, UNLESS OTHERWISE AUTHORIZED BY AN ORDINANCE 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL; PROVIDING FOR EMERGENCY 
EXPENDITURES AND EXPENDITURES AS OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEAL CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Charter and State law, the City Manager of the Town 
of Addison, Texas (“City”) has heretofore filed with the City Secretary a proposed budget for the 
City covering the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021; and  

WHEREAS, the City, in accordance with law, posted the proposed budget on its internet 
website and made the same available for inspection by any person, and held two public hearings 
regarding the proposed budget and provided notice of such public hearings, and during the public 
hearings on the budget, all interested persons were given the opportunity to be heard for or against 
any item contained in said budget, and all said persons were heard, after which the public hearings 
were closed; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council, upon full consideration of the matter, is of the opinion that 
the budget hereinafter set forth is proper and should be approved and adopted; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  The above and foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated into 
this Ordinance and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Section 2. That the budget for the Town of Addison, Texas for the Fiscal Year beginning 
October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021, a true and correct copy of which is attached to 
this Ordinance as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted and approved. As set forth in the said budget, the 
sum of $84,747,215 is hereby appropriated for budget expenditures and expenditures during the 
fiscal year shall be made in accordance with the budget approved by this Ordinance unless 
otherwise authorized by a duly enacted ordinance of the City. 

Section 3. The budget as adopted hereby shall be deemed the official budget for the Town 
of Addison, Texas for the said fiscal year and a copy of the same attached hereto and marked as 
“Exhibit A” shall be filed and kept on file with the City Secretary, shall be posted on the City’s 
internet website, shall be filed with the Dallas County Clerk and the State Comptroller of Public 



OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 2 of 38 

Accounts at Austin in accordance with the Town Charter and state law, and shall be open to 
inspection by any interested persons. In addition, the record vote of each member of the City 
Council by name voting on the adoption of the budget shall be posted on the City’s internet website 
until the first anniversary of the date the budget is adopted. 

Section 4.  Pursuant to state law, no expenditure of the funds of the City shall hereafter be 
made except in compliance with the budget and applicable state law; provided, however, that in 
case of grave public necessity emergency expenditures to meet unusual and unforeseen conditions, 
which could not by reasonable, diligent thought and attention have been included in the original 
budget, may from time to time be authorized by the City Council as amendments to the original 
budget.  Pursuant to the City’s Charter and state law, the Council may make emergency 
appropriations to address a public emergency affecting life, health, property or the public peace 
and other appropriations as authorized thereby.   
 

Section 5.  Funds for the capital improvements listed for FY2021 are hereby appropriated 
and the entire Capital Improvements Plan for fiscal year ending 2021 is hereby adopted.  As set 
forth in the said budget, the sum of $37,122,100 is hereby appropriated for capital improvements 
and expenditures during the fiscal year shall be made in accordance with the budget approved by 
this Ordinance unless otherwise authorized by a duly enacted ordinance of the City. 

Section 6. The cover page for the budget attached to this Ordinance, that includes the 
property tax rates for the current fiscal year, including (a) the property tax rate, (b), the no-new 
revenue tax rate, (c) the no-new revenue maintenance and operations tax rate, (d) the voter-
approval tax rate, and (e) the debt service rate, shall be and is hereby filed with the City Secretary 
and shall be posted on the City’s internet website. 

Section 7. All ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance be, 
and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.  

Section 8. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases, and words of this Ordinance are 
severable, and if any section, paragraph, sentence, phrase, or word in this Ordinance or application 
thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, void, unlawful or unconstitutional by a Court 
of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed such remaining 
portions of this Ordinance despite such invalidity, voidness, unlawfulness or unconstitutionality, 
which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 9. This Ordinance shall take effect upon its passage. 

  



OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 3 of 38 

DULY PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS on this 
the 8th day of September 2020. 

 
___________________________________ 

                                                                    Joe Chow, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Irma Parker, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 4 of 38 

Town of Addison 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021  

Budget Cover Page 

This budget will raise more revenue from property taxes 
than last year's budget by an amount of $1,793,812 which 
is a 6.61 percent increase from last year's budget. The 
property tax revenue to be raised from new property added 
to the tax roll this year is $518,607. 
 
The members of the governing body voted on the budget as 
follows:  
FOR:    
    

    
    
    
    
    
    
AGAINST:   

 

PRESENT and not voting:  
 

ABSENT:   
 

    
    

Property Tax Rate Comparison  
 

   2020-2021    2019-2020 
    Property Tax Rate: $0.608676/100 $0.583500/100 
    No-New Revenue Tax Rate: $0.637851/100 $0.552371/100 
    No-New Revenue Maintenance &  
   Operations Tax Rate: $0.474921/100 $0.409028/100 
    Voter Approval Tax Rate: $0.701933/100 $0.591133/100 
    Debt Rate: $0.167567/100 $0.149383/100 

Total debt obligation for Town of Addison secured by property 
taxes: $86,825,000



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 5 of 38 

Debt Service Capital Internal
General Economic Combined Combined Combined Infrastructure Combined Budget Estimated Actual

Fund Hotel Development Grants Other Debt Service Investment Airport Utility Stormwater Replacement 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19

BEGINNING BALANCES 18,736,620$   2,285,310$     1,797,844$     38,833$     4,274,730$     10,458$          5,263,783$     5,506,475$     4,923,551$      7,159,183$      6,914,846$     56,911,633$     62,182,165$      57,804,257$      

REVENUES:
Ad valorem tax 19,425,398$   -$                   1,127,348$     -$              -$                   7,915,707$     294,767$        -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                   28,763,220$     26,862,472$      25,196,771$      
Non-property taxes 13,356,000     4,155,000       -                    -                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                      -                     17,511,000       17,882,000        21,595,725        
Franchise fees 2,260,000       -                     -                    -                50,000           -                     -                     -                     -                      -                      -                     2,310,000         2,402,919         2,513,414          
Licenses and permits 1,142,550       -                     -                    -                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                      -                      -                     1,142,550         1,294,275         1,369,328          
Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                    8,100         -                     -                     -                     50,000           -                      -                      -                     58,100              1,580,000         123,941             
Service fees 1,970,276       1,104,500       60,000           -                -                     -                     -                     783,150          13,868,476      2,455,791        2,044,863       22,287,056       20,214,903        20,494,316        
Fines and penalties 260,000          -                     -                    -                31,020           -                     -                     -                     -                      -                      -                     291,020            295,721            422,876             
Rental income 8,500              23,810           -                    -                -                     -                     -                     4,305,960       -                      -                      -                     4,338,270         5,233,441         6,097,518          
Interest & other income 328,000          50,100           48,000           400           30,550           16,000           50,000           50,000           105,500           40,000             45,000           763,550            804,597            2,080,505          
TOTAL OPERATIONAL REVENUE 38,750,724$   5,333,410$     1,235,348$     8,500$       111,570$        7,931,707$     344,767$        5,189,110$     13,973,976$     2,495,791$      2,089,863$     77,464,766$     76,570,328$      79,894,393$      

Transfers from other funds -                     -                     384,000         -                710,950          -                     -                     -                     -                      -                      -                     1,094,950         3,992,900         4,486,504          

TOTAL REVENUES 38,750,724$   5,333,410$     1,619,348$     8,500$       822,520$        7,931,707$     344,767$        5,189,110$     13,973,976$     2,495,791$      2,089,863$     78,559,716$     80,563,228$      84,380,897$      

TOTAL AVAILABLE RESOURCES 57,487,344$   7,618,720$     3,417,192$     47,333$     5,097,250$     7,942,165$     5,608,550$     10,695,585$   18,897,527$     9,654,974$      9,004,709$     135,471,349$   142,745,393$    142,185,154$    

EXPENDITURES:
Personnel Services 24,912,989$   1,260,590$     491,120$       -$              25,100$          -$                   -$                   2,157,056$     2,318,042$      313,093$         -$                   31,477,990$     28,989,592$      27,448,237$      
Supplies 1,544,177       59,592           20,932           -                113,409          -                     -                     61,900           216,281           17,700             -                     2,033,991         1,958,433         1,559,356          
Maintenance 3,609,469       288,487          29,450           -                310,150          -                     -                     479,730          650,623           102,620           -                     5,470,529         8,086,634         7,334,934          
Contractual Services 7,239,332       3,770,732       1,430,153      13,700       460,500          5,000             -                     1,309,914       8,784,731        310,224           4,500             23,328,786       21,444,442        21,664,947        
Capital Replacement / Lease 1,423,868       75,163           48,160           -                -                     -                     -                     230,958          340,797           -                      -                     2,118,946         2,050,863         1,957,183          
Debt Service -                     -                     -                    -                -                     7,643,653       -                     819,647          1,517,931        542,266           -                     10,523,497       9,905,877         9,199,291          
Capital Outlay -                     -                     -                    -                275,300          -                     -                     -                     65,000             -                      3,044,775       3,385,075         2,846,460         2,166,222          
TOTAL OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURES 38,729,836$   5,454,564$     2,019,815$     13,700$     1,184,459$     7,648,653$     -$                   5,059,205$     13,893,405$     1,285,903$      3,049,275$     78,338,814$     75,282,301$      71,330,170$      

Transfers to other funds 710,950          384,000          -                    -                -                     -                     -                     -                     ‐                               -                      -                     1,094,950         3,994,400         4,986,504          
One-Time Decision Package -                     -                     -                    -                -                     -                     -                     51,000           350,000           38,610             -                     439,610            -                       ‐                                
Capital Improvements -                     -                     -                    -                394,500          -                     -                     2,043,911       163,000           2,272,430        -                     4,873,841         6,631,559         3,986,315          

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 39,440,786$   5,838,564$     2,019,815$     13,700$     1,578,959$     7,648,653$     -$                   7,154,116$     14,406,405$     3,596,943$      3,049,275$     84,747,215$     85,908,260$      80,302,989$      

ENDING FUND BALANCES 18,046,558$   1,780,157$     1,397,377$     33,633$     3,518,291$     293,512$        5,608,550$     3,541,469$     4,491,122$      6,058,031$      5,955,434$     50,724,134$     56,837,133$      61,882,165$      

Fund Balance Percentage 46.6% 32.6% 69.2% 245.5% 297.0% 3.8% 0.0% 70.0% 32.3% 471.1% 195.3% 64.7% 75.5% 86.8%

TOWN OF ADDISON
COMBINED SUMMARY OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BY CATEGORY
FY2020-21

Special Revenue Funds Total All FundsProprietary Funds



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 6 of 38 

 

 

Actual Budget Estimated Budget DIFFERENCE
2018-19 2019-20 2019-20 2020-21 2020 to 2021

GENERAL FUND
City Secretary

City Secretary 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 

City Manager's Office
City Manager 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Deputy City Manager 2.0               2.0               2.0               1.4               (0.6)              
Assistant to the City Manager 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Management Assistant 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Administrative Assistant 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Volunteer Coordinator 0.5               0.5               0.5               0.5               -                 

6.5               6.5               6.5               5.9               (0.6)              

Finance Department
Chief Financial Officer 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Controller 1.0               1.0               1.0               0.7               (0.3)              
Accounting Manager 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Purchasing Manager 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Budget Manager 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Senior Accountant 2.0               2.0               2.0               1.7               (0.3)              
Senior Budget Analyst 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Accountant 2.0               2.0               2.0               2.0               -                 
Accounting Specialist 3.0               3.0               3.0               2.4               (0.6)              

13.0             13.0             13.0             11.8             (1.2)              

General Services
Director of General Services 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Management Assistant 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Facilities Supervisor 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Department Assistant 0.5               0.5               0.5               0.5               -                 
Facilities Specialist 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Facilities Assistant 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 

5.5               5.5               5.5               5.5               -                 

Municipal Court
Municipal Court Administrator 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Lead Deputy Court Clerk 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Deputy Court Clerk 2.0               2.0               2.0               2.0               -                 
Municipal Judge 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 

5.0               5.0               5.0               5.0               -                 

Human Resources
Director of Human Resources 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Human Resources Generalist 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Human Resources Analyst 1.0               1.0               1.0               0.4               (0.6)              
Human Resources Coordinator 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 

4.0               4.0               4.0               3.4               (0.6)              

Information Technology
Ex. Director of Business Performance 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Senior Software Developer 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Network Specialist 5.0               5.0               5.0               5.0               -                 

7.0               7.0               7.0               7.0               -                 

TOWN OF ADDISON
PERSONNEL SUMMARY

FY2020-21



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 7 of 38 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 8 of 38 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 9 of 38 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 10 of 38 

 

 

 

Actual Budget Estimated Budget DIFFERENCE
2018-19 2019-20 2019-20 2020-21 2020 to 2021

UTILITY FUND
Utility Administration

Deputy City Manager -                 -                 -                 0.3               0.3               
Director of Public Works and Engineering 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Assistant Director of Infrastructure Services 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
GIS Manager 0.3               0.3               0.3               0.3               -                 
Streets and Traffic Manager 0.3               0.3               0.3               0.3               -                 
Utilities Manager 2.0               2.0               2.0               2.0               -                 
Construction Inspector 3.0               3.0               3.0               3.0               -                 
Water Quality Utility Supervisor -                 -                 -                 1.0               1.0               
Water Quality Specialist 1.0               2.0               2.0               2.0               -                 
Utility Operator - III 4.0               4.0               4.0               4.0               -                 
Utility Operator - II -                 2.0               2.0               2.0               -                 
Utility Operator - I 5.0               5.0               5.0               5.0               -                 
Project Manager 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Utility Crew Leader 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Department Assistant 1.0               1.0               1.0               1.0               -                 
Human Resources Analyst -                 -                 -                 0.3               0.3               
Accounting Specialist -                 -                 -                 0.3               0.3               

20.6             23.6             23.6             25.5             1.9               

Utility Billing

Controller -                 -                 -                 0.3               0.3               

Utility Billing Supervisor 0.8               0.8               0.8               0.8               -                 

Accounting Specialist 0.8               0.8               0.8               0.8               -                 

1.6               1.6               1.6               1.9               0.3               

UTILITY FUND TOTAL 22.2             25.2             25.2             27.4             2.2               

STORMWATER FUND
GIS Manager 0.3               0.3               0.3               0.3               -                 
Streets and Traffic Manager 0.3               0.3               0.3               0.3               -                 
Management Assistant 1.0               1.0               -                 -                 (1.0)              
Stormwater and Operations Manager -                 -                 1.0               1.0               1.0               
Utility Billing Supervisor 0.2               0.2               0.2               0.2               -                 
Accounting Specialist 0.2               0.2               0.2               0.2               -                 
Stormwater Operator 2.0               2.0               2.0               2.0               -                 

4.0               4.0               4.0               4.0               -                 

STORMWATER FUND TOTAL 4.0               4.0               4.0               4.0               -                 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM
Bond Project Manager -                 -                 1.0               1.0               -                 
Bond Contract Administrator -                 -                 -                 1.0               1.0               
Bond Project Inspector -                 -                 -                 1.0               1.0               

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM TOTAL -                 -                 1.0               3.0               2.0               

ALL FUNDS TOTAL 281.8           289.8           290.8           299.8           9.0               

TOWN OF ADDISON
PERSONNEL SUMMARY

FY2020-21



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 11 of 38 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 12 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 13 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 14 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 15 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 16 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 17 of 38 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 18 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 19 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 20 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 21 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 22 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 23 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 24 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 25 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 26 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 27 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 28 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 29 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 30 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 31 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 32 of 38 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 33 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 34 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 35 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 36 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 37 of 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   ORDINANCE NO.____________ 
Page 38 of 38 

 



   
Council Meeting 13.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance
Changing the Zoning on a 4.40-acre Property Located at 3990 Vitruvian
Way, Which Property is Currently Zoned PD, Planned Development,
Through Ordinance O07-034, as Previously Amended by Ordinances
O13-026, O16-017, and O19-06, by Changing the Density of the Residential
Development. Case 1817-Z/UDR Fiori.

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting virtually in regular
session on August 18, 2020, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance
changing the zoning from Planned Development (PD) district, through Ordinance
O07-034, as previously amended by ordinances O13-026, O16-017, and O19-06,
by changing the density of the residential development to allow the conversion of
an existing 819 square foot amenity space to one 819 square foot residential
unit, without conditions.
 
Voting Aye:  Catalani, Craig, DeFrancisco, Meleky, Resnik, Souers, Wheeler
Voting Nay:  none
Absent:        none
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: none.

Please refer to the attached staff report for additional information on this case.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance - 1817-Z UDR Fiori 
Staff Report - 1817-Z UDR Fiori 
Plans - 1817-Z UDR Fiori 





Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 1 of 6 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
DEVELOPMENT PLANS, ORDINANCE O11-032, IN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT O07-034, AS AMENDED BY O13-026, 06-017, AND O19-06, ON A 4.4 ACRE 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3990 VITRUVIAN WAY, TO ALLOW AN INCREASE IN 
RESIENTIAL DENSITY; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED TWO 
THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE AND A 
SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL BE DEEMED COMMITTED EACH DAY DURING OR 
ON WHICH A VIOLATION OCCURS OR CONTINUES; SAVINGS, NO 
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) is a home rule municipality having 

full power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and 
its Home Rule Charter; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at its regular meeting held on August 18, 2020 the Planning & Zoning 
Commission considered and made recommendations on a request to amend the development plans 
through O11-032, in Planned Development District O07-034, as amended, to increase residential 
density in order to add one dwelling unit to an existing multifamily development (Case No. 1817-
Z/UDR Fiori); and 
 
 WHEREAS, this change of zoning is in accordance with the adopted Comprehensive Plan 
of the Town of Addison, as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at a public hearing, and other relevant 
information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 
amendment promotes the general welfare and safety of this community. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 
correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That Ordinance O11-032, is hereby amended as follows: 
 

(a) The original site plan is hereby replaced with the site plan as shown in Exhibit A of this 
Ordinance. 
 

(b) Additional floor plan and building elevation, as shown in Exhibit B, are hereby adopted. 
 

(c) Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, said Property shall be improved in 
accordance with the site plan, floor plan, and building elevations, which are attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and Exhibit B and made a part hereof for all purposes.  
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 2 of 6 

(d) Save and except as amended by this Ordinance all other provisions in O11-032 shall 
remain in full force and effect.  

 
 SECTION 3.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms 
of this ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning 
Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set 
in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of 
Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That it is the intention of the City Council that this ordinance be considered 
in its entirety, as one ordinance, and should any portion of this ordinance be held to be void or 
unconstitutional, then said ordinance shall be void in its entirety, and the City Council would not 
have adopted said ordinance if any part or portion of said ordinance should be held to be 
unconstitutional or void. 
 
 SECTION 5.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict 
with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
 SECTION 6.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 
approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 
 
 
 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, on this the 8TH day of SEPTEMBER 2020. 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 
 
 
             

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 3 of 6 

 Exhibit A   



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 4 of 6 

Exhibit B 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 5 of 6 

Exhibit B 
 

  



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 6 of 6 

Exhibit B 
 

 



1817-Z 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1817-Z/UDR Fiori. Public hearing, discussion, and take action 
on a recommendation regarding an ordinance changing the zoning on a 4.40-acre 
property located at 3990 Vitruvian Way, which property is currently zoned PD, Planned 
Development, through Ordinance O07-034, as previously amended by ordinances O13-
026, O16-017, and O19-06, by changing the density of the residential development. 

LOCATION MAP 

  
 



 

 

 

 

 

August 12, 2020 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1817-Z/UDR Fiori 

LOCATION:      3990 Vitruvian Way 

REQUEST: Approval of an ordinance changing the 
zoning from Planned Development (PD) 
district, through Ordinance O07-034, as 
previously amended by ordinances O13-026, 
O16-017, and O19-06, by changing the 
density of the residential development to 
allow the conversion of an existing 819 
square foot amenity space to one 819 square 
foot residential unit. 

 
APPLICANT:  Matt Crittenden, MSC Design 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: This 4.4016 acre property is the Fiori multifamily development and is part of Vitruvian 
Park. The whole area is zoned PD, Planned Development, through Ordinance O07-034, as 
previously amended by ordinances O13-026, O16-017, and O19-06, and the development plans 
for this specific multifamily development were approved through Ordinance O11-032 in 2011.  
 
The applicant, UDR, also the property owner and operator of the multifamily development, has 
re-evaluated some of the amenities on the property and found that one of the amenity spaces 
was significantly underutilized. As a result, they a requesting to convert this amenity space into 
one dwelling unit, however, because this changes the total number of residential units on the 
property, as previously approved by Ordinance O11-032, this action requires a zoning process. 
 
Proposed Plan:  The applicant is proposing to convert an existing 819 square foot amenity space 
on the fourth floor of the existing multifamily development, into a one bedroom 819 square foot 
residential unit. This increases the total residential unit count in this specific development from 
391 to 392, and decreases the total available amenity spaces from eight to seven, from a total 
square footage of 14,975 to 14,156 square feet of amenity space. The only exterior change being 
proposed is an additional of a patio door on the south facade, the rest of the facades will remain 
unchanged. 
 
Building Elevations: The majority of the facades remain unchanged, with the exception of a new 
glazed patio door addition where there was previously only window glazing on the south elevation.  



2 
 

 

 
Parking: This PD district requires that one parking space be provided per bedroom with a 
maximum of two parking spaces per dwelling unit. With the increase of units from 391 to 392 to 
parking requirement goes up to 560 parking spaces. There are currently 580 parking spaces on 
site. 
 
Open Space: Open space is required with residential uses and is calculated to require two acres 
for every 1,000 residents up to 2,250 and then 1.5 acres per 1,000 residents above 2,250. The 
code assumes 1.5 persons per unit. With the one additional unit being proposed, the development 
will have an assumed resident count increase of 1.5 and require an additional .003 acres of open 
space. The applicant has already dedicated 12 acres with Vitruvian Park, which exceeds the 
required open space dedication for the residential units provided in this area. Therefore, the 
proposed conversion will not require any additional open space dedication. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 
Being part of Vitruvian Park, multifamily development in this area is held to a higher standard in 
terms of quality and amenities. While the applicant is proposing to remove one of the existing 
amenity spaces in this particular development, Staff believes that there is still sufficient amenity 
space remaining in the building to maintain the original intent of the zoning ordinance for this area.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the request without conditions.  
 
 
 
 
 



Case 1817-Z/UDR Fiori 

August 18, 2020 

COMMISSION FINDINGS: 

The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on August 18, 2020, 
voted to recommend approval of an ordinance changing the zoning from Planned Development 
(PD) district, through Ordinance O07-034, as previously amended by ordinances O13-026, O16-
017, and O19-06, by changing the density of the residential development  to allow the conversion 
of an existing 819 square foot amenity space to one 819 square foot residential unit, without 
conditions. 

Voting Aye:  Catalani, Craig, DeFrancisco, Meleky, Resnik, Souers, Wheeler 
Voting Nay:  none 
Absent:        none 

SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 

For:    none 
On: none 
Against:  none 



MSC DESIGN, LLC

10935 ESTATE LANE,
SUITE 300
DALLAS, TEXAS 75238

469-855-3800

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
VITRUVIAN PARK
BLOCK B, LOT 3,
ACRES: 4.4016

ZONING
PD 007-034

TOWN PROJECT NUMBER

Sh
ee

t S
ize

: 2
2x

34

C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
©

 2
02

0

PROJECT NO.

DATE

DRAWING NO.

PROJECT LOCATION

OWNER
UDR
Mark Campbell
972-716-3569

APPLICANT
MSC Design
Matt Crittenden 
469-855-3800

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Convert an existing 819 
square foot amenity 
space into a 1-bedroom 
apartment unit. Change 
of occupancy of one 
space from A-2 to R-2.

1817-Z SITE PLAN

FI
O

RI
 A

T 
V

ITR
UV

IA
N

 P
A

RK

A1-1

2012

39
90

 V
itr

uv
ia

n 
W

a
y

A
d

d
iso

n,
 T

X 
75

00
1

08-03-2020

D
al

la
s C

ou
nt

y

3990 Vitruvian Way
Addison, TX 75001
Dallas County

FIORI AT VITRUVIAN PARK

PROJECT DATA - (EXISTING BASE BUILDING)

VICINITY MAP (EXISTING)

SITE PLAN - (EXISTING)

65,610 SF

387,646 SF

3,085 SF

14,156 SF

14,156 SF

65,347 SF

55    (14.0%)

225    (57.4%)

(16.3%)

392
397,646 SF

392
89.09

225 225

559

(41.1%)

(2.5%)



SCOPE OF WORK: 

819 SF 

RENOVATION AT 

FOURTH FLOOR 

NEW 
DOOR

EXISTING GLAZING 

8
' 
- 

0
"

MSC DESIGN, LLC

10935 ESTATE LANE,

SUITE 300

DALLAS, TEXAS 75238

469-855-3800

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

VITRUVIAN PARK

BLOCK B, LOT 3,

ACRES: 4.4016

ZONING

PD 007-034

TOWN PROJECT NUMBER

S
h

e
e

t 
S
iz

e
: 
2
2
x3

4

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T 

©
 2

0
2
0

PROJECT NO.

DATE

DRAWING NO.

PROJECT LOCATION

OWNER

UDR

Mark Campbell

972-716-3569

APPLICANT

MSC Design

Matt Crittenden 

469-855-3800

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Convert an existing 819 

square foot amenity 

space into a 1-bedroom 

apartment unit. Change 

of occupancy of one 

space from A-2 to R-2.

1817-Z FACADE PLAN

F
IO

R
I 
A

T 
V

IT
R

U
V

IA
N

 P
A

R
K

A2-1

2012

3
9

9
0

 V
it
ru

v
ia

n
 W

a
y

A
d

d
is

o
n

, 
TX

 7
5
0
0

1

08-03-2020

D
a

lla
s 

C
o

u
n

ty

3990 Vitruvian Way

Addison, TX 75001

Dallas County

FIORI AT VITRUVIAN PARK

1" = 20'-0"
1

SOUTH ELEVATION (EXISTING)

FACADE PLAN NOTES
• The portion of the facade affected by 

this renovation is to remain a window 

system with new opening locations.

• The following notes show the required 
Facade Plan Checklist notes but are not 
all applicable for the purposes of this 
renovation.

• Facade Plan is for conceptual purposes 
only. All building plans require review 
and approval by Development Services.

• All mechanical units shall be screened 
from public view as required by the 
Zoning Ordinance.

• When permited, exposed utility boxes 
and condiuts shall be painted to match 
the building.

• All signage areas and locations are 
subject to approval by Development 
Services.

• Roof access shall be provided internally, 
unless otherwise permitted by the Chief 
Building Official.

EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATIONEXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION
SCOPE OF EXTERIOR WORK: EXISTING 
WINDOW SYSTEM TO REMAIN. 
REPLACE GLASS LITE WITH 1 SWING 
DOOR (REFER PROPOSED PLAN)

NO EXTERIOR MATERIALS 
WILL BE CHANGED

0' 10' 20' 40'

1/4" = 1'-0"
2

PROPOSED ELEVATION

0' 2' 4' 8'



SCOPE OF WORK: 

819 SF 

RENOVATION AT 

FOURTH FLOOR 

AREA BELOW IS 

BREEZEWAY TO 

POOL DECK

SITE

635

M
A

R
S

H
 L

A
N

E

M
ID

W
A

Y
 R

O
A

D

SPRING VALLEY ROAD

V
IT

R
U

V
IA

N
 W

A
Y

MSC DESIGN, LLC

10935 ESTATE LANE,

SUITE 300

DALLAS, TEXAS 75238

469-855-3800

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

VITRUVIAN PARK

BLOCK B, LOT 3,

ACRES: 4.4016

ZONING

PD 007-034

TOWN PROJECT NUMBER

S
h

e
e

t 
S
iz

e
: 
2
2
x3

4

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T 

©
 2

0
2
0

PROJECT NO.

DATE

DRAWING NO.

PROJECT LOCATION

OWNER

UDR

Mark Campbell

972-716-3569

APPLICANT

MSC Design

Matt Crittenden 

469-855-3800

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Convert an existing 819 

square foot amenity 

space into a 1-bedroom 

apartment unit. Change 

of occupancy of one 

space from A-2 to R-2.

1817-Z CONCEPT
PLAN-1

F
IO

R
I 
A

T 
V

IT
R

U
V

IA
N

 P
A

R
K

A3-1

2012

3
9

9
0

 V
it
ru

v
ia

n
 W

a
y

A
d

d
is

o
n

, 
TX

 7
5
0
0

1

08-03-2020

D
a

lla
s 

C
o

u
n

ty

3990 Vitruvian Way

Addison, TX 75001

Dallas County

FIORI AT VITRUVIAN PARK

1" = 40'-0"
1

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 4 (EXISTING)

PROJECT DESCRIPTION & SCOPE

• Convert an existing 819 square foot 
amenity space into a 1-bedroom 
apartment unit.

• Change of occupancy of 1 space from 
A-2 to R-2.

• Increase the total project units from 391 
to 392 units.

• Decrease the total amenity spaces 
from 8 to 7. 14,975 sf of conditioned 
amenity reduced to 14,156 sf.

• Increase total required parking by 2 
spaces, from 558 to 560.

• Existing space to be renovated is 
located in a Type I-A construction 
building.

ARCHITECTURE
• Renovate existing floor plan (see 

proposed floor plan)
• Change exterior storefront door system 

at balcony
PLUMBING
• Refer proposed plan
MECH
• Refer proposed plan
ELEC
• Refer proposed plan
FIRE
• Automatic fire sprinkler system provided
• 30 min. rated corridor wall
• 60 min. rated demising wall
• 2 hr. rated shaft walls
PARKING
• 560 spaces required
• 582 spaces provided

1" = 40'-0"
3

FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 3 (EXISTING)

0' 20' 40' 80'

0' 20' 40' 80' VICINITY MAP (EXISTING)



10

10

11

11

H H

G G

SCOPE OF WORK

2
6
' 
- 

0
"

29' - 0"

PROPOSED 

NEW DOOR 

WITH FULL LITE

819 SF

10

10

11

11

H H

G G

SCOPE OF WORK

EXISTING 

DOUBLE DOOR

819 SF

SITE

635

M
A

R
S

H
 L

A
N

E

M
ID

W
A

Y
 R

O
A

D

SPRING VALLEY ROAD

V
IT

R
U

V
IA

N
 W

A
Y

MSC DESIGN, LLC

10935 ESTATE LANE,

SUITE 300

DALLAS, TEXAS 75238

469-855-3800

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

VITRUVIAN PARK

BLOCK B, LOT 3,

ACRES: 4.4016

ZONING

PD 007-034

TOWN PROJECT NUMBER

S
h

e
e

t 
S
iz

e
: 
2
2
x3

4

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T 

©
 2

0
2
0

PROJECT NO.

DATE

DRAWING NO.

PROJECT LOCATION

OWNER

UDR

Mark Campbell

972-716-3569

APPLICANT

MSC Design

Matt Crittenden 

469-855-3800

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Convert an existing 819 

square foot amenity 

space into a 1-bedroom 

apartment unit. Change 

of occupancy of one 

space from A-2 to R-2.

1817-Z CONCEPT
PLAN-2

F
IO

R
I 
A

T 
V

IT
R

U
V

IA
N

 P
A

R
K

A3-2

2012

3
9

9
0

 V
it
ru

v
ia

n
 W

a
y

A
d

d
is

o
n

, 
TX

 7
5
0
0

1

08-03-2020

D
a

lla
s 

C
o

u
n

ty

3990 Vitruvian Way

Addison, TX 75001

Dallas County

FIORI AT VITRUVIAN PARK

1/4" = 1'-0"
1

LEVEL 4 - PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN

1/4" = 1'-0"
2

LEVEL 4 - EXISTING AMENITY PLAN

VICINITY MAP (EXISTING)

0' 2' 4' 8'0' 2' 4' 8'



   
Council Meeting 14.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Granting a
Meritorious Exception for Prestonwood Place, Located at 5290 Belt Line
Road, from the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 62 Section 62-184. – Setback,
effective area and height, and Section 62-185- Specifications, in Order to
Permit Two Pylon Signs Exceeding the Allowed Area and Setback
Requirements.

BACKGROUND:
Prestonwood Place is an older shopping center located at the southeast corner
of Montfort Drive and Belt Line Road. In an effort to maintain existing tenants and
attract new high quality tenants the center has been undergoing major
renovations throughout the property, most recently being rezoned to
accommodate the redevelopment of the two-story office/retail building in the
back corner of the property, as well as updating all existing facades.
 
During one of the wind storms in June 2019, the property’s existing multitenant
pylon signs experienced significant damage, damaging one of the signs beyond
repair. The pylon sign base structure was left intact and can be safely reused, but
the sign cabinet has to be completely replaced.

Given this circumstance, as well as the ongoing renovations, the property owner
has decided to revamp the exterior signage for the entire property to achieve a
cohesive design throughout. The property owner would like to leave the base
structures and replace the sign cabinets for both the pylon signs to better match
the new, more modern, design of the center.

Currently, both the pylon signs are nonconforming in size, and only one pylon
sign meets the setback requirements.

The Sign Code, Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances, regulates multitenant
pylon sign as follows:
  

Sec. 62-184. - Setback, effective area and height.
A minimum setback of 20 feet is required for all signs exceeding 20 square
feet in effective area or 15 feet in height.



Sec. 62-185. - Specifications.
(2) Multitenant pole signs must be exactly 72 square feet in effective area
and must be exactly 20 feet in height measured from ground elevation to the
top of the signs. No single-tenant shall occupy more than 36 square feet of
sign area on a multi-tenant sign. 
(3) Design standards shall be as follows:

b. Sign cabinet: Paint grip sheet metal on angle iron frame with angle
retaining rim to secure sign face.

2. Multitenant sign cabinet dimensions: 6'10" wide × 11'6" high ×
12" deep.

e. Sign support and cabinet color: Pantone 404(c). Painted surfaces are
to match special color; color swatch will be provided by the town. Color
number: Pantone #404(c)
g. Overall sign height: All signs are to be 20 feet in height.

  
The applicant is requesting a meritorious exception for a 99.8 square foot black
pylon cabinet for both signs, with 72 square feet of tenant signage and additional
text at the top for the shopping center name, which adds approximately 20
square feet of additional signage area. The applicant is also requesting to be
allowed to keep the existing base structure for the sign closest to the eastern
property line, which has a 14.5 foot setback from Belt Line Road. It should be
noted that the landscape island in which the pylon sign currently exists does not
provide allowance for the full 20 foot setback, with only about 2.5 feet from the
existing base structure to the fire lane.

The existing nonconforming pylon signs are approximately the same size as
those being proposed, except the different shape of the top of the cabinet. It is
unclear when or how the existing signs were approved, but they have been on
the property for many years.

Given the circumstances for the cause of this request and the existing limitations
on the property, Staff supports the proposed design and the additional text at the
top of the cabinet identifying the newly rebranded shopping center, as well as
keeping the existing setback of 14.5 feet. Staff believes that the proposed signs
create cohesiveness and improve the visual environment for the property overall.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance - Meritorious Exception for Prestonwood Place 
Meritorious Exception Application - Prestonwood Place 





Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 1 of 7 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS GRANTING A MERITORIOUS EXCEPTION TO SECTIONS 62-184 
AND 62-185 OF CHAPTER 62 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO 
ALLOW TWO 99.8 SQAURE-FOOT PYLON SIGN CABINETS, 
EXCEEDING TOTAL ALLOWABLE CABINET AND EFFECTIVE AREA, 
AND NOT MEETING THE SETBACK REQUIREMENT, ON THE 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 5290 BELT LINE ROAD, PROVIDING A 
PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED AND NO/100 DOLLARS 
($500.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL BE 
DEEMED COMMITTED EACH DAY DURING OR ON WHICH A 
VIOLATION OCCURS OR CONTINUES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 62 of the Code of Ordinances regulates signage in the Town of 
Addison; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 62-33 permits the City Council to approve exceptions to the 

provisions of Chapter 62 in cases that have obvious merit in not only being appropriate to the 
particular site or location, but also in making a positive contribution to the visual environment; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the grant of the meritorious 

exception contained herein is in the best interest of the public and promotes the visual 
environment of the Town. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true 
and correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 
Section 2. That a meritorious exception to Sections 62-184 and 62-185 of Chapter 62 

of the Code of Ordinances is hereby granted to allow two 99.8 square-foot pylon sign cabinets, 
as detailed in Exhibit A, which exceed the total allowable cabinet size by 21.22 square feet, 
total allowable effective area by 20 square feet, and the pylon sign closest to the norther 
property line does not meet the 20 foot setback, for Prestonwood Place, located at 5290 Belt 
Line Road. No other additional signage is permitted unless it complies with Chapter 62 of the 
Code of Ordinances. 

 
Section 3. Any person, firm, corporation, or other business entity violating any of the 

provisions or terms of this Ordinance shall, in accordance with Section 62-35 of the Town of 
Addison Code of Ordinance (Violations), be fined, upon conviction, in an amount of not more 
than Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($500.00), and a separate offense shall be deemed 
committed each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues. 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 2 of 7 

 
Section 4. That this Ordinance shall take effect from and after its date of adoption and 

publication as required by law. 
 
 

 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, on this the 8TH day of SEPTEMBER 2020. 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 
 
 
             

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 3 of 7 

 Exhibit A   



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 4 of 7 

Exhibit A  



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 5 of 7 

Exhibit A 
 
 

  



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 6 of 7 

Exhibit A 
 
 

 
  



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 7 of 7 

Exhibit A 
 



MERITORIOUS EXCEPTION APPLICATION 

Application date: _________________ Application/Fee Received:__________________     Fee paid:______________

APPLICANT CONTACT 

I hereby certify that the information is this application is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Name: (printed)___________________________________________________________________________ 

Company name:__________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone: ______________________________ Email:______________________________________________ 

Status of Applicant:   ___ Property Owner    ___ Tenant      ___ Contractor     ___ Other:__________________

Applicant’s Signature: ______________________________________________________________________ 

Address or location:  _______________________________________________________________________

Reasons for Meritorious Exception: ___________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

You must submit 2 paper copies (11x17) and a PDF of the following items:

• Site Plan showing:
• Lot Lines

• Names of Adjacent Streets

• Location of Existing Buildings and Signs

• Setbacks from the Proposed Sign/s

• Sign Plans of All Proposed Signs with:
• Scales
• Dimensions
• All Letter/Logo Heights
• Total Square Footage

INFORMATION ABOUT THE REQUEST 

To be completed by Town staff:

Ryan Muscott

Northwood Retail LLC

8080 Park Lane Suite 600, Dallas, TX 75231

469-828-3313 rmuscott@northwoodretail.com

Prestonwood Place, 5290 Belt Line Road, Addison, TX

The existing pylon sign cabinet along Belt Line Road nearest Shake Shack was damaged beyond repair in the wind storm of June 2019. The pylon sign base and structure

were left intact and can be reused, but the tenant signage panel cabinet will need to be refabricated. The existing pylon signs currently do not conform with the Town of Addison's

signage ordinance regarding height, setback, and effective area requirements, but due to tenant lease obligations the sign needs to be reconstructed in its same location and the tenant panels

need to be of equal size as the original sign. As the shopping center is currently under a major renovation, Northwood Retail would like to use this time as an opportunity to reface all the

pylon and monument signs on the property to be more in line with the new architecture of the renovation. Each pylon and monument sign will meet the height and effective area requirements of the signage ordinance. 

Northwood Retail is requesting a meritorious exception only to the setback requirement as moving the signs further in to the property would place them in the parking lot drive aisles.

✔

ochernomorets
Text Box
07-21-20

ochernomorets
Text Box
07-21-20

ochernomorets
Text Box
$300.00

ochernomorets
Pen
_

ochernomorets
Pen
•



Address

Approval / Date

Sheet

0404597Ar9

MSW/JAA

RFF

7/8/19

r1-KMc-7/9/19: Rev. opt. 2

r2-MAB-8/5/19: Omit options 2
& 3 - Add Signs “A2, B” & site
plan - Add Temporary option

r3-MAB-8/9/19: Omit Sign “A”
temporary option - Add scope
of work to Sign “B”

r4-MAB-8/14/19: Font options

r5-KMc-8/21/19: Effra Medium
font

r6-RFF-9/12/19: Rev. “A1,A2”
size

r7-RFF-10/7/19: Rev. sizes per
survey

r8-MAB-1/13/20: Reduce “A1”
& “A2” M/T cabinet sizes

R9 KMc 7/15/20: added city
code notes

PRESTONWOOD PLACE

5290 BELT LINE ROAD
ADDISON, TEXAS

91

2301 River Road
Suite 201
Louisville , KY 40206
(502 ) 897-9800 Cell (502) 554-2575

14201 Sovereign Road #101
Fort Worth, TX 76155

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

9'-0¼"

3¾" REVEAL

2¼" x 3¼" RETAINERS

2'-6¼" DEEP
SIGN CABINET

EXISTING PYLON SIGN DAMAGED BY STORM - TOPPER/HEADER CABINET & TENANT CABINET
BEING STORED IN CHANDLER WAREHOUSE - CABINETS TO BE DISCARDED AS REQ’D

CURRENT STATUS OF D/F PYLON SIGN -
EXISTING I-BEAM STEEL SUPPORTS TO
BE RE-USED w/ NEW SIGN CABINET

EXISTING D/F M/T PYLON SIGNA1



Address

Approval / Date

Sheet

0404597Ar9

MSW/JAA

RFF

7/8/19

r1-KMc-7/9/19: Rev. opt. 2

r2-MAB-8/5/19: Omit options 2
& 3 - Add Signs “A2, B” & site
plan - Add Temporary option

r3-MAB-8/9/19: Omit Sign “A”
temporary option - Add scope
of work to Sign “B”

r4-MAB-8/14/19: Font options

r5-KMc-8/21/19: Effra Medium
font

r6-RFF-9/12/19: Rev. “A1,A2”
size

r7-RFF-10/7/19: Rev. sizes per
survey

r8-MAB-1/13/20: Reduce “A1”
& “A2” M/T cabinet sizes

R9 KMc 7/15/20: added city
code notes

PRESTONWOOD PLACE

5290 BELT LINE ROAD
ADDISON, TEXAS

92

2301 River Road
Suite 201
Louisville , KY 40206
(502 ) 897-9800 Cell (502) 554-2575

14201 Sovereign Road #101
Fort Worth, TX 76155

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

A1 PROPOSED NEW D/F PYLON SIGN CABINET

9'-4"

TOWN OF ADDISON ORDINANCE

HEIGHT 20'-0" max

TENANT AREA 72 sq ft max

SETBACK 20'-0"

PROPOSED 19'-3¾"

PROPOSED 71.3 SQ FT

PROPOSED 14'-5"



Address

Approval / Date

Sheet

0404597Ar9

MSW/JAA

RFF

7/8/19

r1-KMc-7/9/19: Rev. opt. 2

r2-MAB-8/5/19: Omit options 2
& 3 - Add Signs “A2, B” & site
plan - Add Temporary option

r3-MAB-8/9/19: Omit Sign “A”
temporary option - Add scope
of work to Sign “B”

r4-MAB-8/14/19: Font options

r5-KMc-8/21/19: Effra Medium
font

r6-RFF-9/12/19: Rev. “A1,A2”
size

r7-RFF-10/7/19: Rev. sizes per
survey

r8-MAB-1/13/20: Reduce “A1”
& “A2” M/T cabinet sizes

R9 KMc 7/15/20: added city
code notes

PRESTONWOOD PLACE

5290 BELT LINE ROAD
ADDISON, TEXAS

93

2301 River Road
Suite 201
Louisville , KY 40206
(502 ) 897-9800 Cell (502) 554-2575

14201 Sovereign Road #101
Fort Worth, TX 76155

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

EXISTING D/F M/T PYLON SIGN
REMOVE EXISTING TOPPER/HEADER CABINET & TENANT CABINET - DISCARD AS REQ’D

A2

3¾" REVEAL

9'-0¼"

2¼" x 3¼" RETAINERS

2'-6¼" DEEP
SIGN CABINET



Address

Approval / Date

Sheet

0404597Ar9

MSW/JAA

RFF

7/8/19

r1-KMc-7/9/19: Rev. opt. 2

r2-MAB-8/5/19: Omit options 2
& 3 - Add Signs “A2, B” & site
plan - Add Temporary option

r3-MAB-8/9/19: Omit Sign “A”
temporary option - Add scope
of work to Sign “B”

r4-MAB-8/14/19: Font options

r5-KMc-8/21/19: Effra Medium
font

r6-RFF-9/12/19: Rev. “A1,A2”
size

r7-RFF-10/7/19: Rev. sizes per
survey

r8-MAB-1/13/20: Reduce “A1”
& “A2” M/T cabinet sizes

R9 KMc 7/15/20: added city
code notes

PRESTONWOOD PLACE

5290 BELT LINE ROAD
ADDISON, TEXAS

94

2301 River Road
Suite 201
Louisville , KY 40206
(502 ) 897-9800 Cell (502) 554-2575

14201 Sovereign Road #101
Fort Worth, TX 76155

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

PROPOSED NEW D/F PYLON SIGN CABINETA2

TOWN OF ADDISON ORDINANCE

HEIGHT 20'-0" max

TENANT AREA 72 sq ft max

SETBACK 20'-0"

PROPOSED 19'-3¾"

PROPOSED 71.3 SQ FT

PROPOSED 20'-6"



Address

Approval / Date

Sheet

0404597Ar9

MSW/JAA

RFF

7/8/19

r1-KMc-7/9/19: Rev. opt. 2

r2-MAB-8/5/19: Omit options 2
& 3 - Add Signs “A2, B” & site
plan - Add Temporary option

r3-MAB-8/9/19: Omit Sign “A”
temporary option - Add scope
of work to Sign “B”

r4-MAB-8/14/19: Font options

r5-KMc-8/21/19: Effra Medium
font

r6-RFF-9/12/19: Rev. “A1,A2”
size

r7-RFF-10/7/19: Rev. sizes per
survey

r8-MAB-1/13/20: Reduce “A1”
& “A2” M/T cabinet sizes

R9 KMc 7/15/20: added city
code notes

PRESTONWOOD PLACE

5290 BELT LINE ROAD
ADDISON, TEXAS

95

2301 River Road
Suite 201
Louisville , KY 40206
(502 ) 897-9800 Cell (502) 554-2575

14201 Sovereign Road #101
Fort Worth, TX 76155

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

2'-10"

2'-5¼"

ALUMINUM SIGN TOPPER CABINET PAINTED
SATIN BLACK - INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED w/
WHITE LED’s - COPY TO BE 1" THICK ROUT-OUT/
PUSH-THRU CLEAR ACRYLIC 3/4" PROJECTION
w/ 1st SURFACE TRANSLUCENT VINYL OVERLAYS
& 2nd SURFACE WHITE DIFFUSER

ALUMINUM MULTI-TENANT CABINET PAINTED
SATIN BLACK w/BLACK ALUMINUM RETAINERS -
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED w/ WHITE LED’s -
TENANT SIGN FACES TO BE REMOVABLE #7328
WHITE ACRYLIC w/ 1st SURFACE VINYL GRAPHICS -
NOTE: TENANT GRAPHICS & COLORS TO BE
DETERMINED - CUSTOMER TO PROVIDE
COMPATIBLE VECTOR GRAPHICS & PMS/VINYL
COLORS PRIOR TO MANUFACTURE

REPAINT EXISTING BOTTOM ALUMINUM REVEAL
TO MATCH SATIN BLACK

NEW SIGN CABINETS TO BE MOUNTED ON [2]
EXISTING 5¼" WIDE x 8¼" DEEP I-BEAM STEEL
SUPPORTS AS REQ’D (EXACT METHOD T.B.D.)

END VIEWA2A1
D/F SIGN CABINETS
TWO [2] SETS REQUIRED - MANUFACTURE & INSTALL

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

9'-4"

9'-0¼"



Address

Approval / Date

Sheet

0404597Ar9

MSW/JAA

RFF

7/8/19

r1-KMc-7/9/19: Rev. opt. 2

r2-MAB-8/5/19: Omit options 2
& 3 - Add Signs “A2, B” & site
plan - Add Temporary option

r3-MAB-8/9/19: Omit Sign “A”
temporary option - Add scope
of work to Sign “B”

r4-MAB-8/14/19: Font options

r5-KMc-8/21/19: Effra Medium
font

r6-RFF-9/12/19: Rev. “A1,A2”
size

r7-RFF-10/7/19: Rev. sizes per
survey

r8-MAB-1/13/20: Reduce “A1”
& “A2” M/T cabinet sizes

R9 KMc 7/15/20: added city
code notes

PRESTONWOOD PLACE

5290 BELT LINE ROAD
ADDISON, TEXAS

97

2301 River Road
Suite 201
Louisville , KY 40206
(502 ) 897-9800 Cell (502) 554-2575

14201 Sovereign Road #101
Fort Worth, TX 76155

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

B

SCALE: 1" = 100'-0"SITE PLAN

A1
A2

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

YOU MUST SUBMIT 2 PAPER COPIES (11 X 17) AND A PDF OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS -
SITE PLAN SHOWING:

LOT LINES
NAMES OF ADJACENT STREETS
LOCATION OF EXISTING BUILDING AND SIGNS

SETBACKS FROM PROPOSED SIGNS

SITE PLANS OF ALL PROPOSED SIGNS WITH:
SCALES

DIMENSIONS
ALL LETTER/LOGO HEIGHTS
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE

ochernomorets
Ellipse

ochernomorets
Polygon



Address

Approval / Date

Sheet

0404597Ar9

MSW/JAA

RFF

7/8/19

r1-KMc-7/9/19: Rev. opt. 2

r2-MAB-8/5/19: Omit options 2
& 3 - Add Signs “A2, B” & site
plan - Add Temporary option

r3-MAB-8/9/19: Omit Sign “A”
temporary option - Add scope
of work to Sign “B”

r4-MAB-8/14/19: Font options

r5-KMc-8/21/19: Effra Medium
font

r6-RFF-9/12/19: Rev. “A1,A2”
size

r7-RFF-10/7/19: Rev. sizes per
survey

r8-MAB-1/13/20: Reduce “A1”
& “A2” M/T cabinet sizes

R9 KMc 7/15/20: added city
code notes

PRESTONWOOD PLACE

5290 BELT LINE ROAD
ADDISON, TEXAS

98

2301 River Road
Suite 201
Louisville , KY 40206
(502 ) 897-9800 Cell (502) 554-2575

14201 Sovereign Road #101
Fort Worth, TX 76155

FINAL ELECTRICAL
CONNECTION BY

CUSTOMER

BELT LINE RD

A1

SIGN LOCATION DETAIL
SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

A2

23'-5"

SIGN LOCATION DETAIL
SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

BELT LINE RD

14'-9"

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

YOU MUST SUBMIT 2 PAPER COPIES (11 X 17) AND A PDF OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS -
SITE PLAN SHOWING:

LOT LINES
NAMES OF ADJACENT STREETS
LOCATION OF EXISTING BUILDING AND SIGNS

SETBACKS FROM PROPOSED SIGNS

SITE PLANS OF ALL PROPOSED SIGNS WITH:
SCALES

DIMENSIONS
ALL LETTER/LOGO HEIGHTS
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE

ochernomorets
Rectangle

ochernomorets
Rectangle

ochernomorets
Rectangle

ochernomorets
Rectangle

ochernomorets
Text Box
14' 5"



   
Council Meeting 15.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Development Services
Pillars: Excellence in Transportation Systems
Milestones: Promote Silver Line Development

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve a
Professional Services Agreement with Cobb, Fendley and Associates for a
Utility Capacity Assessment Related to Future Development Adjacent to the
Addison Transit Center and Silver Line Rail Station in an Amount Not to
Exceed $123,565.

BACKGROUND:
In 2017, anticipating rail service on the Cotton Belt/Silver Line Rail Corridor, the
Town conducted a special area study that established a plan for the 29 acres
surrounding the future rail station adjacent to the existing transit center. This
vision calls for a high density mixed-use transit oriented development that will
make Addison a major destination on the rail line and enhance Addison Circle's
reputation as a desirable place to live, work and play.

The Town is currently in the process of working with DART and the private land
owners to prepare a solicitation for development on these properties. One step in
that process is to understand the current infrastructure and utility capacities in
the area compared with what will be needed when future development
occurs. This will be useful in determining what improvements the Town may need
to make to prepare the sites for development or to require of potential
developers. Staff is proposing to use Cobb, Fendley and Associates to conduct
such an assessment. Cobb Fendley is the Town's current review engineer for all
private development. They are the engineering firm most familiar with the Town's
current utility infrastructure. For this assessment, Cobb Fendley will conduct the
following: 

Stormwater Impact Analysis1.
Potable Water Impact Analysis2.
Wastewater Impact Analysis3.
Franchise Utility Impact Analysis4.
Traffic Impact Analysis5.

In each case, Cobb Fendley will document existing conditions, estimate the
impact of future development to each system, and provide high level design
considerations along with estimated construction costs related to any



considerations along with estimated construction costs related to any
improvements that will be needed to accommodate future development based on
the approved aspirational concept plan.

This information will be shared with potential developers as part of the solicitation
process. This will help reduce the level of risk associated with submitting
a proposal since the Town and the developers will have a common
understanding of any capacity limitations and needed improvements. This should
increase the number and quality of development proposals the Town may expect
to receive during the solicitation process.

This professional services agreement is in an amount not to exceed $123,565.
The funding for this will be from the Fiscal Year 2021 budget and will be split
between the Utility Fund ($74,139) and the Self-Funded Project Fund ($49,426).

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Professional Services Agreement with Cobb, Fendley and
Associates 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 1 of 40 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING THE AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 

SERVICES BETWEEN THE TOWN OF ADDISON AND COBB, FENDLEY & 

ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

RELATED TO THE ADDISON CIRCLE REDEVELOPMENT IMPACT STUDY IN 

AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $123,565.00, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 SECTION 1. The Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between the Town of 

Addison and Cobb, Fendley & Associates, Inc., for professional engineering services related to 

the Addison Circle Redevelopment Impact Study in an amount not to exceed $123,565.00, a copy 

of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is 

hereby authorized to execute the agreement. 

 

 SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 

 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 8th day of SEPTEMBER 2020. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             
Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 2 of 40 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 



   
Council Meeting 16.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health
Milestones: Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial

Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Amending Chapter 82
(Utilities), Section 82-76 and Section 82-77 of the Code of Ordinances of the
Town by Amending Sewer Rates and Water Rates for All Customer
Classifications; Providing that the Changes to the Sewer Rates and Water
Rates Made Herein Shall be Applied to Monthly Customer Bills Beginning
with the November 2020 Billing Cycle.

BACKGROUND:
On January 23, 2018, Council approved a resolution to approve a policy to adopt
utility rates as set forth in the financial plan and utility rate model created by
Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (RFC) which was presented at the January 9,
2018, Council meeting. 

Council gave staff direction to move forward with a policy to adopt utility rates to
fully fund the short-term staffing plan and provide a mix of cash and bond funding
for capital improvement projects by utilizing cost of service adjustments.  The
new adjustments, which will be effective October 1, 2020, consist of the following
proposed increases to water and sewer rates over a five year period:
  

2018: 8%
2019: 6.5%
2020: 6%
2021: 2.5%
2022: 5%

Staff reviews this utility rate model on an annual basis to ensure the rate
adjustments are appropriate.

The Town purchases water and sewage treatment from Dallas Water Utility
(DWU) as well as sewage treatment services from the Trinity River Authority
(TRA). Charges from both entities are included in the financial plan and rate
model created by RFC. Sec. 82-78 of the Town’s code of ordinances provides
that the pass-through of wholesale cost increases for water purchases and sewer



treatment services be included in water and sewer rates, which shall reflect
changes in the costs of water purchases, sewer treatment, and transportation
services, which are paid by the Town to other governmental entities. This means
that the cost increases from these two entities are directly passed to the Town of
Addison customers.

Below are examples of the increase in a water and sewer bill for a single-family:
  
Consumption Existing New Rate (10/1/20) % Increase
5,000 gallons $56.33 $59.71 6.0%
8,000 gallons $82.82 $87.79 6.0%
10,000 gallons $100.48 $106.51 6.0%

The specific rates for each customer class are listed in the attached ordinance.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance - Fiscal Year 2021 Water and Sewer Rate Increase 



TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS ORDINANCE NO.        

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS AMENDING
CHAPTER 82, SECTION 82-76 AND SECTION 82-77 OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE TOWN BY AMENDING SEWER RATES AND
WATER RATES FOR ALL CUSTOMER CLASSIFICATIONS;
PROVIDING THAT THE CHANGES TO THE S E W E R  R A T E S
A N D  WATER RATES MADE HEREIN SHALL BE APPLIED TO
MONTHLY CUSTOMER BILLS BEGINNING WITH THE NOVEMBER
2020 BILLING CYCLE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY  CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the "City") is a home rule municipality
having full power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas
Constitution and its Home Rule Charter; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized by Section 2.08.p. of the City Charter to
provide for a sanitary sewer and water system, and the City is authorized by law (including,
without limitation, Sections 552.001 and 552.017, Tex. Loc. Gov. Code) to own, construct and
operate a water and sewer system and to prescribe rates therefor; and

WHEREAS, adjustments to the City’s water and sewer utility rates have been proposed
by the Town of Addison’s Rate Model, Dallas Water Utilities and Trinity River Authority; and

WHEREAS, the City has conducted a review and evaluation of the City’s water utility
rates and has determined therefrom that the rates need to be adjusted as set forth herein to
support the operating, maintenance, and capital needs of the City’s water utility system.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Code of Ordinances of the Town of Addison, Texas, Chapter 82 (Utilities),
Article I (In General), Division 5 (Rates and Charges), Section 82-76 (Sewage Rates) is hereby
amended in part to change the monthly sewage rates effective October 1, 2020 and to be applied
to the November 2020 customer bill as follows:

Sec. 82-76. - Sewage rates.

(1)  Sewer minimum bills. Minimum monthly bills shall be applied to all customers based
upon  customer  classification  and  shall  include  an  allowance  for  volume  based  upon  water
consumed as follows:

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY

ORDINANCE NO. _____________ PAGE 1



Customer 
Classification:

Minimum Monthly
Bill

Volume
Included (Gallons)

Single-Family Residential 17.14 2,000
Multifamily Residential Large (meter size 
greater than or equal to two inches)

219.12 37,000

Multifamily Residential Small (meter size
less than two inches) 92.18 15,000

Schools 121.03 20,000
Municipal 63.31 10,000
Commercial Large (meter size greater
than or equal to two inches)

219.12 37,000

Commercial Small (meter size less than
two inches)

34.45 5,000

Industrial Large (meter size greater than 
or equal to two inches)

219.12 37,000

Industrial Small (meter size less than two
inches)

22.92 3,000

Hotel/Motel 582.67 100,000

(1) Sewer volume rate. All volume which exceeds the amount allowed
in the minimum bill shall be  charged at a rate of $ 5.78 per 1,000 gallons of water
consumed for all customer classifications.

S  ecti  on 2. The Code of Ordinances of the Town of Addison, Texas,  Chapter 82
(Utilities), Article I (In General), Division 5 (Rates and Charges), Section 82-77 (Water Rates)
is hereby amended in part to increase water rates effective October 1, 2020 and to be applied to
the November 2020 customer bill as follows:

Sec. 82-77. - Water rates

The  customer classifications,  minimum bills,  and  consumption  charges shall be as
follows:

(1.1) Water minimum bills. Minimum monthly bill shall be applied to all
customers  based upon customer classification and shall include an allowance for
volume based upon water consumed as follows:

Customer Classification: Minimum
Monthly Bill

Volume
Included
(Gallons)

Single-Family Residential 14.49 2,000

Multifamily Residential Large (meter size greater than
or equal to two inches) 140.14 37,000
Multifamily  Residential  Small  (meter  size  less  than
two inches) 61.16 15,000

Schools 79.12 20,000

Municipal 43.22 10,000

[Type here]



Commercial Large (meter size greater than or equal to
two inches) 140.14 37,000

Commercial Small (meter size less than two inches) 25.26 5,000

Industrial  Large (meter  size greater  than or equal  to
two inches) 140.14 37,000
Industrial Small (meter size less than two inches) 18.09 3,000

Hotel/Motel 366.30 100,000

Irrigation  Large (meter  size greater  than or equal  to
two inches) 262.59 40,000
Irrigation Small (meter size less than two inches) 103.04 15,000

Fire Meters 36.03 8,000

(1.2) Water volume rate. All volume which exceeds the amount allowed in the
minimum bill shall be charged at a rate of $3.58 per 1,000 gallons of water consumed for
all customer classifications, with the exceptions as noted in subsection (3) below.

(1.3) Water conservation volume rate. Single-family residential customers shall be
charged a rate of $6.38 per 1,000 gallons of water for all water consumed in excess of
15,000 gallons. Irrigation (large and small) customers shall be  charged for all volume,
which exceeds the amount  allowed in the minimum bill, at a rate of $ 6.38 per 1,000
gallons of water consumed.

S  ecti  on 3. S  a  v  i  ngs;         R  e  p  eale  r  . This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other
ordinances of the City and shall not repeal any of the provisions of those ordinances except in
those instances where the provisions of those Ordinances are in direct conflict with the
provisions of this Ordinance. Provided, however, that the repeal of such ordinances or parts of
such ordinances, and the amendments and changes made by this Ordinance, shall not affect any
right, property or claim which was or is vested in the City, or any act done, or right accruing or
accrued, or established, or any suit, action or proceeding had or commenced before the time
when this Ordinance shall take effect; nor shall said repeals, amendments or changes affect any
offense committed, or any penalty or forfeiture incurred, or any suit or prosecution pending at
the time when this Ordinance shall take effect under any of the ordinances or sections thereof so
repealed, amended or changed; and to that extent and for that purpose the provisions of such
ordinances or parts of such ordinances shall be deemed to remain and continue in full force and
effect.

S  ecti  on 4. S  e  v  e  r  a  b  il  it      y. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases, clauses and
words of this Ordinance are severable, and if any section, paragraph, sentence, phrase, clause or
word in this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid or
unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have
passed such remaining portions of this Ordinance despite such invalidity, which remaining
portions shall remain in full force and effect.

S  ecti  on 5. In  c  orpor  ati  on         of         R  ecit  a      l  s  . The above and foregoing recitals to this

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY

ORDINANCE NO. _____________ PAGE 3



Ordinance are true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part of this Ordinance for
all purposes.

S  ecti  on 6. E  ff  ecti  v      e     D  at  e  . This Ordinance shall be effective from and after its date
of passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 8th day of September 2020.

Joe Chow, Mayor

ATTEST:

By:                                                                     
Irma Parker, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:                                                                     
Brenda McDonald, City Attorney

[Type here]



   
Council Meeting 17.           
Meeting Date: 09/08/2020  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health
Milestones: Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial

Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss the Finance Department Quarterly Financial Report of
the Town of Addison for the Fiscal Year 2020 Third Quarter Ended June 30,
2020.

BACKGROUND:
The Town of Addison's financial policies requires the publication of a financial
report 60 days subsequent to the end of each fiscal quarter. This report covers
the financial performance through the third quarter for Fiscal Year 2020 (October
1, 2019 - June 30, 2020). Enclosed in the report is an executive dashboard that
provides a high-level look at some of the key financial indicators along with more
detailed exhibits that demonstrate the current financial position for the various
funds. The report includes information for the following funds: General, Hotel,
Economic Development, Airport, Utility, and Stormwater funds.

Key highlights for the third quarter include: 
General Fund revenue totaled $35.2 million, which is 89.9 percent of the
fiscal year budget.
General Fund expenditures totaled $29.3 million, which is 68.0 percent of
the fiscal year budget. 
Sales tax collections totaled $10.9 million, which is 79.5 percent of the fiscal
year budget.
The Hotel Fund had revenue of $3.2 million and expenditures of $3.3 million,
which are below historical averages.  
Performing Arts expenditures are at 100.0 percent due to the final payment
of the Water Tower Theatre grant.
Special Events revenues totaled 8.9 percent, and expenses totaled 18.3
percent of the fiscal year budget. This is because of the cancellation
of events due to COVID-19.
Airport Fund operating revenue totaled $5.4 million or 76.8 percent, and
operating expenditures totaled $3.9 million or 69.0 percent of the fiscal year
budget.
Utility Fund operating revenue totaled $8.0 million or 60.9 percent, and
expenditures totaled $8.8 million or 67.4 percent of the fiscal year budget.



With a one-month lag in the collection of utility revenues, 66.7 percent of the
fiscal year has expired. The year-to-date revenue and percent of budget is in
line with prior year. Wastewater treatment expenses are high due to the
timing of payments and will continue to be monitored throughout the fiscal
year.
Stormwater Fund revenue totaled $1.7 million or 69.7 percent, and
expenditures totaled $793 thousand or 53.3 percent of the fiscal year
budget.  With a one-month lag in the collection of stormwater revenues, 66.7
percent of the fiscal year has expired.

The Quarterly Investment Report for Quarter 3 of Fiscal Year 2020 is also being
provided for informational purposes. This report has been prepared in
accordance with state law and the Town's Financial Policies. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.

Attachments
Presentation - Quarterly Financial Report Fiscal Year 2020 Third Quarter 
Quarterly Financial Report - Fiscal Year 2020 Third Quarter 
Quarterly Investment Report - Fiscal Year 2020 Third Quarter 



Quarterly Financial Report
Fiscal Year 2020 Third 

Quarter

1

September 8, 2020



Executive Dashboard – Key Revenue Sources

2

Positive variance compared to historical trends Positive

Negative variance of 3%-5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Warning

Negative variance of >5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Negative

Key Revenue Sources FY2020
Budget

Actual through 
6/30/20

% Annual 
Budget

Ad Valorem Taxes - General Fund  $              18,752,174  $              18,560,829 98.98%

Non-Property Taxes - General Fund                  14,840,000                  11,605,864 78.21%

Hotel Tax                    5,540,000                    2,683,789 48.44%
(1)

Franchise Fees - General Fund                    2,332,100                    1,798,398 77.11%

Service/Permitting/License Fees - General Fund                    2,706,790                    2,398,947 88.63%

Rental Income - All Funds                    5,223,600                    3,632,512 69.54%

Fines and Penalties - All Funds                       427,000                       229,012 53.63%
(2)

Special Event Revenue - Hotel Fund                    1,297,500                       115,120 8.87%
(3)

Fuel Flowage Fees - Airport Fund                       916,000                       631,302 68.92%

Water and Sewer Charges - Utility Fund                  12,927,738                    7,829,408 60.56%

Financial Indicators

(1) Hotel tax revenue reflects less hotel occupancy due to COVID-19
(2) Municipal court fines due to fewer citations issued
(3) Special event revenue reflects cancellation of special events due to COVID-19



Executive Dashboard – Key Expenditures

3

Positive variance compared to historical trends Positive

Negative variance of 3%-5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Warning

Negative variance of >5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Negative

Key Expenditures FY2020
Budget

Actual through 
6/30/20

% Annual 
Budget

General Fund  $              43,119,096  $              29,335,395 68.03%

Hotel Fund                    7,971,396                    3,264,006 40.95%

Economic Development                    1,870,331                       999,048 53.42%

Airport Operations                    5,635,675                    3,886,070 68.95%

Utility Operations                  13,112,660                    8,832,345 67.36%

Financial Indicators



Personnel Information 

4
(1) FY2020 budget includes 58 budgeted positions plus overfill of 1 Firefighter (F3) position

FY2020 FY2020

Department Part-Time 
Positions

Full-time 
positions

Total 3rd 
Qtr YTD Department Part-Time 

Positions
Full-time 
positions

Total 3rd 
Qtr YTD

City Manager 0 0 0 0 City Manager 0 0 0 0

Conference Centre 0 0 0 1 Conference Centre 0 0 0 3

Development Services 0 0 0 0 Development Services 0 0 0 1

Finance 0 0 0 2 Finance 0 0 0 2

Fire 0 2 2 3 Fire 0 2 2 6

General Services 0 1 1 1 General Services 0 0 0 0

Human Resources 0 0 0 0 Human Resources 0 0 0 0

Public Works 0 4 4 6 Public Works 0 1 1 4

Municipal Court 0 0 0 0 Municipal Court 0 0 0 0

Parks 0 0 0 1 Parks 0 0 0 2

Police 0 1 1 4 Police 0 1 1 4

Recreation 0 0 0 2 Recreation 0 0 0 2

Special Events 0 0 0 1 Special Events 0 0 0 1

Streets 0 0 0 0 Streets 0 0 0 2

Grand Total 0 8 8 21 Grand Total 0 4 4 27

Police 74 71 96%
Fire (1) 58 58 100%

Staffing Indicators

New Hires - Benefitted PositionsSeparations - Benefitted Positions

Public Safety          
Sworn Positions

Budgeted   
FY 2020

Filled 
Positions

Percent 
Filled

Personnel Information:

4/2020-6/20204/2020-6/2020



Economic Indicators 

5

0.00%

2.50%

5.00%

7.50%

10.00%

12.50%

DFW Unemployment Rate 
Last 12 months

 $-
 $10
 $20
 $30
 $40
 $50
 $60
 $70
 $80
 $90

Hotel Revenue Per Available Room

0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%
40.0%
50.0%
60.0%
70.0%
80.0%
90.0%

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120
Addison Hotel Statistics

Room Rate (ADR) Rev Par

1,534 
1,312 

1,164 
917 

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

0
200
400
600
800

1,000
1,200
1,400
1,600
1,800

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 YTD

M
illi

on
s

# 
of

 P
er

m
its

Total Permits Issued and Valuation

Total Permits Issued Total Permit Valuation

80  95  94 
41 

83 
143  139 

40 

145 

153  127 

94 

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

FY17 3rd Qtr FY18 3rd Qtr FY19 3rd Qtr FY20 3rd Qtr

# 
of

 P
er

m
its

Quarterly Permit Activity, Year over 
Year

Certificates of Occupancy Building Permits

Other Permits

Occupancy Indicators: Hotel Indicators
Office Occupancy = Retail Occupancy = Hotel Occupancy = RevPar =

79.7% 92.2% 21.0% $14.90 
1.7% -2.0% -5.17% -6.70%

Source: CoStar (compares to prior year Q1) Source:  STR Report (compares to prior year Q1)

3.6% 0.1% 47.5% 78.1%



Economic Indicators

6

Economic Development Incentives:

Executed 
Agreements

Amount Paid 
FY20

Total Incentives 
Committed

5 $384,869 $480,334

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

Addison
(10% decrease)

Carrollton
(1% decrease)

Farmers Branch
(7% decrease)

Richardson
(5% increase)

M
ill

io
ns

3rd Quarter Sales Tax Comparison

FY2019 FY2020



Sales Tax Collections

7

$400,000
$600,000
$800,000

$1,000,000
$1,200,000
$1,400,000
$1,600,000
$1,800,000
$2,000,000
$2,200,000
$2,400,000
$2,600,000
$2,800,000

Monthly Sales Tax Collections

FY2018 FY2019 FY2020



Sales Tax Collections

8

% Change
from

FY2020 Prior Year FY2019
Monthly Collections Monthly Collections

October 1,384,839$                 7.0% 1,294,332$                 
November 1,269,353                   8.7% 1,168,041                   
December 1,188,777                   4.5% 1,137,218                   
January 1,430,683                   -26.7% 1,951,678                   
February 1,241,465                   3.3% 1,202,189                   
March 1,080,029                   6.3% 1,016,343                   
April 1,166,877                   -13.9% 1,355,558                   
May 931,272                      -18.2% 1,138,099                   
June 1,199,683                   3.0% 1,164,646                   
July 1,259,503                   
August 1,184,583                   
September 1,144,891                   

10,892,979$               15,017,082$               

Budget: 13,700,000                 79.5% 13,700,000                 

TOWN OF ADDISON
Schedule of Sales Tax Collections
For the quarter ending June 30,2020

*Most recent data available is through Q2



General Fund Revenue 

9

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL
ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget
Revenues:
Ad Valorem taxes:

Current taxes 17,296,733$   18,781,674$    (104,248)$       18,894,435$    100.6%
Delinquent taxes (96,002)          (70,000)           (41,288)           (361,406)         516.3% (1)

Penalty & interest 40,238           40,500            11,539            27,800            68.6%
Non-property taxes:

Sales tax 15,017,082     13,700,000     3,178,178       10,892,979     79.5%
Alcoholic beverage tax 1,151,057      1,140,000       121,539          712,885          62.5%

Franchise / right-of-way use fees:
Electric franchise 1,534,930      1,560,000       347,856          1,174,183       75.3%
Gas franchise 253,426         216,600          -                    204,919          94.6%
Telecommunication access fees 400,099         400,000          66,446            254,512          63.6%
Cable franchise 270,799         150,000          32,361            164,784          109.9%
Street rental fees -                    5,500             -                    -                    0.0%

Licenses and permits:
Business licenses and permits 222,420         165,700          19,205            83,582            50.4%
Building and construction permits 1,144,521      574,500          109,036          940,204          163.7%

Service fees:
General government -                    -                    15,575            20                  0.0%
Public safety 907,174         942,300          209,591          652,903          69.3%
Urban development 2,180             60,300            8,459             10,045            16.7%
Streets and sanitation 403,677         377,200          110,753          293,668          77.9%
Recreation 64,452           70,300            3,028             31,156            44.3%
Interfund 349,380         516,490          129,123          387,368          75.0%

Court fines 376,362         352,000          38,581            192,564          54.7% (2)

Interest earnings 643,083         100,000          48,581            376,735          376.7%
Rental income 7,380             7,600             3,300             5,652             74.4%
Other 262,961         3,000             130,083          223,619          7454.0% (3)

Total Revenues 40,251,952     39,093,664     4,437,698       35,162,608     89.9%

(1) Delinquent property tax refunds
(2) Municipal court has fewer court fines/fees issued due to COVID-19
(3) Includes sale of City property not budgeted for in FY2020



General Fund Expenditures

10

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL
ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget
Expenditures:
General Government:

City Secretary 175,970         207,783          41,287            123,046          59.2%
City Manager 1,186,118      1,246,999       285,251          882,871          70.8%
Finance 2,044,165      1,849,829       414,990          1,175,791       63.6%
General Services 716,848         766,195          157,771          472,494          61.7%
Municipal Court 650,660         739,563          134,954          470,564          63.6%
Human Resources 643,118         713,207          141,459          463,584          65.0%
Information Technology 2,006,930      2,220,737       471,054          1,390,408       62.6%
Combined Services 1,163,133      1,388,593       554,213          1,012,547       72.9%

Council Projects 330,555         351,811          191,721          400,084          113.7% (1) 

Public Safety:
Police 9,354,818      9,988,388       2,068,195       6,625,327       66.3%
Emergency Communications 1,365,490      1,432,188       900,988          1,355,930       94.7%
Fire 7,868,725      8,362,015       1,957,354       6,010,797       71.9%

Development Services 1,350,598      1,626,900       324,510          1,008,567       62.0%

Streets 1,777,128      2,220,634       347,667          1,132,729       51.0%
Parks and Recreation:

Parks 3,911,318      4,044,545       870,526          2,556,041       63.2%
Recreation 1,609,586      1,899,309       358,700          1,137,351       59.9%

Other financing uses:
Transfers to other funds 4,471,504      4,060,400       1,087,063       3,117,263       76.8%

Total Expenditures 40,626,664     43,119,096     10,307,705     29,335,395     68.0%

Net Change in Fund Balance (374,712)        (4,025,432)      (5,870,007)      5,827,213       

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 20,962,956     20,588,244     20,588,244     
Fund Balance at End of Year 20,588,244$   16,562,812$    26,415,457$    

(1) Additional payment of $85,000 to MetroCrest Services to be included in End-of-Year Budget Amendment



Hotel Fund 

11

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL
ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Revenues:
Hotel/Motel occupancy taxes 5,401,691$     5,540,000$     498,033$        2,683,789$     48.4% (1)

Proceeds from special events 1,043,162      1,297,500       (13,840)           115,120          8.9% (2)

Conference centre rental 523,710         630,000          (4,198)            258,407          41.0% (3)

Theatre centre rental 88,460           77,000            3,071             57,392            74.5%
Interest and miscellaneous 108,265         25,000            6,308             53,627            214.5%

Total Revenues 7,165,288      7,569,500       489,374          3,168,336       41.9%

Expenditures:
Addison theatre centre 291,298         421,938          47,654            148,862          35.3%
Conference centre 956,507         1,152,735       177,629          657,427          57.0%
General hotel operations 142,763         144,173          1,990             51,832            36.0%
Marketing 962,526         1,134,939       157,192          452,251          39.8%
Performing arts 437,900         505,000          55,552            505,000          100.0% (4)

Special events 2,579,212      2,812,567       128,378          514,889          18.3% (2)

Special events operations 903,337         998,354          170,579          535,792          53.7%
Attractions Capital Projects 1,039,680      33,690            4,503             13,953            41.4%
Other financing uses:

Transfer to Economic Development Fund 715,000         768,000          -                    384,000          50.0%
Total Expenditures 8,028,225      7,971,396       743,478          3,264,006       40.9%

Net Change in Fund Balance (862,937)        (401,896)         (254,104)         (95,670)           

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 4,122,537      3,259,600       3,259,600       
Fund Balance at End of Year 3,259,600$     2,857,704$     3,163,931$     

(1) Hotel tax fell significantly in the 3rd quarter due to the effects of COVID-19
(2) Special event revenues and expenses are low because of cancellation of events due to COVID-19 
(3) Conference Centre rental revenue fell sharply due to COVID-19 and the subsequent closure of the Conference Centre

    historical data. 

(4) Final matching grant payment for non-profit grant funding to Water Tower Theatre in June 2020. Amount is in line with



Economic Development Fund

12

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL
ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Revenues:
Ad Valorem taxes: 1,086,365$     1,105,981$     (7,862)$           1,089,037$     98.5%
Business license fee 64,026           50,500            2,500             34,360            68.0%
Interest income and other 48,416           30,000            7,533             41,287            137.6%
Transfers from General/Hotel Fund 715,000         768,000          -                    384,000          50.0%
Total Revenues 1,913,807      1,954,481       2,171             1,548,684       79.2%

Expenditures:
Personnel services 453,011         479,272          107,803          338,329          70.6%
Supplies 18,456           23,645            722                4,829             20.4%
Maintenance 17,805           23,237            6,640             13,652            58.7%
Contractual services 1,042,520      1,327,180       163,040          629,511          47.4%
Capital replacement/lease 22,021           16,997            4,249             12,728            74.9%

Total Expenditures 1,553,813      1,870,331       282,454          999,048          53.4%

Net Change in Fund Balance 359,994         84,150            (280,283)         549,636          

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1,437,025      1,797,019       1,797,019       
Fund Balance at End of Year 1,797,019$     1,881,169$     2,346,655$     



Airport Fund

13

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL
ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Operating Revenues:
Operating grants -$                  1,360,000$     1,224,219$     1,224,219$     90.0% (1)

Service fees 103,306         138,000          22,014            78,212            56.7% (2)

Fuel flowage fees 1,019,452      916,000          138,065          631,302          68.9% (2)

Rental income 5,488,112      4,509,000       1,093,083       3,311,060       73.4%
Interest income and other 356,442         80,000            20,075            131,308          164.1%

Total Operating Revenues: 6,967,312      7,003,000       2,497,456       5,376,102       76.8%

Operating Expenses:
Town - Personnel services 324,776         470,762          75,068            239,983          51.0%
Town - Supplies 33,600           41,000            1,641             5,208             12.7%
Town - Maintenance 77,453           53,441            13,910            46,637            87.3%
Town - Contractual services 186,367         261,983          28,230            149,770          57.2%
Town - Capital Replacement/Lease 32,292           217,258          54,315            162,944          75.0%
Town - Debt service 763,934         853,910          -                    691,710          81.0%
Operator - Operations and maintenance 2,761,617      3,308,028       773,300          2,316,948       70.0%
Operator - Service contract 522,020         429,293          88,704            272,871          63.6%

Total Operating Expenses: 4,702,059      5,635,675       1,035,168       3,886,070       69.0%

Capital Projects (Cash Funded) 31,703           3,563,917       38,220            1,063,860       29.9%
Total Expenses: 4,733,762      9,199,592       1,073,388       4,949,930       53.8%

Net Change in Fund Balance 2,233,550      (2,196,592)      1,424,068       426,172          

Working Capital at Beginning of Year 4,812,377      7,045,927       7,045,927       
Working Capital at End of Year 7,045,927$     4,849,335$     7,472,099$     

(1) Routine Airport Maintenance Project (RAMP) grant funds are typically received in the 4th quarter
(2) Percentage is below the quarterly threshold but actuals are in line with historical trends



Utility Fund

14

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL
ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Operating revenues:
Water sales 6,663,348$     7,051,676$     1,510,709$     4,301,911$     61.0% (1)

Sewer charges 5,144,473      5,876,062       1,223,914       3,527,497       60.0% (1)

Tap fees 7,050             25,275            3,800             6,575             26.0% (1)

Penalties 124,261         75,000            (1,349)            36,448            48.6%
Interest income and other 169,769         94,600            14,029            117,244          123.9%

Total Operating Revenues: 12,108,901     13,122,613     2,751,103       7,989,674       60.9%

Operating expenses:
Personnel services 1,716,439      2,264,720       516,163          1,392,603       61.5%
Supplies 176,462         217,990          41,790            146,652          67.3%
Maintenance 329,051         495,622          148,137          306,812          61.9%
Contractual services
     Water purchases 3,467,867      3,435,039       560,977          2,219,680       64.6%
     Wastewater treatment 3,635,316      3,373,435       647,919          2,737,528       81.1% (2)

     Other services 863,217         1,390,199       131,462          567,290          40.8%
Capital Replacement/Lease 340,657         331,857          82,964            248,893          75.0%
Debt service 1,133,162      1,513,798       -                    1,185,052       78.3%
Capital outlay 74,949           90,000            -                    27,836            30.9%

Total Operating Expenses: 11,737,120     13,112,660     2,129,412       8,832,345       67.4%

Capital Projects (Cash Funded) 338,352         1,813,000       174,974          336,610          18.6%
Total Expenses: 12,075,472     14,925,660     2,304,386       9,168,955       61.4%

Net Change in Fund Balance 33,429           (1,803,047)      446,718          (1,179,281)      

Working Capital at Beginning of Year 6,233,408      6,266,837       6,266,837       
Working Capital at End of Year 6,266,837$     4,463,790$     5,087,556$     

(1) Revenues represent a one-month lag in the collection and there is heavy seasonality with water revenue
(2) Wastewater treatment expenses are high due to the timing of payments



Stormwater Utility Fund

15

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL
ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Operating revenues:
   Drainage Fees 2,235,566$     2,349,795$     581,926$        1,572,628$     66.9% (1)

Interest income and other 159,165         53,900            12,924            102,731          190.6%
Total Operating Revenues: 2,394,731      2,403,695       594,851          1,675,360       69.7%

Operating expenses
Personnel services 275,422         304,134          53,945            198,963          65.4%
Supplies 16,117           20,597            1,721             7,639             37.1%
Maintenance 77,810           210,700          4,349             4,884             2.3%
Contractual services 179,173         367,874          41,255            112,012          30.4%
Debt service 546,916         544,466          -                    421,108          77.3%
Capital outlay 21,035           40,000            5,651             48,524            121.3% (2)

Other financing uses:
Capital Projects (Cash Funded) -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0%

Total Operating Expenses: 1,116,473      1,487,771       106,921          793,131          53.3%

Capital Projects (Cash Funded) 50,449           1,181,000       23,562            29,404            2.5%
Total Expenses: 1,166,922      2,668,771       130,483          822,535          30.8%

Net Change in Fund Balance 1,227,809      (265,076)         464,367          852,824          

Working Capital at Beginning of Year 5,240,798      6,468,607       6,468,607       
Working Capital at End of Year 6,468,607$     6,203,531$     7,321,431$     

(1) Fees represent a one-month lag in the collection of stormwater revenue but actuals are in line with historical trends
(2) Capital outlay includes the purchase of one delayed arrival vehicle 



Hotel Occupancy Tax Collections

16

 $-

 $200

 $400

 $600

 $800

 $1,000

 $1,200

 $1,400

 $1,600

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Quarterly Data

Full Service Extended Stay Bus. Moderate Economy

20 to 19
Number % Amount % % Diff.

Full Service
Marriott Quorum 547                          13% 34,372$                  14% -86%
Renaissance 528                          13% 5,802                       2% -97%
(1) Crowne Plaza 428                          10% -                                0% -100%

1,503                       37% 40,174                    16% -93%
Extended Stay

Budget Suites 344                          8% 9,413                       4% 100%
Hawthorn Suites 70                            2% 6,040                       2% -68%
Marriott Residence Inn 150                          4% 9,289                       4% -87%
Hyatt House 132                          3% 13,263                    5% -74%
Homewood Suites 120                          3% 15,179                    6% -74%
Home2Suites 132                          3% 14,196                    6% -82%
Springhill Suites 159                          4% 6,991                       3% -90%

1,107                       27% 74,371                    30% -79%
Business Moderate

Marriott Courtyard Quorum 176                          4% 9,219                       4% -90%
LaQuinta Inn 152                          4% 19,714                    8% -63%
Marriott Courtyard Midway 145                          4% 7,290                       3% -88%
Radisson - Addison 101                          2% 4,704                       2% -88%
Hilton Garden Inn 96                            2% 6,727                       3% -87%
Holiday Inn Express 97                            2% 9,508                       4% 100%
Holiday Inn Beltway 102                          2% 5,599                       2% 100%
Best Western Plus 84                            2% 15,167                    6% -48%

953                          23% 77,929                    31% -79%
Economy

Motel 6 127                          3% 24,807                    10% -18%
(2) Hampton Inn 158                          4% -                                0% -100%
Red Roof Inn 105                          3% 16,194                    6% -43%
Quality Suites North/Galleria 78                            2% 13,982                    6% -47%
America's Best Value Inn 60                            1% 3,150                       1% -56%

528                          13% 58,134                    23% -62%

TOTAL 4,091                       100% 250,608$                100% -83%

Rooms Apr. - June 2020

(1) Crowne Plaza has closed permanently
(2) Town of Addison has not yet received June payment



Investment Report Summary

17

Book Value Market Value Interest Revenue

Weighted 
Average Yield‐to‐

Maturity
06/30/2020 106,443,479          106,710,716          341,986                  1.08%
03/31/2020 111,000,586          111,356,528          514,589                  1.63%
Change (4,557,107)             (4,645,812)             (172,603)                ‐0.55%

% Change ‐4.11% ‐4.17% ‐33.54% ‐33.64%



 

Department of Finance 

Quarterly Review 
 

For the Period Ended June 30, 2020 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

               Town of Addison 
 



Table of Contents - Quarter Ended 6/30/20 

Memorandum to the City Manager ..................................................................................... 1-2 

Executive Dashboard .......................................................................................................... 3-6 

General Fund, Quarterly Statement of Revenues Compared to Budget .................................7 

General Fund, Quarterly Statement of Expenditures Compared to Budget  ...........................8 

Hotel Fund ..............................................................................................................................9 

Economic Development Fund ............................................................................................... 10 

Airport Fund ......................................................................................................................... 11 

Utility Fund ........................................................................................................................... 12 

Stormwater Fund ................................................................................................................... 13 

Schedule of Sales Tax Collections and Related Analyses .................................................... 14 

Hotel Occupancy Tax Collection by Hotel Service Type ..................................................... 15 



To: Wes Pierson, City Manager 

From: Steven Glickman, Chief Financial Officer 

Re: Third Quarter Financial Review 

Date: 8/31/2020 

This is the third quarter report for the 2019-2020 fiscal year.  Revenues and expenditures 
reflect activity from October 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 or 75 percent of the fiscal year. 

GENERAL FUND 

 Fiscal year-to-date revenue totals $35.2 million, which is 89.9 percent of the overall
budget amount.  Sales tax collections are at 79.5 percent of the fiscal year 2020 budget.
Alcoholic beverage tax collections are at 62.5 percent of the fiscal year 2020 budget.

 Fiscal year-to-date expenditures and transfers total approximately $29.3 million,
which is 68 percent of budget.  All departments are on pace with or below their
respective budgets.

HOTEL FUND 

 Revenues through the third quarter total approximately $3.2 million, 41.9 percent of
the fiscal year 2020 budget. Hotel occupancy tax collections are 48.4 percent of
budget through eight months of collections.  Proceeds from Special Events are
below budget because of cancellation of events due to COVID-19.

 Hotel Fund expenditures of $3.3 million are 40.9 percent of budget, and $1.0 million
less than this time a year ago.  Performing Arts expenditures are at 100 percent
due to the final payment of the Water Tower Theater grant.  Special events
expenditures are at 18.3 percent because of the cancellation of events due to
COVID-19.

AIRPORT FUND 

 Operating revenue through the third quarter total approximately $5.4 million or 76.8
percent of the fiscal year 2020 budget.

 Operating expenses total $3.9 million, or 69 percent of fiscal year 2020 budget.

 Through the third quarter $1.1 million has been spent on cash funded capital
projects.

 Total year-to-date net income for the Airport Fund is $426 thousand.

1



UTILITY FUND 

 Operating revenue through the third quarter totals $8.0 million, or 60.9 percent of
the fiscal year 2020 budget.  With a one-month lag in the collection of utility
revenues, 66.7 percent of the fiscal year has expired.  Water revenues are at 61
percent of the fiscal year 2020 budget.  There is heavy seasonality with water
revenue.  The year-to-date revenue and percent of budget is in line with prior year.

 Operating expenses through the third quarter total approximately $8.8 million, or
67.4 percent of the fiscal year 2020 budget.  Wastewater treatment expenses are
high due to the timing of payments and will continue to be monitored throughout the
fiscal year.

STORMWATER FUND 

 Operating revenue through the third quarter total $1.7 million, or 69.7 percent of the
fiscal year 2020 budget.  With a one-month lag in the collection of stormwater
revenues, 66.7 percent of the fiscal year has expired.

 Operating expenses through the third quarter total approximately $793 thousand,
or 53.3 percent of the fiscal year 2020 budget.  The percentage to budget is driven
by our debt service payment, which was made in Q2 of the fiscal year.  Capital
expense includes the purchase of a new vehicle.

2



Positive variance compared to historical trends Positive

Negative variance of 3%-5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Warning

Negative variance of >5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Negative

Key Revenue Sources
FY2020
Budget

Actual through 
6/30/20

% Annual 
Budget

Ad Valorem Taxes - General Fund  $                18,752,174  $                18,560,829 98.98%

Non-Property Taxes - General Fund                    14,840,000                    11,605,864 78.21%

Hotel Tax                      5,540,000                      2,683,789 48.44%
(1)

Franchise Fees - General Fund                      2,332,100                      1,798,398 77.11%

Service/Permitting/License Fees - General Fund                      2,706,790                      2,398,947 88.63%

Rental Income - All Funds                      5,223,600                      3,632,512 69.54%

Fines and Penalties - All Funds                         427,000                         229,012 53.63%
(2)

Special Event Revenue - Hotel Fund                      1,297,500                         115,120 8.87%
(3)

Fuel Flowage Fees - Airport Fund                         916,000                         631,302 68.92%

Water and Sewer Charges - Utility Fund                    12,927,738                      7,829,408 60.56%

Key Expenditures
FY2020
Budget

Actual through 
6/30/20

% Annual 
Budget

General Fund  $                43,119,096  $                29,335,395 68.03%

Hotel Fund                      7,971,396                      3,264,006 40.95%

Economic Development                      1,870,331                         999,048 53.42%

Airport Operations                      5,635,675                      3,886,070 68.95%

Utility Operations                    13,112,660                      8,832,345 67.36%

(1) Hotel tax revenue reflects less hotel occupancy due to COVID-19
(2) Municipal court has fewer court fines/fees issued due to COVID-19
(3) Special event revenue reflects cancellation of special events due to COVID-19

Executive Dashboard - 3rd Quarter, 2020 Fiscal Year

Financial Indicators

3



FY2020 FY2020

Department
Part-Time 
Positions

Full-time 
positions

Total 3rd 
Qtr

YTD Department
Part-Time 
Positions

Full-time 
positions

Total 3rd 
Qtr

YTD

City Manager 0 0 0 0 City Manager 0 0 0 0

Conference Centre 0 0 0 1 Conference Centre 0 0 0 3

Development Services 0 0 0 0 Development Services 0 0 0 1

Finance 0 0 0 2 Finance 0 0 0 2

Fire 0 2 2 3 Fire 0 2 2 6

General Services 0 1 1 1 General Services 0 0 0 0

Human Resources 0 0 0 0 Human Resources 0 0 0 0

Public Works 0 4 4 6 Public Works 0 1 1 4

Municipal Court 0 0 0 0 Municipal Court 0 0 0 0

Parks 0 0 0 1 Parks 0 0 0 2

Police 0 1 1 4 Police 0 1 1 4

Recreation 0 0 0 2 Recreation 0 0 0 2

Special Events 0 0 0 1 Special Events 0 0 0 1

Streets 0 0 0 0 Streets 0 0 0 2

Grand Total 0 8 8 21 Grand Total 0 4 4 27

Police 74 71 96%

Fire (1)
58 58 100%

(1) FY2020 budget includes 58 budgeted positions plus overfill of 1 Firefighter (F3) position

Executive Dashboard - 3rd Quarter, 2020 Fiscal Year

Staffing Indicators

New Hires - Benefitted PositionsSeparations - Benefitted Positions

Public Safety          
Sworn Positions

Budgeted    
FY 2020

Filled 
Positions

Percent 
Filled

Personnel Information:

4/2020-6/20204/2020-6/2020

4



1.7% -2.0% -5.17% -6.70%

Source:  STR Report (compares to prior year Q3)

* Decrease due to effects of COVID-19

Executive Dashboard - 3rd Quarter, 2020 Fiscal Year

Economic Indicators

$14.90

Source: CoStar (compares to prior year Q3)

Occupancy Indicators: Hotel Indicators

Office Occupancy = Retail Occupancy = Hotel Occupancy = RevPar =

Economic Development Incentives:

$384,869 5 $480,334

79.7% 92.2% 21.0%

Total Incentives 
Committed

Amount Paid 
FY20

Executed 
Agreements

0.00%
1.00%
2.00%
3.00%
4.00%
5.00%
6.00%
7.00%
8.00%
9.00%

10.00%
11.00%
12.00%
13.00%
14.00%

DFW Unemployment Rate 
Last 12 months

 $5

 $15
 $25
 $35
 $45
 $55
 $65
 $75
 $85

Hotel Revenue Per Available 
Room

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

Addison Hotel Statistics

Room Rate (ADR) Rev Par Occupancy

1,534 
1,312 

1,164 

917 

$0
$20
$40
$60
$80
$100
$120
$140
$160
$180
$200

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 YTD

M
ill

io
n

s

#
 o

f 
P

e
rm

its

Total Permits Issued and Valuation

Total Permits Issued Total Permit Valuation

80  95  94 
41 

83 

143  139 

40 

145 

153 
127 

94 

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600

FY17 3rd Qtr FY18 3rd Qtr FY19 3rd Qtr FY20 3rd Qtr

# 
of

 P
er

m
its

Quarterly Permit Activity, Year over Year

Certificates of Occupancy Building Permits Other Permits

3.6% 0.1%

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

Addison
(10% decrease)

Carrollton
(1% decrease)

Farmers Branch
(7% decrease)

Richardson
(5% increase)

M
ill

io
n

s

3rd Quarter Sales Tax Comparison

FY2019 FY2020

47.5% 78.1%

5



Executive Dashboard - 3rd Quarter, 2020 Fiscal Year

Sales Tax Information

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

$1,800,000

$2,000,000

$2,200,000

$2,400,000

$2,600,000

$2,800,000

Monthly Sales Tax Collections

FY2018 FY2019 FY2020

6



Positive variance compared to historical trends Positive
Negative variance of 3%-5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Warning
Negative variance of >5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Negative

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL

ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Revenues:

Ad Valorem taxes:

Current taxes 17,296,733$   18,781,674$    (104,248)$        18,894,435$    100.6%

Delinquent taxes (96,002)           (70,000)            (41,288)            (361,406)          516.3% (1)

Penalty & interest 40,238            40,500             11,539             27,800             68.6%

Non-property taxes:

Sales tax 15,017,082     13,700,000      3,178,178        10,892,979      79.5%

Alcoholic beverage tax 1,151,057       1,140,000        121,539           712,885           62.5%

Franchise / right-of-way use fees:

Electric franchise 1,534,930       1,560,000        347,856           1,174,183        75.3%

Gas franchise 253,426          216,600           -                      204,919           94.6%

Telecommunication access fees 400,099          400,000           66,446             254,512           63.6%

Cable franchise 270,799          150,000           32,361             164,784           109.9%

Street rental fees -                      5,500               -                      -                      0.0%

Licenses and permits:

Business licenses and permits 222,420          165,700           19,205             83,582             50.4%

Building and construction permits 1,144,521       574,500           109,036           940,204           163.7%

Service fees:

General government -                      -                      15,575             20                    0.0%

Public safety 907,174          942,300           209,591           652,903           69.3%

Urban development 2,180              60,300             8,459               10,045             16.7%

Streets and sanitation 403,677          377,200           110,753           293,668           77.9%

Recreation 64,452            70,300             3,028               31,156             44.3%

Interfund 349,380          516,490           129,123           387,368           75.0%

Court fines 376,362          352,000           38,581             192,564           54.7% (2)

Interest earnings 643,083          100,000           48,581             376,735           376.7%

Rental income 7,380              7,600               3,300               5,652               74.4%

Other 262,961          3,000               130,083           223,619           7454.0% (3)

Total Revenues 40,251,952     39,093,664      4,437,698        35,162,608      89.9%

(1) Delinquent property tax refunds
(2) Municipal court has fewer court fines/fees issued due to COVID-19
(3) Includes sale of City property not budgeted for in FY2020

TOWN OF ADDISON
GENERAL FUND

FY2020 QUARTERLY STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

With Comparative Information from Prior Fiscal Year

7



Positive variance compared to historical trends Positive
Negative variance of 3%-5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Warning
Negative variance of >5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Negative

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL

ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Expenditures:

General Government:

City Secretary 175,970          207,783           41,287             123,046           59.2%

City Manager 1,186,118       1,246,999        285,251           882,871           70.8%

Finance 2,044,165       1,849,829        414,990           1,175,791        63.6%

General Services 716,848          766,195           157,771           472,494           61.7%

Municipal Court 650,660          739,563           134,954           470,564           63.6%

Human Resources 643,118          713,207           141,459           463,584           65.0%

Information Technology 2,006,930       2,220,737        471,054           1,390,408        62.6%

Combined Services 1,163,133       1,388,593        554,213           1,012,547        72.9%

Council Projects 330,555          351,811           191,721           400,084           113.7% (1) 

Public Safety:

Police 9,354,818       9,988,388        2,068,195        6,625,327        66.3%

Emergency Communications 1,365,490       1,432,188        900,988           1,355,930        94.7%

Fire 7,868,725       8,362,015        1,957,354        6,010,797        71.9%

Development Services 1,350,598       1,626,900        324,510           1,008,567        62.0%

Streets 1,777,128       2,220,634        347,667           1,132,729        51.0%

Parks and Recreation:

Parks 3,911,318       4,044,545        870,526           2,556,041        63.2%

Recreation 1,609,586       1,899,309        358,700           1,137,351        59.9%

Other financing uses:

Transfers to other funds 4,471,504       4,060,400        1,087,063        3,117,263        76.8%

Total Expenditures 40,626,664     43,119,096      10,307,705      29,335,395      68.0%

Net Change in Fund Balance (374,712)         (4,025,432)       (5,870,007)       5,827,213        

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 20,962,956     20,588,244      20,588,244      

Fund Balance at End of Year 20,588,244$   16,562,812$    26,415,457$    

(1) Additional payment of $85,000 to MetroCrest Services to be included in End-of-Year Budget Amendment

TOWN OF ADDISON
GENERAL FUND

FY2020 QUARTERLY STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

With Comparative Information from Prior Fiscal Year

8



Positive variance compared to historical trends Positive
Negative variance of 3%-5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Warning
Negative variance of >5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Negative

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL

ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Revenues:

Hotel/Motel occupancy taxes 5,401,691$     5,540,000$      498,033$         2,683,789$      48.4% (1)

Proceeds from special events 1,043,162       1,297,500        (13,840)            115,120           8.9% (2)

Conference centre rental 523,710          630,000           (4,198)              258,407           41.0% (3)

Theatre centre rental 88,460            77,000             3,071               57,392             74.5%

Interest and miscellaneous 108,265          25,000             6,308               53,627             214.5%

Total Revenues 7,165,288       7,569,500        489,374           3,168,336        41.9%

Expenditures:

Addison theatre centre 291,298          421,938           47,654             148,862           35.3%

Conference centre 956,507          1,152,735        177,629           657,427           57.0%

General hotel operations 142,763          144,173           1,990               51,832             36.0%

Marketing 962,526          1,134,939        157,192           452,251           39.8%

Performing arts 437,900          505,000           55,552             505,000           100.0% (4)

Special events 2,579,212       2,812,567        128,378           514,889           18.3% (2)

Special events operations 903,337          998,354           170,579           535,792           53.7%

Attractions Capital Projects 1,039,680       33,690             4,503               13,953             41.4%

Other financing uses:

Transfer to Economic Development Fund 715,000          768,000           -                      384,000           50.0%

Total Expenditures 8,028,225       7,971,396        743,478           3,264,006        40.9%

Net Change in Fund Balance (862,937)         (401,896)          (254,104)          (95,670)            

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 4,122,537       3,259,600        3,259,600        

Fund Balance at End of Year 3,259,600$     2,857,704$      3,163,931$      

(1) Hotel tax fell significantly in the 3rd quarter due to the effects of COVID-19
(2) Special event revenues and expenses are low because of cancellation of events due to COVID-19 
(3) Conference Centre rental revenue fell sharply due to COVID-19 and the subsequent closure of the Conference Centre

    historical data. 

With Comparative Information from Prior Fiscal Year

TOWN OF ADDISON
HOTEL FUND

FY2020 QUARTERLY STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

(4) Final matching grant payment for non-profit grant funding to Water Tower Theatre in June 2020. Amount is in line with

9



Positive variance compared to historical trends Positive
Negative variance of 3%-5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Warning
Negative variance of >5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Negative

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL

ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Revenues:

Ad Valorem taxes: 1,086,365$     1,105,981$      (7,862)$            1,089,037$      98.5%

Business license fee 64,026            50,500             2,500               34,360             68.0%

Interest income and other 48,416            30,000             7,533               41,287             137.6%

Transfers from General/Hotel Fund 715,000          768,000           -                      384,000           50.0%

Total Revenues 1,913,807       1,954,481        2,171               1,548,684        79.2%

Expenditures:

Personnel services 453,011          479,272           107,803           338,329           70.6%

Supplies 18,456            23,645             722                  4,829               20.4%

Maintenance 17,805            23,237             6,640               13,652             58.7%

Contractual services 1,042,520       1,327,180        163,040           629,511           47.4%

Capital replacement/lease 22,021            16,997             4,249               12,728             74.9%

Total Expenditures 1,553,813       1,870,331        282,454           999,048           53.4%

Net Change in Fund Balance 359,994          84,150             (280,283)          549,636           

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1,437,025       1,797,019        1,797,019        

Fund Balance at End of Year 1,797,019$     1,881,169$      2,346,655$      

TOWN OF ADDISON
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

FY2020 QUARTERLY STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

With Comparative Information from Prior Fiscal Year

10



Positive variance compared to historical trends Positive
Negative variance of 3%-5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Warning
Negative variance of >5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Negative

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL

ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Operating Revenues:

Operating grants -$                    1,360,000$      1,224,219$      1,224,219$      90.0% (1)

Service fees 103,306          138,000           22,014             78,212             56.7% (2)

Fuel flowage fees 1,019,452       916,000           138,065           631,302           68.9% (2)

Rental income 5,488,112       4,509,000        1,093,083        3,311,060        73.4%

Interest income and other 356,442          80,000             20,075             131,308           164.1%

Total Operating Revenues: 6,967,312       7,003,000        2,497,456        5,376,102        76.8%

Operating Expenses:

Town - Personnel services 324,776          470,762           75,068             239,983           51.0%

Town - Supplies 33,600            41,000             1,641               5,208               12.7%

Town - Maintenance 77,453            53,441             13,910             46,637             87.3%

Town - Contractual services 186,367          261,983           28,230             149,770           57.2%

Town - Capital Replacement/Lease 32,292            217,258           54,315             162,944           75.0%

Town - Debt service 763,934          853,910           -                      691,710           81.0%

Operator - Operations and maintenance 2,761,617       3,308,028        773,300           2,316,948        70.0%

Operator - Service contract 522,020          429,293           88,704             272,871           63.6%

Total Operating Expenses: 4,702,059       5,635,675        1,035,168        3,886,070        69.0%

Capital Projects (Cash Funded) 31,703            3,563,917        38,220             1,063,860        29.9%

Total Expenses: 4,733,762       9,199,592        1,073,388        4,949,930        53.8%

Net Change in Working Capital 2,233,550       (2,196,592)       1,424,068        426,172           

Working Capital at Beginning of Year 4,812,377       7,045,927        7,045,927        

Working Capital at End of Year 7,045,927$     4,849,335$      7,472,099$      

(1) Routine Airport Maintenance Project (RAMP) grant funds are typically received in the 4th quarter
(2) Percentage is below the quarterly threshold but actuals are in line with historical trends

AIRPORT FUND
FY2020 QUARTERLY STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

With Comparative Information from Prior Fiscal Year

11



Positive variance compared to historical trends Positive
Negative variance of 3%-5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Warning
Negative variance of >5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Negative

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL

ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Operating revenues:

Water sales 6,663,348$     7,051,676$      1,510,709$      4,301,911$      61.0% (1)

Sewer charges 5,144,473       5,876,062        1,223,914        3,527,497        60.0% (1)

Tap fees 7,050              25,275             3,800               6,575               26.0% (1)

Penalties 124,261          75,000             (1,349)              36,448             48.6%

Interest income and other 169,769          94,600             14,029             117,244           123.9%

Total Operating Revenues: 12,108,901     13,122,613      2,751,103        7,989,674        60.9%

Operating expenses:

Personnel services 1,716,439       2,264,720        516,163           1,392,603        61.5%

Supplies 176,462          217,990           41,790             146,652           67.3%

Maintenance 329,051          495,622           148,137           306,812           61.9%

Contractual services

     Water purchases 3,467,867       3,435,039        560,977           2,219,680        64.6%

     Wastewater treatment 3,635,316       3,373,435        647,919           2,737,528        81.1% (2)

     Other services 863,217          1,390,199        131,462           567,290           40.8%

Capital Replacement/Lease 340,657          331,857           82,964             248,893           75.0%

Debt service 1,133,162       1,513,798        -                      1,185,052        78.3%

Capital outlay 74,949            90,000             -                      27,836             30.9%

Total Operating Expenses: 11,737,120     13,112,660      2,129,412        8,832,345        67.4%

Capital Projects (Cash Funded) 338,352          1,813,000        174,974           336,610           18.6%

Total Expenses: 12,075,472     14,925,660      2,304,386        9,168,955        61.4%

Net Change in Working Capital 33,429            (1,803,047)       446,718           (1,179,281)       

Working Capital at Beginning of Year 6,233,408       6,266,837        6,266,837        

Working Capital at End of Year 6,266,837$     4,463,790$      5,087,556$      

(1) Revenues represent a one-month lag in the collection and there is heavy seasonality with water revenue
(2) Wastewater treatment expenses are high due to the timing of payments

UTILITY FUND
FY2020 QUARTERLY STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

With Comparative Information from Prior Fiscal Year

12



Positive variance compared to historical trends Positive
Negative variance of 3%-5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Warning
Negative variance of >5% and more than $50,000 compared to historical trends Negative

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 ACTUAL

ACTUAL REVISED ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD as %

CATEGORY PRIOR YEAR BUDGET 3RD QTR YTD of Budget

Operating revenues:

   Drainage Fees 2,235,566$     2,349,795$      581,926$         1,572,628$      66.9% (1)

Interest income and other 159,165          53,900             12,924             102,731           190.6%

Total Operating Revenues: 2,394,731       2,403,695        594,851           1,675,360        69.7%

Operating expenses

Personnel services 275,422          304,134           53,945             198,963           65.4%

Supplies 16,117            20,597             1,721               7,639               37.1%

Maintenance 77,810            210,700           4,349               4,884               2.3%

Contractual services 179,173          367,874           41,255             112,012           30.4%

Debt service 546,916          544,466           -                      421,108           77.3%

Capital outlay 21,035            40,000             5,651               48,524             121.3% (2)

Other financing uses:

Capital Projects (Cash Funded) -                      -                      -                      -                      0.0%

Total Operating Expenses: 1,116,473       1,487,771        106,921           793,131           53.3%

Capital Projects (Cash Funded) 50,449            1,181,000        23,562             29,404             2.5%

Total Expenses: 1,166,922       2,668,771        130,483           822,535           30.8%

Net Change in Working Capital 1,227,809       (265,076)          464,367           852,824           

Working Capital at Beginning of Year 5,240,798       6,468,607        6,468,607        

Working Capital at End of Year 6,468,607$     6,203,531$      7,321,431$      

(1) Fees represent a one-month lag in the collection of stormwater revenue but actuals are in line with historical trends
(2) Capital outlay includes the purchase of one delayed arrival vehicle 

With Comparative Information from Prior Fiscal Year

STORMWATER UTILITY FUND
FY2020 QUARTERLY STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

13



% Change
from

FY2020 Prior Year FY2019
Monthly Collections Monthly Collections

October 1,384,839$                  7.0% 1,294,332$                  
November 1,269,353                    8.7% 1,168,041                    
December 1,188,777                    4.5% 1,137,218                    

January 1,430,683                    -26.7% 1,951,678                    (1)

February 1,241,465                    3.3% 1,202,189                    
March 1,080,029                    6.3% 1,016,343                    
April 1,166,877                    -13.9% 1,355,558                    
May 931,272                       -18.2% 1,138,099                    
June 1,199,683                    3.0% 1,164,646                    
July 1,259,503                    
August 1,184,583                    
September 1,144,891                    

10,892,979$                15,017,082$                

Budget: 13,700,000                  79.5% 13,700,000                  

(1) Gross collections derived from audit payments was $517,605.82 in FY2019

TOWN OF ADDISON
Schedule of Sales Tax Collections
For the quarter ending June 30,2020

10%

5%

18%

5%

6%
21%

14%

21%

Breakdown of Sales Tax by Economic Category

Accomodations & Food
Services

Construction

Information

Manufacturing

Professional / Scientific /
Technical Services

Retail

Wholesaler Trade

Other

Most recent data available is through Q2 

14



Hotels By Service Type for the Quarter and Year-to-Date Ended June 30, 2020

20 to 19

Number % Amount % % Diff.

Full Service

Marriott Quorum 547                        13% 34,372$                  13% -86%

Renaissance 528                        13% 5,802                     2% -97%
(1) Crowne Plaza 428                        10% -                             0% -100%

1,503                     37% 40,174                    16% -93%

Extended Stay

Budget Suites 344                        8% 9,413                     4% 100%

Hawthorn Suites 70                          2% 6,040                     2% -68%

Marriott Residence Inn 150                        4% 9,289                     4% -87%

Hyatt House 132                        3% 13,263                    5% -74%

Homewood Suites 120                        3% 15,179                    6% -74%

Home2Suites 132                        3% 14,196                    6% -82%

Springhill Suites 159                        4% 6,991                     3% -90%

1,107                     27% 74,371                    29% -79%

Business Moderate

Marriott Courtyard Quorum 176                        4% 9,219                     4% -90%

LaQuinta Inn 152                        4% 19,714                    8% -63%

Marriott Courtyard Midway 145                        4% 7,290                     3% -88%

Radisson - Addison 101                        2% 4,704                     2% -88%

Hilton Garden Inn 96                          2% 6,727                     3% -87%

Holiday Inn Express 97                          2% 9,508                     4% 100%

Holiday Inn Beltway 102                        2% 5,599                     2% 100%

Best Western Plus 84                          2% 15,167                    6% -48%

953                        23% 77,929                    30% -79%

Economy

Motel 6 127                        3% 24,807                    10% -18%

Hampton Inn 158                        4% 5,454                     2% -91%

Red Roof Inn 105                        3% 16,194                    6% -43%

Quality Suites North/Galleria 78                          2% 13,982                    5% -47%

America's Best Value Inn 60                          1% 3,150                     1% -56%

528                        13% 63,588                    25% -58%

TOTAL 4,091                     100% 256,062$                100% -83%

(1) Crowne Plaza has closed permanently

TOWN OF ADDISON
 HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX COLLECTION

With Comparative Information from Prior Fiscal Year

Rooms Apr. - June 2020

 $-

 $200

 $400

 $600

 $800

 $1,000

 $1,200

 $1,400

 $1,600

T
ho

us
an

ds

Quarterly Data

Full Service Extended Stay Bus. Moderate Economy

15



Town of Addison

Investment Portfolio Summary

June 30, 2020

For the Quarter Ended

Prepared by

HilltopSecurities Asset Management



Table of Contents / Market Recap

Report Name

Executive Summary

Benchmark Comparison

Detail of Security Holdings

Change in Value

Earned Income

Investment Transactions

Amortization and Accretion

Projected Fixed Income Cash Flows

Certification Page

MARKET RECAP - JUNE 2020: 

Last month in our summary for May we wrote, “Phrases such as the “steepest decline ever” and the 

“worst in history” will apply to almost every piece of April economic data.” The opposite will be true for 

June as the economic reopening that started in May resulted in significant rebounds that in many 

cases were the “biggest gain in history.” We would, however, caution readers not to put too much 

stock into the big jumps in the monthly data as things had gotten so bad in April and May they just had 

to get better. And, despite the improvement evident in much of the economic data, we are nowhere 

near the levels that prevailed prior to the COVID-19 mandated shutdowns. The employment data is 

the most obvious place to start as non-farm payrolls grew by a stunning 2.5 million in May. The largest 

monthly gain in the history of this series going back to 1939 wildly surpassed the consensus forecast 

for a loss of 7.5 million jobs, and yet was only a tenth of the 22 million jobs lost in March and April. The 

unemployment rate, expected to climb to 19%, actually declined to 13.3%. The ISM surveys perked up 

as well with the manufacturing index climbing from 41.5 to 43.1 and the non-manufacturing index from 

41.8 to 45.4. While both readings still indicated contraction, the improvement was viewed as a signal 

that the worst was behind us. Auto sales also topped expectations, rebounding from April’s pitiful 8.6 

million unit annual pace to 12.2 million. Consumer spending came roaring back in May, too, no doubt 

reflecting some pent up demand as consumers emerged en masse from the nationwide lockout and 

began spending at a furious pace. Sales surged +17.7% during May after a revised -14.7% April 

decline. Spending was brisk across all categories as it appears the government’s response to the 

crisis has helped support consumer spending. Housing data for May was mixed as existing homes 

sales fell -9.7% to the lowest level since October 2010. However, since existing sales are measured at 

closing this data is more reflective of activity during March and April, when many buyers and sellers 

were in lockdown. By contrast, new home sales are measured when the contracts are signed and they 

climbed 16.6% during May.

The improving trend in economic data was countered in the later part of June by worrisome trends in 

COVID-19 data as states that had reopened to great fanfare around Memorial Day saw a dramatic 

surge in cases. Texas, Florida, and Arizona were hard hit, forcing renewed restrictions and closures as 

the Fourth of July holiday approached. 

Equity markets focused on the positives and extended their rally, with the Dow Jones Industrial 

Average climbing +1.7% and the S&P 500 gaining +1.8% in June. The Nasdaq composite rose a 

remarkable +6%, hit a new record high, and is up +12.1% year-to-date as technology stocks have 

been a beneficiary of the stay at home economy. Bond markets were stable with slight declines of 1-2 

basis points in yield across most tenors. The two-year T-note yield closed June at 0.15%, while both 

the three-year and five-year T-notes set record lows at 0.17% and 0.27% respectively on June 29th. 

The short end of the yield curve is likely to be anchored by Fed policy for years to come. All in all, it 

appears the recovery has begun in earnest, but it also appears likely that the path won’t be smooth 

and the outlook is still very much dependent on the path of the virus.

Page 2 of 17





Executive Summary
As of 06/30/20  

Town of Addison

 111,356,528.39

 111,000,586.41

 110,701,604.67

 355,941.98 Unrealized Gain /(Loss)

Par Value

Book Value

Beginning Values as of 03/31/20     

Market Value

Market Value %  100.32%

Weighted Avg. YTW

Weighted Avg. YTM  1.626%

 1.626%

Account Summary

Ending Values as of 06/30/20    

 106,710,715.97 

 106,443,478.79 

 106,028,192.37 

 267,237.18 

 100.25%

 1.079%

 1.079%

Allocation by Security Type

AGCY BULLET 14%
AGCY CALL 15%
CD 14%
CP 10%

LGIP 26%
TREASURY 21%

Total: 100%

US TREAS 21%
LOGIC 16%
EASTWESTBK 14%
FHLMC 14%
FFCB 8%
FHLB 7%
Other Issuers 20%

Total: 100%

Allocation by Issuer

0%

4%

8%

12%

16%

20%

24%

28%

Overnight 2 - 90 Days 91 - 180
Days

6 - 12
Months

1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years

26%

23%

15%
14%

12%

10%

Maturity Distribution %

Weighted Average Days to Maturity:  233

A-1+ 10%
AAA 75%
Collateralized 14%

Total: 100%

Credit Quality

Page 1 of 1Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:33 pm

Page 4 of 17



As of  06/30/2020

Benchmark Comparison
Town of Addison

0.00%

0.40%

0.80%

1.20%

1.60%

2.00%

2.40%

2.80%

Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

 1-YR CMT  3-MO CMT  6-MO CMT  TEXPOOL  TEXSTAR Town of Addison

Note 2:   Benchmark data for TexPool is the monthly average yield.  

Note 3:   Benchmark data for TexSTAR is the monthly average yield.  

Note 1:   CMT stands for Constant Maturity Treasury. This data is published in Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 and represents an average of all actively traded Treasury securities having that time remaining until maturity. This is a 

standard industry benchmark for Treasury securities. The CMT benchmarks are moving averages. The 3-month CMT is the daily average for the previous 3 months, the 6-month CMT is the daily average for the previous 6 months, and the 

1-year and 2-year CMT's are the daily averages for the previous 12-months.  

Page 1 of 1Print Time:   3:33 pmPrint Date:  7/15/2020

Page 5 of 17



Mty DateCUSIP Sec. Description CPN Par Value Orig Cost Book Value Market Value

Detail of Security Holdings
As of  06/30/2020

Sec. Type

Mkt

 Price

Days 

to Mty

Days 

to CallNext Call

Town of Addison

YTM
Settle

 Date YTWCall Type

Purch

 Price

Pooled Funds

 17,003,628.17  17,003,628.17  17,003,628.17  17,003,628.17LOGIC LOGIC  1LGIP  100.000  100.000  0.626  0.626

 4,881,046.87  4,881,046.87  4,881,046.87  4,881,046.87TEXPOOL TexPool  1LGIP  100.000  100.000  0.216  0.216

 5,700,439.44  5,700,439.44  5,700,439.44  5,700,439.44TEXSTAR TexSTAR  1LGIP  100.000  100.000  0.197  0.197

 2,000,000.00  1,970,900.00  1,998,706.66  1,999,914.8010/17/19  1.969  1.969Toyota Mtr Cr89233GGD2 CP - DISC 07/13/20  98.545  99.996  13

 1,500,000.00  1,479,230.00  1,498,760.00  1,499,927.1010/23/19  1.886  1.886J.P.Morgan Sec46640PGH0 CP - DISC 07/17/20  98.615  99.995  17

 5,241,150.97  5,241,150.97  5,241,150.97  5,241,150.9701/28/20  1.710  1.710East West Bk CDCD-8603-2 CD  1.710 07/28/20  100.000  100.000  28

 4,000,000.00  4,011,093.75  4,001,167.16  4,006,027.6010/17/19  1.643  1.643U.S. Treasury912828VP2 TREAS NOTE  2.000 07/31/20  100.277  100.151  31

 3,500,000.00  3,500,000.00  3,500,000.00  3,502,765.0011/05/19  1.860  1.860Univ of TX91514BGW7 CP - INT  1.860 07/31/20  100.000  100.079  31

 5,155,160.86  5,155,160.86  5,155,160.86  5,155,160.8602/12/20  1.730  1.730East West Bk CDCD-8019-2 CD  1.730 08/12/20  100.000  100.000  43

 3,000,000.00  3,009,726.56  3,002,787.84  3,009,663.0001/31/20  1.560  1.560U.S. Treasury912828VV9 TREAS NOTE  2.125 08/31/20  100.324  100.322  62

 4,000,000.00  3,999,360.00  3,999,814.32  4,014,278.8012/10/19  1.644  1.644FHLMC3137EAEJ4 AGCY BULET  1.625 09/29/20  99.984  100.357  91

 5,000,000.00  4,999,609.38  4,999,886.35  5,020,759.5010/16/19  1.633  1.633U.S. Treasury9128282Z2 TREAS NOTE  1.625 10/15/20  99.992  100.415  107

 4,000,000.00  3,953,893.33  3,977,120.00  3,997,443.6002/18/20  1.578  1.578Royal Bank of Canada78009ALA0 CP - DISC 11/10/20  98.847  99.936  133

 3,045,000.00  3,137,963.85  3,094,744.46  3,114,121.2002/11/20  1.546  1.546FHLB3133XDVS7 AGCY BULET  5.250 12/11/20  103.053  102.270  164

 5,000,000.00  5,033,593.75  5,018,535.50  5,065,625.0012/27/19  1.650  1.650U.S. Treasury9128283X6 TREAS NOTE  2.250 02/15/21  100.672  101.313  230

 5,000,000.00  5,045,117.19  5,024,614.80  5,077,539.0011/26/19  1.671  1.671U.S. Treasury9128284B3 TREAS NOTE  2.375 03/15/21  100.902  101.551  258

 2,501,072.82  2,501,072.82  2,501,072.82  2,501,072.8206/04/20  0.580  0.580East West Bk CDCD-5883 CD  0.580 06/04/21  100.000  100.000  339

 2,500,693.24  2,500,693.24  2,500,693.24  2,500,693.2406/08/20  0.440  0.440East West Bk CDCD-1790 CD  0.440 06/08/21  100.000  100.000  343

 5,000,000.00  5,000,000.00  5,000,000.00  5,000,013.0004/20/20  0.550  0.550FFCB3133ELWK6 AGCY CALL 10/20/2020 0.550 10/20/21 CONT  100.000  100.000  477  112

 3,000,000.00  3,000,000.00  3,000,000.00  3,000,872.1004/13/20  1.050  1.050FHLMC3134GVJR0 AGCY CALL 7/13/2020 1.050 04/13/22 ONE TIME  100.000  100.029  652  13

 5,000,000.00  4,998,750.00  4,998,829.90  4,996,452.5005/15/20  0.313  0.313FHLMC3134GVUK2 AGCY CALL 5/13/2021 0.300 05/13/22 ONE TIME  99.975  99.929  682  317

 3,000,000.00  3,127,260.00  3,116,698.23  3,139,274.1004/09/20  0.577  0.577FFCB3133EFUJ4 AGCY BULET  2.150 12/29/22  104.242  104.642  912

 4,500,000.00  4,753,806.46  4,728,621.20  4,782,196.8003/13/20  0.837  0.837FHLB3130ADRG9 AGCY BULET  2.750 03/10/23  105.640  106.271  983

 2,500,000.00  2,500,000.00  2,500,000.00  2,500,650.5006/05/20  0.550  0.550FHLMC3134GVWQ7 AGCY CALL 8/19/2020 0.550 05/19/23 QRTLY  100.000  100.026  1,053  50

 106,028,192.37  106,503,496.64  106,443,478.79  106,710,715.97  233Total for  Pooled Funds  100.465  100.661  1.079  1.079

 106,028,192.37  106,503,496.64  106,443,478.79  106,710,715.97  233Total for  Town of Addison  100.465  100.661  1.079  1.079 0

Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:34 pm Page 1 of 1

Page 6 of 17



CUSIP

Change in Value
From 03/31/2020 to 06/30/2020

Amortization /

Accretion 

Realized 

Gain/(Loss) Book Value

Cost of 

Purchases

 

Market ValueMarket Value

 

Book Value

Maturities /

Calls / Sales

Town of Addison

Change in 

Mkt Value

03/31/20 06/30/20 06/30/2003/31/20Security Type Security Description

Pooled Funds

LOGIC  0.00  17,003,628.17  0.00  17,003,628.17 0.00  17,003,628.19  0.00  0.00 LGIP  17,003,628.17 LOGIC

TEXPOOL  0.00  4,881,046.87  4,877,241.48  4,881,046.87 4,877,241.48  3,805.39  0.00  0.00 LGIP  3,805.39 TexPool

TEXSTAR  0.00  5,700,439.44  10,187,534.40  5,700,439.44 10,187,534.40  12,010,434.20  0.00 (16,497,529.16)LGIP (4,487,094.96)TexSTAR

05249HFW7  0.00  0.00  2,739,863.00  0.00 2,740,000.00  0.00  0.00 (2,740,000.00)CP - INT (2,739,863.00)City of Austin, TX  1.750  04/02/20

66844CD84  0.00  0.00  2,998,620.00  0.00 2,999,066.67  0.00  933.33 (3,000,000.00)CP - DISC (2,998,620.00)Northwestern Univ  0.000  04/08/20

912828X21  0.00  0.00  5,002,714.50  0.00 4,998,049.95  0.00  1,950.05 (5,000,000.00)TREAS NOTE (5,002,714.50)U.S. Treasury  1.500  04/15/20

912828ND8  0.00  0.00  5,020,600.50  0.00 5,005,827.60  0.00 (5,827.60)(5,000,000.00)TREAS NOTE (5,020,600.50)U.S. Treasury  3.500  05/15/20

02665JEJ5  0.00  0.00  4,991,666.50  0.00 4,989,229.15  0.00  10,770.85 (5,000,000.00)CP - DISC (4,991,666.50)American Honda Finance  0.000  05/18/20

78009AEV2  0.00  0.00  2,494,563.00  0.00 2,492,186.10  0.00  7,813.90 (2,500,000.00)CP - DISC (2,494,563.00)Royal Bank of Canada  0.000  05/29/20

30229AF46  0.00  0.00  4,980,924.50  0.00 4,991,111.10  0.00  8,888.90 (5,000,000.00)CP - DISC (4,980,924.50)Exxon Mobil  0.000  06/04/20

78009AFF6  0.00  0.00  1,495,873.80  0.00 1,494,312.50  0.00  5,687.50 (1,500,000.00)CP - DISC (1,495,873.80)Royal Bank of Canada  0.000  06/15/20

912828XU9  0.00  0.00  3,008,664.00  0.00 2,993,669.76  0.00  6,330.24 (3,000,000.00)TREAS NOTE (3,008,664.00)U.S. Treasury  1.500  06/15/20

89233GGD2  0.00  1,998,706.66  1,990,772.80  1,999,914.80 1,988,898.88  0.00  9,807.78  0.00 CP - DISC  9,142.00 Toyota Mtr Cr  0.000  07/13/20

46640PGH0  0.00  1,498,760.00  1,493,115.00  1,499,927.10 1,491,707.51  0.00  7,052.49  0.00 CP - DISC  6,812.10 J.P.Morgan Sec  0.000  07/17/20

CD-8603-2  0.00  5,241,150.97  5,218,854.53  5,241,150.97 5,218,854.53  22,296.44  0.00  0.00 CD  22,296.44 East West Bk CD  1.710  07/28/20

912828VP2  0.00  4,001,167.16  4,025,625.20  4,006,027.60 4,004,707.56  0.00 (3,540.40) 0.00 TREAS NOTE (19,597.60)U.S. Treasury  2.000  07/31/20

91514BGW7  0.00  3,500,000.00  3,493,455.00  3,502,765.00 3,500,000.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 CP - INT  9,310.00 Univ of TX  1.860  07/31/20

CD-8019-2  0.00  5,155,160.86  5,132,974.26  5,155,160.86 5,132,974.26  22,186.60  0.00  0.00 CD  22,186.60 East West Bk CD  1.730  08/12/20

912828VV9  0.00  3,002,787.84  3,024,843.90  3,009,663.00 3,006,946.77  0.00 (4,158.93) 0.00 TREAS NOTE (15,180.90)U.S. Treasury  2.125  08/31/20

3137EAEJ4  0.00  3,999,814.32  4,021,445.20  4,014,278.80 3,999,624.44  0.00  189.88  0.00 AGCY BULET (7,166.40)FHLMC  1.625  09/29/20

9128282Z2  0.00  4,999,886.35  5,040,039.00  5,020,759.50 4,999,788.85  0.00  97.50  0.00 TREAS NOTE (19,279.50)U.S. Treasury  1.625  10/15/20

78009ALA0  0.00  3,977,120.00  3,964,234.80  3,997,443.60 3,961,346.68  0.00  15,773.32  0.00 CP - DISC  33,208.80 Royal Bank of Canada  0.000  11/10/20

3133XDVS7  0.00  3,094,744.46  3,150,094.52  3,114,121.20 3,122,546.62  0.00 (27,802.16) 0.00 AGCY BULET (35,973.32)FHLB  5.250  12/11/20

9128283X6  0.00  5,018,535.50  5,093,359.50  5,065,625.00 5,025,917.20  0.00 (7,381.70) 0.00 TREAS NOTE (27,734.50)U.S. Treasury  2.250  02/15/21

9128284B3  0.00  5,024,614.80  5,107,422.00  5,077,539.00 5,033,179.35  0.00 (8,564.55) 0.00 TREAS NOTE (29,883.00)U.S. Treasury  2.375  03/15/21

3130AHCE1  0.00  0.00  3,001,447.20  0.00 2,998,955.52  0.00  1,044.48 (3,000,000.00)AGCY CALL (3,001,447.20)FHLB  1.750  04/15/21

CD-5883  0.00  2,501,072.82  0.00  2,501,072.82 0.00  2,501,072.82  0.00  0.00 CD  2,501,072.82 East West Bk CD  0.580  06/04/21

CD-1790  0.00  2,500,693.24  0.00  2,500,693.24 0.00  2,500,693.24  0.00  0.00 CD  2,500,693.24 East West Bk CD  0.440  06/08/21

3133ELGJ7  0.00  0.00  5,000,095.00  0.00 4,997,300.60  0.00  2,699.40 (5,000,000.00)AGCY CALL (5,000,095.00)FFCB  1.620  10/13/21

3133ELWK6  0.00  5,000,000.00  0.00  5,000,013.00 0.00  5,000,000.00  0.00  0.00 AGCY CALL  5,000,013.00 FFCB  0.550  10/20/21

3134GVJR0  0.00  3,000,000.00  0.00  3,000,872.10 0.00  3,000,000.00  0.00  0.00 AGCY CALL  3,000,872.10 FHLMC  1.050  04/13/22

3134GVUK2  0.00  4,998,829.90  0.00  4,996,452.50 0.00  4,998,750.00  79.90  0.00 AGCY CALL  4,996,452.50 FHLMC  0.300  05/13/22

3133EFUJ4  0.00  3,116,698.23  0.00  3,139,274.10 0.00  3,127,260.00 (10,561.77) 0.00 AGCY BULET  3,139,274.10 FFCB  2.150  12/29/22

3130ADRG9  0.00  4,728,621.20  4,800,484.80  4,782,196.80 4,749,608.93  0.00 (20,987.73) 0.00 AGCY BULET (18,288.00)FHLB  2.750  03/10/23

Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:34 pm Page 1 of 2

Page 7 of 17



CUSIP

Change in Value
From 03/31/2020 to 06/30/2020

Amortization /

Accretion 

Realized 

Gain/(Loss) Book Value

Cost of 

Purchases

 

Market ValueMarket Value

 

Book Value

Maturities /

Calls / Sales

Town of Addison

Change in 

Mkt Value

03/31/20 06/30/20 06/30/2003/31/20Security Type Security Description

Pooled Funds

3134GVWQ7  0.00  2,500,000.00  0.00  2,500,650.50 0.00  2,500,000.00  0.00  0.00 AGCY CALL  2,500,650.50 FHLMC  0.550  05/19/23

 106,443,478.79  0.00 Total for  Pooled Funds  111,356,528.39  106,710,715.97 111,000,586.41  52,690,126.88 (57,237,529.16) (9,705.32) (4,645,812.42)

 0.00  106,443,478.79 Total for  Town of Addison  111,356,528.39  106,710,715.97 111,000,586.41  52,690,126.88 (57,237,529.16) (9,705.32) (4,645,812.42)

Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:34 pm Page 2 of 2

Page 8 of 17



From 03/31/2020 to 06/30/2020

Town of Addison

Beg. Accrued Net Income Security DescriptionCUSIP Disc Accr / 

Prem Amort

Earned Income

Interest Earned Interest Rec'd / 

Sold / Matured
Interest Purchased Ending AccruedSecurity Type

Pooled Funds

LOGIC LOGIC  0.00  3,628.17  0.00  0.00  3,628.17  3,628.17 LGIP  0.00 

TEXPOOL TexPool  0.00  3,805.39  0.00  0.00  3,805.39  3,805.39 LGIP  0.00 

TEXSTAR TexSTAR  0.00  12,905.04  0.00  0.00  12,905.04  12,905.04 LGIP  0.00 

05249HFW7 City of Austin, TX  1.750  04/02/20  0.00  131.37  11,035.07  0.00  131.37  11,166.44 CP - INT  0.00 

66844CD84 Northwestern Univ  0.000  04/08/20  0.00  933.33  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 CP - DISC  933.33 

912828X21 U.S. Treasury  1.500  04/15/20  0.00  4,818.90  34,631.15  0.00  2,868.85  37,500.00 TREAS NOTE  1,950.05 

912828ND8 U.S. Treasury  3.500  05/15/20  0.00  15,326.25  66,346.15  0.00  21,153.85  87,500.00 TREAS NOTE (5,827.60)

02665JEJ5 American Honda Finance  0.000  05/18/20  0.00  10,770.85  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 CP - DISC  10,770.85 

78009AEV2 Royal Bank of Canada  0.000  05/29/20  0.00  7,813.90  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 CP - DISC  7,813.90 

30229AF46 Exxon Mobil  0.000  06/04/20  0.00  8,888.90  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 CP - DISC  8,888.90 

78009AFF6 Royal Bank of Canada  0.000  06/15/20  0.00  5,687.50  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 CP - DISC  5,687.50 

912828XU9 U.S. Treasury  1.500  06/15/20  0.00  15,551.55  13,278.69  0.00  9,221.31  22,500.00 TREAS NOTE  6,330.24 

89233GGD2 Toyota Mtr Cr  0.000  07/13/20  0.00  9,807.78  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 CP - DISC  9,807.78 

46640PGH0 J.P.Morgan Sec  0.000  07/17/20  0.00  7,052.49  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 CP - DISC  7,052.49 

CD-8603-2 East West Bk CD  1.710  07/28/20  0.00  22,297.48  244.50  245.54  22,297.48  22,296.44 CD  0.00 

912828VP2 U.S. Treasury  2.000  07/31/20  0.00  16,459.60  13,406.59  33,406.59  20,000.00  0.00 TREAS NOTE (3,540.40)

91514BGW7 Univ of TX  1.860  07/31/20  0.00  16,455.84  26,763.33  43,219.17  16,455.84  0.00 CP - INT  0.00 

CD-8019-2 East West Bk CD  1.730  08/12/20  0.00  22,187.65  243.29  244.34  22,187.65  22,186.60 CD  0.00 

912828VV9 U.S. Treasury  2.125  08/31/20  0.00  11,605.33  5,543.48  21,307.74  15,764.26  0.00 TREAS NOTE (4,158.93)

3137EAEJ4 FHLMC  1.625  09/29/20  0.00  16,439.88  361.11  16,611.11  16,250.00  0.00 AGCY BULET  189.88 

9128282Z2 U.S. Treasury  1.625  10/15/20  0.00  20,299.00  37,517.08  17,093.58  20,201.50  40,625.00 TREAS NOTE  97.50 

78009ALA0 Royal Bank of Canada  0.000  11/10/20  0.00  15,773.32  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 CP - DISC  15,773.32 

3133XDVS7 FHLB  5.250  12/11/20  0.00  12,163.46  48,846.88  8,881.25  39,965.62  79,931.25 AGCY BULET (27,802.16)

9128283X6 U.S. Treasury  2.250  02/15/21  0.00  20,743.30  14,217.03  42,342.03  28,125.00  0.00 TREAS NOTE (7,381.70)

9128284B3 U.S. Treasury  2.375  03/15/21  0.00  20,800.26  5,485.73  34,850.54  29,364.81  0.00 TREAS NOTE (8,564.55)

3130AHCE1 FHLB  1.750  04/15/21  0.00  3,086.15  24,208.33  0.00  2,041.67  26,250.00 AGCY CALL  1,044.48 

CD-5883 East West Bk CD  0.580  06/04/21  0.00  1,112.56  0.00  39.74  1,112.56  1,072.82 CD  0.00 

CD-1790 East West Bk CD  0.440  06/08/21  0.00  723.39  0.00  30.15  723.39  693.24 CD  0.00 

3133ELGJ7 FFCB  1.620  10/13/21  0.00  5,399.40  17,550.00  0.00  2,700.00  20,250.00 AGCY CALL  2,699.40 

3133ELWK6 FFCB  0.550  10/20/21  0.00  5,423.61  0.00  5,423.61  5,423.61  0.00 AGCY CALL  0.00 

3134GVJR0 FHLMC  1.050  04/13/22  0.00  6,825.00  0.00  6,825.00  6,825.00  0.00 AGCY CALL  0.00 

3134GVUK2 FHLMC  0.300  05/13/22 (83.33)  1,996.57  0.00  2,000.00  1,916.67  0.00 AGCY CALL  79.90 

3133EFUJ4 FFCB  2.150  12/29/22 (17,916.67)  4,129.89  0.00  358.33  14,691.66  32,250.00 AGCY BULET (10,561.77)

3130ADRG9 FHLB  2.750  03/10/23  0.00  9,949.77  7,218.75  38,156.25  30,937.50  0.00 AGCY BULET (20,987.73)

Print Time:   3:34 pmPrint Date:  7/15/2020 Page 1 of 2

Page 9 of 17



From 03/31/2020 to 06/30/2020

Town of Addison

Beg. Accrued Net Income Security DescriptionCUSIP Disc Accr / 

Prem Amort

Earned Income

Interest Earned Interest Rec'd / 

Sold / Matured
Interest Purchased Ending AccruedSecurity Type

Pooled Funds

3134GVWQ7 FHLMC  0.550  05/19/23 (611.11)  993.06  0.00  1,604.17  993.06  0.00 AGCY CALL  0.00 

(18,611.11)  341,985.94  272,639.14  351,691.26  326,897.16  424,560.39 Total for  Pooled Funds (9,705.32)

(18,611.11)  341,985.94  326,897.16  272,639.14  351,691.26  424,560.39 Total for  Town of Addison (9,705.32)

Print Time:   3:34 pmPrint Date:  7/15/2020 Page 2 of 2

Page 10 of 17



Investment Transactions

CUSIP Price Total AmountSecurity Description

From  04/01/2020 to 06/30/2020

Security

Type Coupon Mty Date Call Date

Trade

 Date

Settle

 Date Par Value

Town of Addison

Realized

Gain / Loss YTM YTW
    Principal 

    Amount

Int Purchased /

Received 

Pooled Funds

Calls

 100.00010/13/21 1.620FFCBAGCY CALL3133ELGJ704/13/2004/12/20  5,000,000.00  5,000,000.00  1.656  1.620 0.00  5,000,000.00 04/13/20

 100.00004/15/21 1.750FHLBAGCY CALL3130AHCE104/15/2004/14/20  3,000,000.00  3,000,000.00  1.784  1.750 0.00  3,000,000.00 04/15/20

 8,000,000.00  8,000,000.00 Total for:  Calls  1.704  1.669 8,000,000.00  0.00 

Maturities

 100.00004/02/20 1.750City of Austin, TXCP - INT05249HFW704/02/2004/02/20  2,740,000.00  2,751,166.44  1.750 11,166.44  2,740,000.00 

 100.00004/08/20Northwestern UnivCP - DISC66844CD8404/08/2004/08/20  3,000,000.00  3,000,000.00  1.604 0.00  3,000,000.00 

 100.00004/15/20 1.500U.S. TreasuryTREAS NOTE912828X2104/15/2004/15/20  5,000,000.00  5,000,000.00  2.533 0.00  5,000,000.00 

 100.00005/15/20 3.500U.S. TreasuryTREAS NOTE912828ND805/15/2005/15/20  5,000,000.00  5,000,000.00  2.524 0.00  5,000,000.00 

 100.00005/18/20American Honda FinanceCP - DISC02665JEJ505/18/2005/18/20  5,000,000.00  5,000,000.00  1.658 0.00  5,000,000.00 

 100.00005/29/20Royal Bank of CanadaCP - DISC78009AEV205/29/2005/29/20  2,500,000.00  2,500,000.00  1.966 0.00  2,500,000.00 

 100.00006/04/20Exxon MobilCP - DISC30229AF4606/04/2006/04/20  5,000,000.00  5,000,000.00  1.002 0.00  5,000,000.00 

 100.00006/15/20Royal Bank of CanadaCP - DISC78009AFF606/15/2006/15/20  1,500,000.00  1,500,000.00  1.837 0.00  1,500,000.00 

 100.00006/15/20 1.500U.S. TreasuryTREAS NOTE912828XU906/15/2006/15/20  3,000,000.00  3,000,000.00  2.543 0.00  3,000,000.00 

 32,751,166.44  32,740,000.00 Total for:  Maturities  1.939 32,740,000.00  11,166.44 

Purchases

 100.00004/13/22 1.050FHLMCAGCY CALL3134GVJR004/13/2004/06/20  3,000,000.00  3,000,000.00  1.050  1.050 0.00  3,000,000.00 07/13/20

 104.24212/29/22 2.150FFCBAGCY BULET3133EFUJ404/09/2004/08/20  3,000,000.00  3,145,176.67  0.577  0.577 17,916.67  3,127,260.00 

 100.00010/20/21 0.550FFCBAGCY CALL3133ELWK604/20/2004/14/20  5,000,000.00  5,000,000.00  0.550  0.550 0.00  5,000,000.00 10/20/20

 99.97505/13/22 0.300FHLMCAGCY CALL3134GVUK205/15/2005/13/20  5,000,000.00  4,998,833.33  0.313  0.313 83.33  4,998,750.00 05/13/21

 100.00005/19/23 0.550FHLMCAGCY CALL3134GVWQ706/05/2006/04/20  2,500,000.00  2,500,611.11  0.550  0.550 611.11  2,500,000.00 08/19/20

 100.00006/04/21 0.580East West Bk CDCDCD-588306/04/2006/04/20  2,500,000.00  2,500,000.00  0.580  0.580 0.00  2,500,000.00 

 100.00006/08/21 0.440East West Bk CDCDCD-179006/08/2006/08/20  2,500,000.00  2,500,000.00  0.440  0.440 0.00  2,500,000.00 

 23,644,621.11  23,500,000.00 Total for:  Purchases  0.558  0.558 23,626,010.00  18,611.11 

Income Payments

10/13/21 1.620FFCBAGCY CALL3133ELGJ704/13/2004/13/20  20,250.00  20,250.00  0.00 

04/15/21 1.750FHLBAGCY CALL3130AHCE104/15/2004/15/20  26,250.00  26,250.00  0.00 

10/15/20 1.625U.S. TreasuryTREAS NOTE9128282Z204/15/2004/15/20  40,625.00  40,625.00  0.00 

Page 1 of 3Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:34 pm

Page 11 of 17



Investment Transactions

CUSIP Price Total AmountSecurity Description

From  04/01/2020 to 06/30/2020

Security

Type Coupon Mty Date Call Date

Trade

 Date

Settle

 Date Par Value

Town of Addison

Realized

Gain / Loss YTM YTW
    Principal 

    Amount

Int Purchased /

Received 

Pooled Funds

Income Payments

04/15/20 1.500U.S. TreasuryTREAS NOTE912828X2104/15/2004/15/20  37,500.00  37,500.00  0.00 

08/12/20 1.730East West Bk CDCDCD-8019-204/30/2004/30/20  7,303.69  7,303.69  0.00 

07/28/20 1.710East West Bk CDCDCD-8603-204/30/2004/30/20  7,339.97  7,339.97  0.00 

05/15/20 3.500U.S. TreasuryTREAS NOTE912828ND805/15/2005/15/20  87,500.00  87,500.00  0.00 

08/12/20 1.730East West Bk CDCDCD-8019-205/31/2005/31/20  7,558.07  7,558.07  0.00 

07/28/20 1.710East West Bk CDCDCD-8603-205/31/2005/31/20  7,595.49  7,595.49  0.00 

12/11/20 5.250FHLBAGCY BULET3133XDVS706/11/2006/11/20  79,931.25  79,931.25  0.00 

06/15/20 1.500U.S. TreasuryTREAS NOTE912828XU906/15/2006/15/20  22,500.00  22,500.00  0.00 

12/29/22 2.150FFCBAGCY BULET3133EFUJ406/29/2006/29/20  32,250.00  32,250.00  0.00 

07/28/20 1.710East West Bk CDCDCD-8603-206/30/2006/30/20  7,360.98  7,360.98  0.00 

08/12/20 1.730East West Bk CDCDCD-8019-206/30/2006/30/20  7,324.84  7,324.84  0.00 

06/08/21 0.440East West Bk CDCDCD-179006/30/2006/30/20  693.24  693.24  0.00 

06/04/21 0.580East West Bk CDCDCD-588306/30/2006/30/20  1,072.82  1,072.82  0.00 

 393,055.35 Total for:  Income Payments  0.00  393,055.35 

Capitalized Interest

 100.00008/12/20 1.730East West Bk CDCDCD-8019-204/30/2004/30/20  7,303.69  7,303.69  0.00  7,303.69 

 100.00007/28/20 1.710East West Bk CDCDCD-8603-204/30/2004/30/20  7,339.97  7,339.97  0.00  7,339.97 

 100.00008/12/20 1.730East West Bk CDCDCD-8019-205/31/2005/31/20  7,558.07  7,558.07  0.00  7,558.07 

 100.00007/28/20 1.710East West Bk CDCDCD-8603-205/31/2005/31/20  7,595.49  7,595.49  0.00  7,595.49 

 100.00007/28/20 1.710East West Bk CDCDCD-8603-206/30/2006/30/20  7,360.98  7,360.98  0.00  7,360.98 

 100.00008/12/20 1.730East West Bk CDCDCD-8019-206/30/2006/30/20  7,324.84  7,324.84  0.00  7,324.84 

 100.00006/08/21 0.440East West Bk CDCDCD-179006/30/2006/30/20  693.24  693.24  0.00  693.24 

 100.00006/04/21 0.580East West Bk CDCDCD-588306/30/2006/30/20  1,072.82  1,072.82  0.00  1,072.82 

 46,249.10  46,249.10 Total for:  Capitalized Interest  46,249.10  0.00 

Page 2 of 3Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:34 pm

Page 12 of 17



Investment Transactions

CUSIP Price Total AmountSecurity Description

From  04/01/2020 to 06/30/2020

Security

Type Coupon Mty Date Call Date

Trade

 Date

Settle

 Date Par Value

Town of Addison

Realized

Gain / Loss YTM YTW
    Principal 

    Amount

Int Purchased /

Received 

YTWYTMRealized G/LTotal AmountQuantityTransaction Type

 8,000,000.00  8,000,000.00Total Calls  1.704  1.669

 32,751,166.44  32,740,000.00Total Maturities  1.939

 23,644,621.11  23,500,000.00Total Purchases  0.558  0.558

 393,055.35  0.00Total Income Payments

 46,249.10  46,249.10Total Capitalized Interest

Total for All Portfolios

Page 3 of 3Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:34 pm

Page 13 of 17



CUSIP

Amortization and Accretion
From 03/31/2020 to 06/30/2020

Purchase QtySettle Date
Orig

Price Original Cost
Amrt/Accr

for Period

Total Amrt/Accr

Since Purch

Remaining

Disc / Prem Book ValueNext Call Date

Town of Addison

Security DescriptionSecurity Type

Pooled Funds

05249HFW7  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.0001/08/20  100.000  0.00City of Austin, TX  1.750  04/02/20CP - INT

66844CD84  0.00  933.33  0.00  0.00  0.0002/10/20  99.742  0.00Northwestern Univ  0.000  04/08/20CP - DISC

912828X21  0.00  1,950.05  0.00  0.00  0.0002/08/19  98.805  0.00U.S. Treasury  1.500  04/15/20TREAS NOTE

912828ND8  0.00 (5,827.60)  0.00  0.00  0.0002/27/19  101.156  0.00U.S. Treasury  3.500  05/15/20TREAS NOTE

02665JEJ5  0.00  10,770.85  0.00  0.00  0.0002/06/20  99.533  0.00American Honda Finance  0.000  05/18/20CP - DISC

78009AEV2  0.00  7,813.90  0.00  0.00  0.0009/30/19  98.696  0.00Royal Bank of Canada  0.000  05/29/20CP - DISC

30229AF46  0.00  8,888.90  0.00  0.00  0.0003/11/20  99.764  0.00Exxon Mobil  0.000  06/04/20CP - DISC

78009AFF6  0.00  5,687.50  0.00  0.00  0.0012/16/19  99.080  0.00Royal Bank of Canada  0.000  06/15/20CP - DISC

912828XU9  0.00  6,330.24  0.00  0.00  0.0002/28/19  98.680  0.00U.S. Treasury  1.500  06/15/20TREAS NOTE

89233GGD2  1,970,900.00  9,807.78  27,806.66  1,293.34  2,000,000.0010/17/19  98.545  1,998,706.66Toyota Mtr Cr  0.000  07/13/20CP - DISC

46640PGH0  1,479,230.00  7,052.49  19,530.00  1,240.00  1,500,000.0010/23/19  98.615  1,498,760.00J.P.Morgan Sec  0.000  07/17/20CP - DISC

CD-8603-2  5,241,150.97  0.00  0.00  0.00  5,241,150.9701/28/20  100.000  5,241,150.97East West Bk CD  1.710  07/28/20CD

912828VP2  4,011,093.75 (3,540.40) (9,926.59) (1,167.16) 4,000,000.0010/17/19  100.277  4,001,167.16U.S. Treasury  2.000  07/31/20TREAS NOTE

91514BGW7  3,500,000.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  3,500,000.0011/05/19  100.000  3,500,000.00Univ of TX  1.860  07/31/20CP - INT

CD-8019-2  5,155,160.86  0.00  0.00  0.00  5,155,160.8602/12/20  100.000  5,155,160.86East West Bk CD  1.730  08/12/20CD

912828VV9  3,009,726.56 (4,158.93) (6,938.72) (2,787.84) 3,000,000.0001/31/20  100.324  3,002,787.84U.S. Treasury  2.125  08/31/20TREAS NOTE

3137EAEJ4  3,999,360.00  189.88  454.32  185.68  4,000,000.0012/10/19  99.984  3,999,814.32FHLMC  1.625  09/29/20AGCY BULET

9128282Z2  4,999,609.38  97.50  276.97  113.65  5,000,000.0010/16/19  99.992  4,999,886.35U.S. Treasury  1.625  10/15/20TREAS NOTE

78009ALA0  3,953,893.33  15,773.32  23,226.67  22,880.00  4,000,000.0002/18/20  98.847  3,977,120.00Royal Bank of Canada  0.000  11/10/20CP - DISC

3133XDVS7  3,137,963.85 (27,802.16) (43,219.39) (49,744.46) 3,045,000.0002/11/20  103.053  3,094,744.46FHLB  5.250  12/11/20AGCY BULET

9128283X6  5,033,593.75 (7,381.70) (15,058.25) (18,535.50) 5,000,000.0012/27/19  100.672  5,018,535.50U.S. Treasury  2.250  02/15/21TREAS NOTE

9128284B3  5,045,117.19 (8,564.55) (20,502.39) (24,614.80) 5,000,000.0011/26/19  100.902  5,024,614.80U.S. Treasury  2.375  03/15/21TREAS NOTE

3130AHCE1  0.00  1,044.48  0.00  0.00  0.0010/16/19  99.950  0.00FHLB  1.750  04/15/21AGCY CALL 04/15/20

CD-5883  2,501,072.82  0.00  0.00  0.00  2,501,072.8206/04/20  100.000  2,501,072.82East West Bk CD  0.580  06/04/21CD

CD-1790  2,500,693.24  0.00  0.00  0.00  2,500,693.2406/08/20  100.000  2,500,693.24East West Bk CD  0.440  06/08/21CD

3133ELGJ7  0.00  2,699.40  0.00  0.00  0.0001/23/20  99.940  0.00FFCB  1.620  10/13/21AGCY CALL 04/13/20

3133ELWK6  5,000,000.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  5,000,000.0004/20/20  100.000  5,000,000.00FFCB  0.550  10/20/21AGCY CALL 10/20/20

3134GVJR0  3,000,000.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  3,000,000.0004/13/20  100.000  3,000,000.00FHLMC  1.050  04/13/22AGCY CALL 07/13/20

3134GVUK2  4,998,750.00  79.90  79.90  1,170.10  5,000,000.0005/15/20  99.975  4,998,829.90FHLMC  0.300  05/13/22AGCY CALL 05/13/21

3133EFUJ4  3,127,260.00 (10,561.77) (10,561.77) (116,698.23) 3,000,000.0004/09/20  104.242  3,116,698.23FFCB  2.150  12/29/22AGCY BULET

3130ADRG9  4,753,806.46 (20,987.73) (25,185.26) (228,621.20) 4,500,000.0003/13/20  105.640  4,728,621.20FHLB  2.750  03/10/23AGCY BULET

3134GVWQ7  2,500,000.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  2,500,000.0006/05/20  100.000  2,500,000.00FHLMC  0.550  05/19/23AGCY CALL 08/19/20

Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:34 pm Page 1 of 2

Page 14 of 17



CUSIP

Amortization and Accretion
From 03/31/2020 to 06/30/2020

Purchase QtySettle Date
Orig

Price Original Cost
Amrt/Accr

for Period

Total Amrt/Accr

Since Purch

Remaining

Disc / Prem Book ValueNext Call Date

Town of Addison

Security DescriptionSecurity Type

(9,705.32) 78,918,382.16Total for  Pooled Funds (60,017.85) (415,286.42) 78,443,077.89  78,858,364.31

 78,918,382.16 (9,705.32)Total for  Town of Addison (60,017.85) (415,286.42) 78,443,077.89  78,858,364.31 0.00  0

Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:34 pm Page 2 of 2

Page 15 of 17



CUSIP Pay Date Interest

Town of Addison

Projected Cash Flows

Total AmountSecurity Type

Cash Flows for next 180 days from  06/30/2020

Security Description Principal

Pooled Funds

 0.00  2,000,000.0089233GGD2 CP - DISC Toyota Mtr Cr  0.000  07/13/20 07/13/20  2,000,000.00

 0.00  1,500,000.0046640PGH0 CP - DISC J.P.Morgan Sec  0.000  07/17/20 07/17/20  1,500,000.00

 6,875.24  5,248,026.21CD-8603-2 CD East West Bk CD  1.710  07/28/20 07/28/20  5,241,150.97

 916.92  916.92CD-1790 CD East West Bk CD  0.440  06/08/21 07/31/20  0.00

 1,208.85  1,208.85CD-5883 CD East West Bk CD  0.580  06/04/21 07/31/20  0.00

 7,432.02  7,432.02CD-8019-2 CD East West Bk CD  1.730  08/12/20 07/31/20  0.00

 48,644.16  3,548,644.1691514BGW7 CP - INT Univ of TX  1.860  07/31/20 07/31/20  3,500,000.00

 40,000.00  4,040,000.00912828VP2 TREAS NOTE U.S. Treasury  2.000  07/31/20 07/31/20  4,000,000.00

 2,932.08  5,158,092.94CD-8019-2 CD East West Bk CD  1.730  08/12/20 08/12/20  5,155,160.86

 56,250.00  56,250.009128283X6 TREAS NOTE U.S. Treasury  2.250  02/15/21 08/15/20  0.00

 916.92  916.92CD-1790 CD East West Bk CD  0.440  06/08/21 08/31/20  0.00

 1,208.85  1,208.85CD-5883 CD East West Bk CD  0.580  06/04/21 08/31/20  0.00

 31,875.00  3,031,875.00912828VV9 TREAS NOTE U.S. Treasury  2.125  08/31/20 08/31/20  3,000,000.00

 61,875.00  61,875.003130ADRG9 AGCY BULET FHLB  2.750  03/10/23 09/10/20  0.00

 59,375.00  59,375.009128284B3 TREAS NOTE U.S. Treasury  2.375  03/15/21 09/15/20  0.00

 32,500.00  4,032,500.003137EAEJ4 AGCY BULET FHLMC  1.625  09/29/20 09/29/20  4,000,000.00

 916.92  916.92CD-1790 CD East West Bk CD  0.440  06/08/21 09/30/20  0.00

 1,208.85  1,208.85CD-5883 CD East West Bk CD  0.580  06/04/21 09/30/20  0.00

 15,750.00  15,750.003134GVJR0 AGCY CALL FHLMC  1.050  04/13/22 10/13/20  0.00

 40,625.00  5,040,625.009128282Z2 TREAS NOTE U.S. Treasury  1.625  10/15/20 10/15/20  5,000,000.00

 13,750.00  13,750.003133ELWK6 AGCY CALL FFCB  0.550  10/20/21 10/20/20  0.00

 916.92  916.92CD-1790 CD East West Bk CD  0.440  06/08/21 10/31/20  0.00

 1,208.85  1,208.85CD-5883 CD East West Bk CD  0.580  06/04/21 10/31/20  0.00

 0.00  4,000,000.0078009ALA0 CP - DISC Royal Bank of Canada  0.000  11/10/20 11/10/20  4,000,000.00

 7,500.00  7,500.003134GVUK2 AGCY CALL FHLMC  0.300  05/13/22 11/13/20  0.00

 6,875.00  6,875.003134GVWQ7 AGCY CALL FHLMC  0.550  05/19/23 11/19/20  0.00

 916.92  916.92CD-1790 CD East West Bk CD  0.440  06/08/21 11/30/20  0.00

 1,208.85  1,208.85CD-5883 CD East West Bk CD  0.580  06/04/21 11/30/20  0.00

 79,931.25  3,124,931.253133XDVS7 AGCY BULET FHLB  5.250  12/11/20 12/11/20  3,045,000.00

 40,964,130.43Total for  Pooled Funds  522,818.60  40,441,311.83

Page 1 of 2Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:34 pm

Page 16 of 17



CUSIP Pay Date Interest

Town of Addison

Projected Cash Flows

Total AmountSecurity Type

Cash Flows for next 180 days from  06/30/2020

Security Description Principal

 105,077.19  16,346,228.16July 2020  16,241,150.97

 93,182.85  8,248,343.71August 2020  8,155,160.86

 155,875.77  4,155,875.77September 2020  4,000,000.00

 72,250.77  5,072,250.77October 2020  5,000,000.00

 16,500.77  4,016,500.77November 2020  4,000,000.00

 79,931.25  3,124,931.25December 2020  3,045,000.00

 522,818.60  40,964,130.43Total Projected Cash Flows for  Town of Addison  40,441,311.83

Total for All Portfolios

Page 2 of 2Print Date:  7/15/2020 Print Time:   3:34 pm

Page 17 of 17


	Agenda
	1.  _1_Addison Grove Parks and Naming Discussion
	    Presentation - Addison Grove Park Naming
	    Policy - Naming and Recognition
	2.  _2_Airport Management Restructuring Briefing
	    Presentation - Airport Management Restructuring Briefing
	������������������Addison Airport�Management Restructuring Briefing �September 8, 2020
	History 
	Progress Since January 28, 2020
	Progress Since January 28, 2020
	Progress Since January 28, 2020
	Progress Since January 28, 2020
	Progress Since January 28, 2020
	Progress Since January 28, 2020
	On-Boarding Airport Staff - �Estimated Cost Presented in January 2020 Compared to Current Updated Cost and FY2020 Adopted Budget
	Cost Comparison – January 2020 to August 2020
	Cost to On-Board Remaining Real Estate Staff
	Cost to On-Board All Airport Staff
	FY2020 Contract Costs Compared to Town Costs
	Next Steps
	Next Steps
	Questions / Discussion

	3.  _3_Town Meeting Discussion
	4.  _4_Minutes - August 25, 2020 and September 1, 2020
	    Minutes - August 25, 2020 Council Meeting
	August 25, 2020
	7:30 p.m. Regular Meeting
	WORK SESSION
	1. Present and Discuss Any Action Necessary or New Information Regarding the COVID-19 Pandemic.
	2. Present and Discuss a Progress Update on the Trails Master Plan.
	3. Present and Discuss Staff’s preliminary Findings Regarding Expansion of the License Plate Recognition and Optical Camera Systems.
	4. Present and Discuss the Delivery of Funds to the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Aviation Division to Award a Bid and Provide for Construction of a Concrete Ramp to Serve the U.S. Customs Facility at Addison Airport in an Amount Not to E...

	REGULAR MEETING
	5. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the August 5 and 6, 2020 Special Meetings and the August 11, 2020 Regular Meeting.
	8. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Amend to the Public Art Policy.
	9. Present, Discuss and Consider Action on a Change Order to the Contract with McMahon Construction, LP for Reconstruction of George Haddaway Drive and Associated Pavements at Addison Airport to Include Reconstruction of the Landside Entry to the Fuel...
	10. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve the Professional Services Agreement Between the Town of Addison and Texas Coalition for Affordable Power, Inc. for Power to be Provided on and After January 1, 2023 and Authorize the...
	11. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve the Commercial Electricity Service Agreement Between the Town of Addison and GEXA Energy, LP for Power to be Provided on and After January 1, 2023, and Authorize the City Manager to ...


	5.  _5_North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation budget approval
	    Resolution - NDCWSC Budget Approval
	6.  _6_Interlocal Agreement with DART for Betterments
	    Resolution - DART ILA
	7.  _7_Concourse Plaza II  LTD Ground Lease Amendment
	    Resolution - _Concourse Plaza II  LTD., Ground Lease
	    Recommendation Memo
	Concourse Plaza 3rd Amendment Council Recommendation Memo 200804.pdf
	Requested Action
	Background Information
	Summary of Ground Lease Terms
	Current Status
	Conclusion and Recommendation

	Drive Construction-Approved Pay Application #9.pdf

	    Map
	8.  _8_Sale of Excess Right-of-Way_ Southeast Corner of Vitruvian Way and Spring Valley Rd
	    Resolution - Special Warranty Deed - Southeast Corner
	    Property Exhibit
	9.  _9_Sale of Excess Right-of-Way_ Southwest Corner of Vitruvian Way and Spring Valley Rd
	    Resolution - Special Warranty Deed - Southwest Corner
	    Property Exhibit
	10.  _10_Trinity River Authority ILA for Fiscal Year 2021
	    Resolution - Interlocal Agreement Trinity River Authority
	11.  _11_ Ordinance to Levy Taxes 
	    Notice of Vote on the Tax Rate
	    Presentation - Fiscal Year 2021 Tax Rate Adoption
	    Ordinance - Fiscal Year 2021 Tax Rate Adoption
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

	12.  _12_ Ordinance of the Town of Addison,
	    Advertisement - Public Hearing
	    Presentation - Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Adoption
	    Ordinance - Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Adoption 
	13.  _13_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1817-Z_UDR Fiori
	    Ordinance - 1817-Z UDR Fiori
	TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	    Staff Report - 1817-Z UDR Fiori
	1817-Z P&Z Packet
	1817-Z Map
	1817-Z Staff Report

	1817-Z Commission Findings

	    Plans - 1817-Z UDR Fiori
	1817-Z UDR Fiori - A1-1 - SITE PLAN
	1817-Z UDR Fiori - A2-1 - FACADE PLAN
	Sheets
	A2-1 - FACADE PLAN


	1817-Z UDR Fiori - A3-1 - CONCEPT PLAN-1
	Sheets
	A1-1 - SITE PLAN
	A2-1 - FACADE PLAN
	A3-1 - CONCEPT PLAN-1
	A3-2 - CONCEPT PLAN-2


	1817-Z UDR Fiori - A3-2 - CONCEPT PLAN-2
	Sheets
	A1-1 - SITE PLAN
	A2-1 - FACADE PLAN
	A3-1 - CONCEPT PLAN-1
	A3-2 - CONCEPT PLAN-2



	14.  _14_Meritorious Exception - Prestonwood Place
	    Ordinance - Meritorious Exception for Prestonwood Place
	TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	    Meritorious Exception Application - Prestonwood Place
	App
	Sign Plans

	15.  _15_Professional Services Agreement with Cobb-Fendley for Addison Circle Utility Study
	    Resolution - Professional Services Agreement with Cobb, Fendley and Associates
	16.  _16_Ordinance Amending Chapter 82 (Utilities)
	    Ordinance - Fiscal Year 2021 Water and Sewer Rate Increase
	17.  _17_Finance Department Quarterly Financial Report 
	    _Presentation - Quarterly Financial Report Fiscal Year 2020 Third Quarter
	    Quarterly Financial Report - Fiscal Year 2020 Third Quarter
	Report Cover
	Table of Contents
	Memo
	Executive Dashboard
	Staffing Indicators
	Economic Indicators
	Sales Tax Information
	General Fund Revenues
	General Fund Expenditures
	Hotel Fund
	Economic Development Fund
	Airport Fund
	Utility Fund
	Stormwater Fund
	Schedule of Sales Tax Collections
	Hotel Occupancy Tax Collections


	    Quarterly Investment Report - Fiscal Year 2020 Third Quarter

